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Explanatory Note

Safe Harbor Statement

This Form 6-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 274 of the Securities Act of 1933
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 about the registrant and its business. Forward-looking statements are
statements that are not historical facts and may be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology, including the words
“believes,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “will,” “should” or comparable terminology. Such forward-looking statements are
based upon the current beliefs and expectations of the registrant’s management and are subject to risks and uncertainties
which could cause actual results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements.

o

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and actual results of operations, financial
condition and liquidity, and developments in the industry may differ materially from those made in or suggested by the
Jforward-looking statements contained in this Form 6-K. These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous risks,
uncertainties and assumptions. The forward-looking statements in this Form 6-K speaks only as of the date of this report and
might not occur in light of these risks, uncertainties, and assumptions. The registrant undertakes no obligation and disclaims
any obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future
events, or otherwise.
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(@)

(ii)

(iii)
1.2

1. ABOUT THIS LISTING STATEMENT
General
Unless otherwise indicated:

except where otherwise indicated, all references to dollar amounts and “$” are to Canadian
currency;

any statements in this Listing Statement made by or on behalf of management are made in such
persons’ capacities as officers of the Resulting Issuer and not in their personal capacities; and

all information in this Listing Statement is stated as at May 7, 2020, unless otherwise indicated.
Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The information provided in this Listing Statement, including schedules and information
incorporated by reference, may contain “forward-looking statements” about Red White & Bloom
Brands Inc. (the “Resulting Issuer”), MichiCann Medical Inc. (“MichiCann”) and Tidal Royalty
Corp. (the “Issuer”). In addition, the Issuer, MichiCann or the Resulting Issuer may make or
approve certain statements in future filings with Canadian securities regulatory authorities, in press
releases, or in oral or written presentations by representatives of the Issuer that are not statements
of historical fact and may also constitute forward-looking statements. All statements, other than
statements of historical fact, made by the Issuer. MichiCann or the Resulting Issuer that address
activities, events or developments that the Issuer, MichiCann or the Resulting Issuer expects or
anticipates will or may occur in the future are forward-looking statements, including, but not

99 <.

limited to, statements preceded by, followed by or that include words such as “may”, “will”,

ELINNT3 EEINNTS EEIN13

“would”, “could”, “should”, “believes”, “estimates”, “projects”, “potential”, “expects”, “plans”,
2 (13 2 13

“intends”, “anticipates”, “targeted”, “continues”, “forecasts”, “designed”, “goal”, or the negative
of those words or other similar or comparable words.

Forward-looking statements may relate to future financial conditions, results of operations, plans,
objectives, performance or business developments. These statements speak only as at the date they
are made and are based on information currently available and on the then-current expectations of
the party making the statement and/or assumptions concerning future events, which are subject to
a number of known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual
results, performance or achievements to be materially different from that which was expressed or
implied by such forward-looking statements, including, but not limited to, risks and uncertainties
related to:

the available funds of the Resulting Issuer and the anticipated use of such funds;

the regulation of the cannabis industry;

the availability of financing opportunities, legal and regulatory risks inherent in the legal
cannabis industry, risks associated with economic conditions, dependence on management and
currency risk; and

other risks described in this Listing Statement and described from time to time in
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documents filed by the Issuer, MichiCann or the Resulting Issuer with Canadian securities
regulatory authorities.

Consequently, all forward-looking statements made in this Listing Statement and other documents
of the Issuer, MichiCann and the Resulting Issuer are qualified by such cautionary statements and
there can be no assurance that the anticipated results or developments will actually be realized or,
even if realized, that they will have the expected consequences to or effects to the Issuer,
MichiCann and/or the Resulting Issuer.

The cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section should be considered in
connection with any subsequent written or oral forward-looking statements that the Issuer,
MichiCann or the Resulting Issuer and/or persons acting on its behalf may issue. The Issuer,
MichiCann and the Resulting Issuer undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-
looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, other than
as required under securities legislation. See “3./ — GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS
— Risk Factors” and “17 —RISK FACTORS”.

1.3 Market and Industry Data

This Listing Statement includes market and industry data relevant to the Resulting Issuer and
business that has been obtained from third party sources, including industry publications. The
Resulting Issuer believes that its industry data is accurate and that its estimates and assumptions
are reasonable, but there is no assurance as to the accuracy or completeness of this data. Third
party sources generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from
sources believed to be reliable, but there is no assurance as to the accuracy or completeness of
included information. Although the data is believed to be reliable, the Resulting Issuer has not
independently verified any of the data from third party sources referred to in this Listing
Statement or ascertained the underlying economic assumptions relied upon by such sources.

1.4 Glossary of Terms

Amalco means the amalgamation corporation resulting and continuing
from the Amalgamation.

Amalgamating means Tidal, Tidal Subco and MichiCann.

Corporations

Amalgamation means the amalgamation of MichiCann and Subco by way of a
“three-cornered amalgamation” with Tidal pursuant to Section
174 of the OBCA.

Amalgamation means the agreement among MichiCann, Tidal and Subco in

Agreement respect of the Amalgamation.

Amalgamation means the special resolution of the MichiCann Shareholders

Resolution approving the Amalgamation which is to be considered at the
MichiCann Meeting.

Business means the Business Combination Agreement between Tidal,

Combination Tidal Subco and MichiCann dated May 8, 2019, as amended

Agreement and restated on March 12, 2020.

Completion means April 30, 2020 or such later date as may be mutually

Deadline agreed between the Parties in writing.
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Closing
CSE
Dissenting
Shareholder

Effective Date

Effective Time

Exchange Ratio

Excluded Laws

Federal CSA
Fundamental
Change Written
Consent

Holder Application

IFRS
Issuer
legal cannabis

industry

LARA

Management

means the closing of the Transaction.

means the Canadian Securities Exchange.

means a registered holder of MichiCann Shares who, in
connection with the special resolution of the MichiCann
Shareholders approving the Amalgamation, has exercised the
right to dissent pursuant to Section 185 of the OBCA in strict
compliance with the provisions thereof and thereby becomes
entitled to be paid the fair value of his, her or its MichiCann
Shares and who has not withdrawn the notice of the exercise of
such right as permitted by Section 185 of the OBCA.

means the date shown on the Certificate of Amalgamation
giving effect to the Amalgamation.

means 12:01 a.m. (Toronto time) on the Effective Date or such
other time on the Effective Date as may be agreed by
MichiCann and Tidal.

means 2 Resulting Issuer Consideration Shares (comprised of 1
Resulting Issuer Shares and 1 Resulting Issuer Series II
Preferred Shares) for each one (1) MichiCann Share held.

means any U.S. federal laws, statutes, codes, ordinances,
decrees, rules, regulations which apply to the production,
trafficking, distribution, processing, extraction, and/or sale of
marijuana (cannabis) and related substances.

means the U.S. Controlled Substances Act of 1970.

means the written consent of the holders of Tidal Shares to
approve the Transaction

Means the application to LARA by the holder of the
PharmaCo Debenture seeking permission to convert the
PharmaCo Debenture and own the PharmaCo Shares.

means the International Financial Reporting Standards, as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
means Tidal Royalty Corp.

means any business operating in a State of the United States
that pertains in any way to cannabis, which is carried out in
compliance with all applicable State laws and regulations.
means The Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs in
the State of Michigan or as it otherwise may be known from
time to time.

means the management of the Resulting Issuer.
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Material Adverse
Effect

MichiCann
Michicann Meeting

MichiCann
Shareholder
MichiCann
Shareholder
Approval

MichiCann Shares
OBCA

PharmaCo
Preferred Shares

Red White &
Bloom Brands Inc.

Resulting Issuer

Resulting Issuer
Consideration
Shares
Resulting Issuer
Convertible
Securities
Resulting Issuer
Options

Resulting Issuer
Preferred Shares

means any event, change or effect that is or would reasonably
be expected to be materially adverse to the financial condition,
operations, assets, liabilities, or business of a Party and its
Subsidiaries, considered as a whole, provided, however, that a
Material Adverse Effect shall not include an adverse effect
resulting from a change: (a) which arises out of or in
connection with a matter that has been publicly disclosed or
otherwise disclosed in writing by such Party to the other Party
prior to the date of this Agreement; (b) resulting from
conditions affecting the medical marijuana industry as a
whole; or (c) resulting from general economic, financial,
currency exchange, securities or commodity market conditions
in Canada, the United States or elsewhere.

means MichiCann Medical Inc.

means a special meeting of the shareholders of MichiCann to
be held in order to seek shareholder approval for the
Amalgamation.

means a registered holder of MichiCann Shares, from time to
time, and “MichiCann Shareholders” means all such holders.
means the approval of the Amalgamation Resolution by at
least

two-thirds of the votes cast by the MichiCann Shareholders
present in person or by proxy at the MichiCann Meeting.
means the common shares in the capital of MichiCann..

means the Ontario Business Corporations Act, R.S.0. 1990, c.
B.16.

Means PharmaCo Inc., a corporation incorporated under the
laws of Michigan.

means the non-voting, Series 1 Convertible Preferred Shares of
the Issuer.

means the Resulting Issuer.

means Tidal after completion of the Transaction and after
giving effect to the Tidal Name Change to Red White &
Bloom Brands Inc.

means the Resulting Issuer Shares and the Resulting

Issuer Series II Preferred Shares, to be issued in accordance
with the Exchange Ratio.

means, collectively, the Resulting Issuer Options and the
Resulting Issuer Warrants.

means stock options to purchase Resulting Issuer Shares and
Resulting Issuer Series II Preferred Shares to be issued to the
holders of the MichiCann Options in replacement for their
MichiCann Options in accordance with the Exchange Ratio.
means the Tidal Preferred Shares after giving effect to the
completion of the Business Combination.
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Resulting Issuer
Series II Preferred
Shares

Resulting Issuer
Shares

Resulting Issuer
Warrants

Tidal
Tidal Advisory Fee

Tidal Board
Tidal Director
Appointments

Tidal Name Change

Tidal Shares
Tidal Share
Consolidation

Tidal Shareholder
Approval

Tidal Subco
Or Subco

Transaction

means the Tidal Series II Preferred Shares after giving effect to
the completion of the Business Combination.

means the common shares in the capital of the Resulting
Issuer.

means purchase warrants to purchase Resulting Issuer Shares
and Resulting Issuer Series II Preferred Shares to be issued to
the holders of the MichiCann Warrants in replacement for their
MichiCann Warrants in accordance with the Exchange Ratio.
means Tidal Royalty Corporation.

means the 14,762,000 Resulting Issuer Shares to be issued to
certain advisors upon completion of the Business Combination
of which 50% will be Resulting Issuer Shares and 50% will be
Resulting Issuer Series II Preferred Shares.

means the board of directors of the Issuer.

means subject to the completion of the Amalgamation, the
reconstitution of the Tidal Board to consist of five (5) directors
in the manner provided for in the Business Combination
Agreement.

means the change of name of the Issuer to “Red White &
Bloom Brands Inc.” or such other name as may be agreed upon
by the Issuer and MichiCann.

means the common shares in the capital of the Issuer.

means the consolidation of the issued and outstanding Tidal
Shares on the basis of sixteen (16) pre-consolidation Tidal
Shares for one (1) post-consolidation Tidal Share.

means obtaining the Fundamental Change Written Consent
signed by at least 50.1% of the Tidal Shareholders as required
pursuant to the rules of the CSE.

means 2690229 Ontario Inc. a wholly owned subsidiary of
Tidal.

means the Amalgamation and related transactions pursuant to
the Business Combination Agreement.

2. CORPORATE STRUCTURE

2.1 Corporate Name and Head and Registered Office

The Issuer was incorporated under the laws of British Columbia on March 12, 1980 as Treminco
Resources Ltd. On February 19, 1999, the Issuer changed its name to Elkhorn Gold Mining
Corporation; on October 12, 2011, the Issuer changed its name to Tulloch Resources Ltd.; and
effective July 18, 2017, the Issuer changed its name to Tidal Royalty Corp. The registered and
records office of the Issuer is located at Suite 810, 789 West Pender Street, Vancouver, British

Columbia V6C 1H2.

MichiCann was incorporated under the laws of Ontario on December 5, 2017. The registered and
records office of MichiCann is located at 8820 Jane Street, Concord, Ontario, L4H 2M9.
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Following completion of the Business Combination and the Tidal Name Change, it is expected
that the full corporate name of the Resulting Issuer will be “Red White & Bloom Brands Inc.”.
The registered and records office of the Resulting Issuer will be Suite 810, 789 West Pender
Street, Vancouver, British Columbia V6C 1H2.

2.2 Jurisdiction of Incorporation

The Issuer was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia). MichiCann
was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario).
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2.3  Intercorporate Relationships

The following sets out the organization structure of the Issuer:

Tidal

Royalty
Corp. (BC)

RLTY USA
Corp. (DE)

L]
RLTY RLTY

RLTY
Developme

tNV1LLC
(DE) (DE)

Beverage 1

LLC (DE)

tFLAZLLC
(DE)

SP,E‘?;IHM.M | RLTY Development
(Ma) Orange LLC (MA)

MichiCann has the following two subsidiaries:

1. Mid-American Growers, Inc. (“MAG”), a corporation existing under the laws of the State of
Delaware following the merger of Mid-American Growers, Inc. and RWB Acquisition Sub, Inc.
on January 10, 2020; and

2. RWB Illinois, Inc. (“RWB Illinoeis™), a corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of
Delaware

On completion of the Transaction, the corporate structure of the Resulting Issuer is as follows:

Red White &
Bloom Brands

nc (B
RLTY USA Michicann
Curp {DE) Medical Inc.
r T T
RLTY Beverage| s e
hA DOF NV 1 LLC [DE Gl F!_AILLC DE FLA 2 LLC [DF] CA1LIC (DE

Development | Development WE tiinois,
Springfield LLC) Orange LLC Inc
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24 Issuer’s requalifying following a fundamental change

On May 8, 2019, the Issuer, Tidal Subco and MichiCann entered into a business combination
agreement as amended and restated on March 12, 2020, (the “Business Combination
Agreement”), which set out the terms for the reverse take-over of the Issuer by MichiCann by
way of the Amalgamation and the related transactions.

General

The principal consequences of the Amalgamation are summarized as follows:

(a) the Amalgamating Corporations will amalgamate under the OBCA and will
continue as one corporation under the name “MichiCann Medical Inc.”;

(b) each issued and outstanding MichiCann Share (other than those held by Dissenting
Shareholders) shall be exchanged in accordance with the following exchange ratios:

Shareholders will receive* For each

one (1) fully paid and non- 1 MichiCann Common Share
assessable Tidal Share and
one (1) fully paid and non-
assessable Tidal Series 11
Preferred Share
One (1) Warrant to purchase 1 MichiCann Warrant
one (1) Tidal Share and one
(1) Tidal Series II Preferred
Share
one (1) Option to purchase 1 MichiCann Option
one (1) Tidal Share and one
(1) Tidal Series II Preferred
Share
*following completion of the Tidal Share Consolidation

(c) the articles of Amalco will be substantially the articles of MichiCann;
(d) the by-laws of Amalco will be the by-laws of MichiCann;

(e) the property and assets of each of the Amalgamating Corporations will be the
property and assets of Amalco and Amalco will be liable for all of the liabilities and
obligations of each of the Amalgamating Corporations; and

® all Tidal Options to be issued to holders of MichiCann Options on the
Amalgamation will be issued under Tidal’s current stock option plan.

The ownership of the Resulting Issuer on a fully diluted basis by the former shareholders of
MichiCann and Tidal will be 87% and 13%, respectively.
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If all of the conditions of the proposed Amalgamation are satisfied, including receiving the
requisite shareholder approval as described herein and conditional approval of the Exchange, the
Articles of Amalgamation are expected to be filed on April 24, 2020.

Business Combination Agreement

The following summary of the Business Combination Agreement is qualified in its entirety by the
text of the Business Combination Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Appendix “J”
and which has also been filed by Tidal with the Canadian securities regulatory authorities and is
available at www.sedar.com.

Business Combination Steps

The Business Combination is structured as a three-cornered amalgamation involving the
Amalgamation of MichiCann with Tidal Subco pursuant to section 174 of the OBCA in exchange
for Tidal Shares pursuant to the following steps:

MichiCann shall duly call and convene the MichiCann Meeting not later than April 15, 2020
at which the MichiCann Shareholders will be asked to approve the Amalgamation Resolution;

Tidal shall circulate the Fundamental Change Written Consent for the purpose of obtaining the
Tidal Shareholder Approval;

Tidal shall circulate forms of directors resolutions for the purpose of obtaining the approval of
the board of directors for the Tidal Share Consolidation, the Tidal Name Change and the Tidal
Director Appointments, or hold one or more directors meetings in lieu thereof, in accordance with
Tidal’s articles and applicable Laws, as soon as reasonably practicable;

Following the receipt of the MichiCann Shareholder Approval, the Tidal Shareholder
Approval and immediately prior to the filing of the Articles of Amalgamation, Tidal shall take all
necessary corporate steps to complete the Tidal Share Consolidation, the Tidal Name Change and
the Tidal Director Appointments;

MichiCann and Tidal Subco shall amalgamate by way of statutory amalgamation under
Section 174 of the OBCA on the terms and subject to the conditions contained in the
Amalgamation Agreement and MichiCann and Tidal further agree that the Effective Date shall
occur within five (5) Business Days following the later of: (i) the receipt of Tidal Shareholder
Approval; and (ii) the satisfaction or waiver of all conditions imposed under the Business
Combination Agreement and by the CSE or any other regulatory requirements;

Upon completion of the Amalgamation:

o MichiCann and Tidal Subco will amalgamate under the provisions of the OBCA and
continue as one amalgamated corporation, being Amalco;
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o holders of outstanding MichiCann Shares shall receive Resulting Issuer Consideration Shares
in accordance with the Exchange Ratio;

o each outstanding Subco Share will be exchanged for Amalco Shares on the basis of one (1)
Amalco Share for each Subco share;

o as consideration for the issuance of the Resulting Issuer Consideration Shares to the holders of
MichiCann Shares to effect the Amalgamation, Amalco will issue to the Resulting Issuer one (1)
fully paid Amalco Share for each Resulting Issuer Consideration Share so issued;

o all of the property and assets of each of MichiCann and Subco will be the property and assets
of Amalco and Amalco will be liable for all of the liabilities and obligations of each of MichiCann
and Subco; and

o Amalco will be a wholly-owned Subsidiary of Tidal;

Resulting Issuer Options and Resulting Issuer Warrants shall be issued to the holders of the
MichiCann Options and MichiCann Warrants, respectively, in exchange and replacement for, on
an equivalent basis, such MichiCann Options and MichiCann Warrants, which shall thereby be
cancelled. For greater certainty, 50% of the Resulting Issuer Options and the Resulting Issuer
Warrants shall be exercisable into Resulting Issuer Shares and 50% of the Resulting Issuer
Options and Resulting Issuer Warrants shall be exercisable into Resulting Issuer Series II
Preferred Shares;

14,762,000 Resulting Issuer Shares will be issued to certain advisors upon completion of the
Business Combination of which 50% will be Resulting Issuer Shares and 50% will be Resulting
Issuer Series II Preferred Shares;

as soon as practicable after the Effective Date, in accordance with normal commercial practice,
the Resulting Issuer shall issue or cause to be issued certificates, DRS Statements or electronic
positions within CDS representing the appropriate number of the Resulting Issuer Shares and
Resulting Issuer Series II Preferred Shares to the former MichiCann Shareholders and the former
Tidal Shareholders, as applicable. No fractional shares will be delivered to any MichiCann
Shareholder or Tidal Shareholder otherwise entitled thereto and instead the number of shares to be
issued to each former MichiCann Shareholder and Tidal Shareholder will be rounded down to the
nearest whole number; and

the Parties shall take any other action and do anything, including the execution of any other
agreements, documents or instruments, that are necessary or useful to give effect to the Business
Combination.

Representations, Warranties and Covenants

The Business Combination Agreement contains customary representations and warranties made
by each of the parties in respect of the respective assets, liabilities, financial position, business and
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operations of Tidal, Tidal Subco and MichiCann. Both Tidal and MichiCann also provided
covenants in favour of each other in the Business Combination Agreement which govern the
conduct of the operations and affairs of each respective party prior to the closing date.

Mutual Conditions to the Transaction

The Business Combination Agreement contains conditions to the obligations of Tidal and
MichiCann to complete the Transaction. Unless all such conditions are satisfied or waived by the
party or parties for whose benefit such conditions exist, the Transaction will not be completed.
The following is a summary of the significant conditions contained in the Business Combination
Agreement:

(a) there shall have been no action taken under any applicable Law or by any Government
Authority and there shall not be in force any order or decree restraining or enjoining the
consummation of the Business Combination;

(b) the Business Combination Agreement shall not have been terminated pursuant to the terms of
the Business Combination Agreement;

(c) all regulatory approvals (including Exchange approvals) and corporate approvals for the
Amalgamation shall have been obtained;

(d) each party shall not have entered into any transaction or contract which would have a material
effect on the financial and operational condition, or the assets of each party, excluding those
transactions or contracts undertaken in the ordinary course of business, without first discussing
and obtaining the approval of the other party;

(e) the MichiCann Shareholder Approval shall have been obtained,;
(f) the Tidal Shareholder Approval shall have been obtained;

(g) Tidal shall have completed the Tidal Share Consolidation, the Tidal Name Change and the
Tidal Director Appointments;

Additional Conditions Precedent to the Obligations of MichiCann

(a) on or prior to the Effective Date, and effective upon completion of the Amalgamation, each of
the directors and officers of Tidal who are not continuing on in such capacities shall have tendered
their resignations and provided mutual releases in a form acceptable to MichiCann and the board
of directors of Tidal, subject to the approval of the CSE, shall have been reconstituted, and the
officers shall have been appointed;

(b) no Material Adverse Change with respect to Tidal shall have occurred between the date hereof
and the Effective Date and the CEO of Tidal or another officer satisfactory to MichiCann shall
deliver a certificate addressed to MichiCann certifying the foregoing immediately prior to the
Effective Time;
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(c) Tidal shall have complied and performed, in all material respects, all of its covenants and other
obligations under the Business Combination Agreement which have not been waived by
MichiCann, and all representations and warranties of Tidal contained in the Business
Combination Agreement shall have been true and correct in all material respects as of the date of
the Business Combination Agreement and shall remain true and correct in all material respects
thereafter (provided, however, that if the breaching Party has been given written notice by the
other Party specifying in reasonable detail any such misrepresentation, breach or non-
performance, the breaching Party shall have had three days to cure such misrepresentation, breach
or non-performance), and the CEO of Tidal or another officer satisfactory to MichiCann shall
deliver a certificate addressed to MichiCann certifying the foregoing immediately prior to the
Effective Time;

(d) the Tidal board of directors, the Subco board of directors and the Tidal Shareholders as
necessary, shall have adopted all necessary resolutions and all other necessary corporate actions
shall have been taken by Tidal to permit the consummation of the Business Combination and the
transactions contemplated therewith; and

(e) MichiCann shall have received all of the Tidal Escrow Agreements and all covenants under the
Tidal Escrow Agreements to be performed on or before the Effective Time which have not been
waived by MichiCann shall have been duly performed by the counterparties thereto in all material
respects.

If any of the above conditions shall not have been complied with or waived by MichiCann on or
before the Completion Deadline or, if earlier, the date required for the performance thereof, then,
subject to the cure provision provided for in section (c), MichiCann may terminate the Business
Combination Agreement in circumstances where the failure to satisfy any such condition is not
the result, directly or indirectly, of a breach of the Business Combination Agreement by
MichiCann. In the event that the failure to satisfy any one or more of the above conditions
precedent results from a material default by MichiCann of its obligations under the Business
Combination Agreement and if such condition(s) precedent would have been satisfied but for such
default, MichiCann shall not rely on such failure (to satisfy one or more of the above conditions)
as a basis for its own noncompliance with its obligations under the Business Combination
Agreement.

Additional Conditions Precedent to the Obligations of Tidal

(a) no Material Adverse Change with respect to MichiCann taken as a whole shall have occurred
between the date hereof and the Effective Date and the President of MichiCann or another officer
satisfactory to Tidal shall deliver a certificate addressed to Tidal certifying the foregoing
immediately prior to the Effective Time;

(b) MichiCann shall have complied and performed, in all material respects, all of its covenants or
other obligations under this Agreement which have not been waived by Tidal, and all
representations and warranties of MichiCann contained in the Business Combination Agreement
shall have been true and correct in all material respects as of the date of the Business Combination
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Agreement and shall remain true and correct in all material respects thereafter (provided, however,
that if the breaching Party has been given written notice by the other Party specifying in
reasonable detail any such misrepresentation, breach or nonperformance, the breaching Party shall
have had three days to cure such misrepresentation, breach or nonperformance), and the President
of MichiCann or another officer satisfactory to Tidal shall deliver a certificate addressed to Tidal
certifying the foregoing immediately prior to the Effective Time;

(c) the MichiCann board of directors and the MichiCann Shareholders shall have adopted all
necessary resolutions and all other necessary corporate actions shall have been taken by
MichiCann to permit the consummation of the Amalgamation, the Business Combination and the
transactions contemplated by the Documents;

(d) Tidal shall have received all of the MichiCann Escrow Agreements and all covenants under
the MichiCann Escrow Agreements to be performed on or before the Effective Time which have
not been waived by Tidal shall have been duly performed by the counterparties thereto in all
material respects; and

(e) the number of Dissenting MichiCann Shares, for which dissent rights have not been
withdrawn, at the time of the MichiCann Meeting shall not exceed 5% of the number of issued and
outstanding MichiCann Shares.

If any of the above conditions shall not have been complied with or waived by Tidal on or before
the Completion Deadline or, if earlier, the date required for the performance thereof, then, subject
to the cure provision provided for in section (b), Tidal may terminate this Agreement in
circumstances where the failure to satisfy any such condition is not the result, directly or
indirectly, of a breach of the Business Combination Agreement by Tidal or Subco. In the event
that the failure to satisfy any one or more of the above conditions precedent results from a
material default by Tidal or Subco of its obligations under the Business Combination Agreement
and if such condition(s) precedent would have been satisfied but for such default, neither Party
shall rely on such failure (to satisfy one or more of the above conditions) as a basis for its own
noncompliance with its obligations under the Business Combination Agreement.

Management of Tidal and MichiCann believes that all material consents, rulings, approvals and
assurances required for the completion of the Transaction will be obtained prior to the closing sate
in the normal course upon application. There can be no assurance, however, that all of the
conditions to the Transaction will be fulfilled prior to the anticipated closing date. The fulfilment
of certain conditions may be waived by the parties to the Business Combination Agreement.

2.5 Non-Corporate Issuers or Issuers Outside of Canada

Not Applicable.
3. GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS

3.1 General Development of the Issuer’s Business

Between 1985 and 2000, the Issuer was involved in mineral exploration and was listed initially on
the Vancouver Stock Exchange (as it was then known) and subsequently on the TSX Venture
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Exchange (the “TSX”). On September 4, 2001, the Issuer’s Shares were delisted from the TSX
for failure to meet the continued listing requirements of the TSX. Cease Trade Orders (“CTO’s”)
were imposed on the Issuer by the Ontario Securitics Commission and British Columbia
Securities Commissions (the “Commissions”) on January 11, 2002 and January 3, 2002,
respectively. Between April 2001 and July 2010, the Issuer was inactive and did not carry on any
business. On October 11, 2011, the Issuer changed its name to the Tulloch Resources Ltd.

On January 16, 2012, pursuant to Section 171 of the British Columbia Securities Act and Section
144 of the Ontario Securities Act, the Commissions issued revocation orders in respect to the prior
CTO’s issued against the Issuer. As part of the revocation, the Issuer undertook not to complete a
transaction that would result in a Reverse Takeover while the Issuer is not listed on a “recognized
stock exchange” unless prior to closing of such transaction, the Issuer provides the British
Columbia Securities Commission with 10 business days’ notice of the transaction.

Between 2012 and 2016, the Issuer undertook three (3) equity financings, raising an aggregate of
$125,000, through private placements of its common shares to cover expenses involved in the
restoration of the Issuer, ongoing costs, and expenses involved in searching for an appropriate
project. From 2014 to 2017, the Issuer identified and reviewed a number of opportunities but did
not proceed with any project.

In July 2017, the Issuer changed its business to become an Investment Company with a focus on
the U.S. legal cannabis industry. In order to make this change the Issuer:

1. retained new management with a track record in the U.S. legal cannabis industry and of
acquiring and divesting in arm’s-length enterprises;

changed its name from Tulloch Resources Ltd. to Tidal Royalty Corp;
consolidated its common shares on a three (3) old for one (1) new basis;

considered and created a clearly defined investment policy; and

wok v

received shareholders’ approval to the change of the Issuer’s business from mineral
exploration to that of an Investment Company.

Prior Financings

On January 30, 2015, the Issuer issued 1,400,000 common shares in connection with a non-
brokered financing at a price of $0.05 per common share for aggregate proceeds of $70,000.

On December 29, 2015, the Issuer issued 550,000 common shares in connection with a non-
brokered financing at a price of $0.10 per common share for aggregate proceeds of $55,000.

On February 8, 2018, March 1, 2018 and April 30, 2018, the Issuer issued 59,370,000, 57,120,000
and 10,090,000 Special Warrants respectively, in connection with a non-brokered financing at a
price of $0.05 per Special Warrant for aggregate proceeds of $6,329,000. The Special Warrants
converted to Units four months from the date of issue.

On May 15, 2018, the Issuer issued 40,000,000 Preferred Share units in connection with a non-
brokered offering at a price of $0.05 per Preferred Share unit for aggregate gross proceeds of
$2,000,000.
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On June 12, 2018, the Issuer issued 91,387,756 common shares in connection with a non-brokered

private placement at a price of $0.33 per common share for aggregate gross proceeds of
$30,157,960.

Investment Portfolio

On August 31, 2018, the Issuer executed a definitive agreement with VLF Holdings LLC, an
Oregon limited liability company d/b/a Diem Cannabis (“Diem”) to finance the expansion of
TDMA LLC, a Massachusetts subsidiary of Diem (“TDMA”) into Massachusetts. Diem is an
experienced licensed operator in the highly-competitive Oregon market. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Issuer will provide Diem Cannabis with up to US$12.5 million over three years to
develop and operate a large-scale cultivation and processing facility (the “Site”) and up to four
dispensaries (the “Dispensaries”) in Massachusetts (the “Diem Financing”). The Diem Financing
will be in the form of (i) promissory notes advanced at various stages of development of
operations in the state; and (ii) the purchase price for real property acquisitions with respect to
Sites and Dispensaries. Wholly owned subsidiaries of Tidal, RLTY Development Springfield LLC
and RLTY Development Orange LLC have acquired title to the real property purchased in respect
of the Site and Dispensary acquisitions and will enter into leases with TDMA (or its nominee)
with respect to their operation.

On November 15, 2018, the Issuer announced it had purchased $3 million of units (the “FLRish
Units”) of FLRish, Inc., the parent company of Harborside (“Harborside”) and entered into a
non-binding memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) with Harborside to provide royalty
financing to prospective “Harborside” brand dispensary operators. There has been no progress on
the MOU as of the date of this listing statement. Each FLRish Unit is comprised of (A) one 12%
unsecured convertible debenture, convertible into common shares of Harborside (i) at the option
of the holder at any time prior to the last business day immediately preceding the third anniversary
date of the closing; and (ii) automatically upon a Harborside going-public transaction, at a
conversion price equal to the lower of (i) $6.90; and (ii) a 10% discount to the price of the
common shares of Harborside as part of a qualifying transaction; and (B) 87 common share
purchase warrants exercisable for a period of two years following the closing into common shares
of Harborside at an exercise price of $8.60 (subject to acceleration in the event of a going public
transaction). Pursuant to the terms of the MOU, the Issuer has agreed to provide up to US$10
million in royalty financing to prospective dispensary operators licensing the “Harborside” brand.
Each potential dispensary financing transaction will be assessed by the Issuer on a case-by-case
basis and will be subject to the satisfactory completion of due diligence by the Issuer and the
consummation of definitive documentation with the prospective dispensary operator.

In June 2019, Harborside Inc. (formerly Lineage Grow Company Ltd.) completed its previously
announced reverse takeover of FLRish Inc. (doing business as Harborside), pursuant to the terms
of a merger agreement dated Feb. 8, 2019, as amended on April 17, 2019, among the company,
FLRish and Lineage Merger Sub Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the company. The reverse
takeover was completed by way of a three-cornered merger, whereby FLRish merged with Merger
Sub to form a merged corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of the company.

Immediately prior to the reverse takeover taking effect, the company: (i) consolidated its common
shares on the basis of approximately 41.82 common shares into one new common share; (ii)
changed its name to Harborside Inc.; (iii) reclassified the post-consolidation common shares as
subordinate voting shares; and (iv) created a new class of multiple voting shares. On closing, the
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shareholders of FLRish received multiple voting shares, subordinate voting shares or a
combination thereof for each share of FLRish outstanding immediately prior to completion of the
reverse takeover.

On November 5, 2018, the Issuer entered into a binding letter of intent with Lighthouse Strategies
LLC (“Lighthouse”) to make subscription, by way of private placement, for US $5,000,000 of
Lighthouse’s Series A membership units.

Lighthouse is a finance, research & technology, and portfolio management company. It operates
11 companies and 150,000 square feet of real estate under management serving both traditional
and regulated markets, including vertically integrated cannabis assets licensed in California and
Nevada. Lighthouse is renowned for developing the world’s first non-alcoholic cannabis-infused
craft beer and liquor brand. Cannabiniers, a Lighthouse company, debuted Two Roots Brewing
Co. in Las Vegas, Nevada earlier this year.

On December 1, 2018 Lighthouse entered into a Financing Fee Agreement with RLTY Beverage
1 LLC (the “Financing Fee Agreement”). Pursuant to the Financing Fee Agreement, Tidal is
entitled to 1% of net sales of certain of Lighthouse’s beverage lines, including Cannabiniers, Two
Roots Brewing Co and Creative Waters Beverage Company. Financing fees will accumulate at
1% of net sales until December 1, 2019, at which point Tidal may choose to receive such fees in
cash or Series A membership units of Lighthouse at US $2.11 per unit. Thereafter, financing fees
are payable quarterly in cash. The terms of the Financing Fee Agreement are between four and
six years, depending on certain milestones and includes acceleration provisions in certain events
(including a substantial asset divestiture, change of control, or initial public offering).

On February 25, 2019, Tidal advanced $15,000,000 to MichiCann pursuant to a senior secured
convertible debenture which was amended on August 28, 2019 pursuant to a first amending
agreement (the “First Amending Agreement”), September 11, 2019 pursuant to a second
amending agreement (the “Second Amending Agreement”) and March 12, 2020 pursuant to a
third amending agreement (the “Third Amending Agreement”) (together, the “MichiCann
Debenture”). The MichiCann Debenture is non-interest bearing, other than in the event of default
by MichiCann and matures on April 30, 2020 (the “Maturity Date”). The MichiCann Debenture
is secured by way of a security interest against the personal property of MichiCann which security
interest is subordinated to the security interest held by Bridging Finance Inc. (“Bridging”). If the
Proposed Transaction is not completed by the Maturity Date or MichiCann fails to comply with
the terms of the MichiCann Debenture and MichiCann pursues an alternative go public
transaction or a change of control transaction (an “Alternate Liquidity Transaction”), the
Company may elect to convert, in whole or in part, the outstanding amount of the MichiCann
Debenture into common shares of MichiCann at a price per MichiCann share that is the lesser if 1)
$2.50 per MichiCann Share and (ii) a 20% discount to the issue or effective price per Michicann
Share under the Alternate Liquidity Transaction. If the Proposed Transaction is not complete by
April 30, 2020, MichiCann may elect to prepay the outstanding amount under the MichiCann
Debenture, with a prepayment penalty of 10%. On August 28, 2019, the Issuer advanced
MichiCann an additional US $2,000,000 pursuant to the First Amending Agreement and on March
12, 2020, an additional US $500,000 pursuant to the Third Amending Agreement to fund
MichiCann working capital.

The Tidal Debenture is secured against the assets of MichiCann pursuant to a general security and
pledge agreement dated February 25, 2019 (the “GSA and Pledge Agreement”) which security
interests have been subordinated behind the security interest held by Bridging.
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On May 8, 2019, the Issuer entered into the Business Combination Agreement with Tidal Subco
and MichiCann (as amended June 28, 2019 and July 30, 2019).

On March 12, 2020, the Issuer entered in the Amended and Restated Business Combination
Agreement with Tidal Subco and Michicann and entered into a third amending agreement with
MichiCann to, among other things, extend the maturity date of the Debenture to April 30, 2020.

On April 24, 2020, the Issuer closed the Amended and Restated Business Combination
Agreement with Tidal Subco and Michicann, consolidated its common shares of a 16:1 basis and
changed its name to Red White & Bloom Brands Inc.

3.2 General Development of MichiCann’s Business

MichiCann, operating as Red White & Bloom, is an investment company with a focus on the US
cannabis industry. MichiCann’s current investments are the PharmaCo Debenture and its rights
under the PharmaCo Put/Call Option Agreement.

On January 4, 2019, MichiCann entered into the Put-Call Option Agreement with the
shareholders of PharmaCo, which if exercised and subject to regulatory approval, would result in
MichiCann acquiring all the issued and outstanding shares of PharmaCo. (See General
Development of MichiCann’s Business — Agreements with PharmaCo).

PharmaCo has been granted a Step 1 prequalification by the Medical Marijuana Licensing Board
of the State of Michigan and has been awarded multiple municipal and state approvals for grower
permits (cultivation), manufacturing (including extraction and derivative manufacturing) and
provisioning centers (dispensaries). Current approvals allow for stacking of Michigan “C
Licenses” providing the PharmaCo with a unique opportunity to establish itself as one of the
largest licensed producer of cannabis in Michigan state.

On January 10, 2020, MichiCann closed the asset acquisition of Mid-American Growers, Inc.

On January 10, 2020, MichiCann’s wholly-owned subsidiary, RWB Illinois acquired 142 acres of
land located at 14240 Greenhouse Avenue, Granville, Illinois. (For a more detailed description of
these agreements, see General Development of MichiCann’s Business — Agreements with MAG).

Prior Financings

Since MichiCann’s incorporation on December 5, 2017, MichiCann has completed the following
financings:

On April 3, 2018, MichiCann issued an aggregate of $1,012,000 principal amount of unsecured
convertible debentures (the “Unsecured Debentures”) convertible into MichiCann Shares at a
price of $0.50 per MichiCann Share. All Unsecured Debentures converted into an aggregate of
$2,024,000 MichiCann Shares on November 21, 2018.

On December 18, 2018, MichiCann issued 30,068,182 MichiCann Shares pursuant to a non-
brokered financing (first tranche) at a price of $1.00 per MichiCann Share for aggregate proceeds
of $30,068,182.

On February 22, 2019, MichiCann issued 4,500,000 MichiCann Shares pursuant to a non-
brokered financing (second tranche) at a price of $1.00 per MichiCann Share for aggregate
proceeds of $4,500,000.
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On February 22, 2019, MichiCann issued 2,240,000 MichiCann Shares pursuant to a non-
brokered financing at a price of $2.50 per MichiCann Share for aggregate proceeds of
$5,600,000.

On February 25, 2019, MichiCann issued the $15,000,000 MichiCann Debenture which was
increased by an additional US $2,000,000 on August 28, 2019 pursuant to the First Amending
Agreement.

On September 30, 2019, MichiCann issued 1,168,100 MichiCann Shares pursuant to a non-
brokered financing (first tranche) at a price of $5.00 per MichiCann Share for aggregate proceeds
of $5,840,500.

On October 9, 2019, MichiCann issued 840,000 MichiCann Shares pursuant to a non-brokered
financing (second tranche) at a price of $5.00 per MichiCann Share for aggregate proceeds of
$4.,200,000.

On October 23, 2019, MichiCann issued 1,200,000 MichiCann Shares pursuant to a non-brokered
financing (third tranche) at a price of $5.00 per MichiCann Share for aggregate proceeds of
$6,000,000.

On December 18, 2019, MichiCann issued 27,000 MichiCann Shares pursuant to a non-brokered
financing (second tranche) at a price of $5.00 per MichiCann Share for aggregate proceeds of
$135,000.

On June 4, 2019, Bridging entered into a credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with
MichiCann and PharmaCo (collectively, the “Borrowers”) pursuant to which Bridging
established a non-revolving credit facility (the “Facility”) for the Borrowers in a maximum
principal amount of CAD $36,374,400 (the “Facility Limit”). The purpose of the Facility is so
that the PharmaCo can purchase certain real estate and business assets in the state of Michigan, to
make additional permitted acquisitions and for general corporate and operating purposes.

The obligations under the Facility are due and payable on the earlier of:
(a) the termination date (being January 4, 2020); and

(b) the acceleration date (being the earlier of the date of an insolvency event or that a demand
notice is delivered pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement).

In respect of the advance made by Bridging to the Borrowers under the Facility, the Borrowers
agreed to pay Bridging:

Interest at the prime rate plus 10.55% per annum calculated and compounded monthly, payable
monthly in arrears on the last day of each month; and

A work fee equal to CAD $909,360 (the “Work Fee”) was paid to Bridging.

The obligations under the Facility are secured by general security agreements on each Borrower,
mortgages on certain owned real property of PharmaCo among other security obligations.

As the funds under the Facility (net of the Work Fee, commissions and other transaction expenses
of Bridging) were advanced by Bridging directly to MichiCann, MichiCann in turn advanced the
funds (net of MichiCann’s transaction expenses) to PharmaCo pursuant to a Promissory Note (the
“Promissory Note”) issued by PharmaCo to MichiCann in the principal amount of CAD.
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$30,648,516.53 (the “Principal”). The Principal was due and payable in full on January 2, 2020
(the “Maturity Date”). PharmaCo may prepay the Principal in full in whole prior to the Maturity
Date. Any amounts payable by PharmaCo or MichiCann to Bridging under the Facility will
reduce the amount of PharmaCo’s obligations to MichiCann on a dollar for dollar basis under the
Promissory Note.

On January 10, 2020, the Facility was amended (the “Amended Facility”) pursuant to an
amended and restated credit agreement between Bridging, MichiCann (as guarantor) and
PharmaCo, RWB Illinois and MAG (as borrowers) (the “Amended Credit Agreement”).

The Amended Facility increased the Facility Limit to US $49,750,000 in the aggregate of which
US $27,000,000 was to refinance the existing Facility and US $22,750,000 was used to complete
the MAG Acquisition and for general corporate and operating purposes.

The obligations under the Facility are due and payable on the earlier of:

(a) the termination date (being July 10, 2021 subject to the right of the Borrowers to extend the
termination date by paying a 1% fee for two additional six-month periods for a total of 30
months); and

(b) the acceleration date (being the earlier of the date of an insolvency event or that a demand
notice is delivered pursuant to the terms of the Amended Credit Agreement).

In respect of the advance made by Bridging to the Borrowers under the Facility, the Borrowers
agreed to pay Bridging:

Interest at the prime rate plus 12% per annum calculated and compounded monthly, payable
monthly in arrears on the last day of each month; and

PharmaCo

PharmaCo was incorporated under the laws of the State of Michigan on March 11, 2016.
PharmaCo has been granted a Step 1 prequalification by the Medical Marihuana Licensing Board
of the State of Michigan on October 18, 2019, File No. ERGA-18-000091. See “4.1 — Narrative
Description of Business” for a discussion of PharmaCo’s assets.

Agreements with PharmaCo

On January 4, 2019, MichiCann entered into a debenture purchase agreement (the “Debenture
Purchase Agreement”) with PharmaCo pursuant to which MichiCann agreed to purchase an up to
US $114,734,209 8% senior secured convertible debenture of PharmaCo (the “PharmaCo
Debenture”). The PharmaCo Debenture has a maturity date of January 4, 2023 unless the
PharmaCo Debenture becomes earlier due.

The principal amount of PharmaCo Debenture outstanding is convertible at any time on the
earlier of the business day immediately preceding: (i) the Maturity Date; and (ii) the date that is
30 days after the holder received LARA’s written approval of the Holder Application. In such
circumstances, the principal amount of the PharmaCo Debenture is convertible into common
shares of PharmaCo at a conversion price equal to the then outstanding balance of the PharmaCo
Debenture divided by the total number of PharmaCo Shares then outstanding.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the conversion of the PharmaCo Debenture is subject to
PharmaCo and MichiCann having obtained all required permits from governmental authorities in
connection with MichiCann’s ownership of PharmaCo Shares, including, without limitation, all
required cannabis licenses or related permits issued by LARA (but excluding any permit or other
requirement which arises or may arise under any Excluded Law).

The PharmaCo Debenture is secured against the assets of PharmaCo pursuant to security
agreement dated as of January 4, 2019.

On January 4, 2019, MichiCann advanced USD$21,320,758.20 as a first tranche under the
PharmaCo Debenture, (which, included prior advances of USD $4,269,521.00 made by
MichiCann to PharmaCo pursuant to various non-interest bearing promissory notes).

On January 4, 2019, MichiCann entered into a put/call option agreement (the “Put/Call Option
Agreement”’) with PharmaCo and its shareholders (“PharmaCo Shareholders”) pursuant to
which the PharmaCo Shareholders granted MichiCann the call right to acquire 100% of the issued
and outstanding shares of PharmaCo from the PharmaCo Shareholders, and MichiCann granted
all of the PharmaCo Shareholders the put right to sell 100% of the issued and outstanding shares
of PharmaCo to MichiCann, in exchange for the issuance of 37,000,000 MichiCann Shares in the
aggregate (subject to standard anti-dilution protections) subject to all state and local regulatory
approvals including the approval of the Medical Marihuana Licensing Board and/or the Bureau of
Medical Marihuana Regulation (“BMMR”) within the Department of Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs (“LARA”) in the State of Michigan. Each PharmaCo Shareholder shall have the right, but
not the obligation, as its sole direction, to sell to PharmaCo all, but not less than all, of the
PharmaCo Shares held by it (the “Put Right”). The Put Right shall be exercised by a PharmaCo
Shareholders by the delivery of a written notice to MichiCann.

On February 22, 2019, MichiCann advanced USD $6,046,863.19 as a second tranche under the
PharmaCo Debenture.

On March 1, 2019, MichiCann advanced USD $11,327,594.02 as a third tranche under the
PharmaCo Debenture.

On October 10, 2019, MichiCann advanced USD $2,100,000 as a fourth tranche under the
PharmaCo Debenture.

On December 9, 2019, MichiCann advanced USD $925,000 as a fifth tranche under the
PharmaCo Debenture.

On January 22, 2020, MichiCann advanced USD $1,500,000 as a sixth tranche under the
PharmaCo Debenture.

Other Investments
MAG

On January 10, 2020, Mid-American Growers, Inc. completed its merger with MichiCann’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, RWB Acquisition Sub, Inc., to form MAG. MAG is a facility, recently
licensed for Hemp production, consist of a 3.6 million square foot modernized greenhouse with
tens of thousands of square feet in ancillary structures to support future hemp CBD production in
the State of Illinois.
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Agreements with MAG

On October 9, 2019, MichiCann entered into an agreement and plan of merger (the “MAG
Merger Agreement”) with Mid-American Growers, Inc., RWB Acquisition Sub, Inc. and Arthur
VanWingerden and Ken VanWingerden (collectively, the “ MAG Sellers”) pursuant to which
MichiCann will acquire all the issued and outstanding shares of Mid-American Growers, Inc. This
Merger Agreement was amended on November 1, 2019 and January 9, 2020. MAG owned 124
acres of real property commonly known as 14240 Greenhouse Avenue, Granville Illinois (the
“MAG Owned Property”).

Concurrent with the closing of the MAG Acquisition, MichiCann’s wholly owned subsidiary,
RWB Illinois acquired additional 106 acres of land located at 14240 Greenhouse Avenue,
Granville, Illinois for US$2,000,000 pursuant to a real estate purchase agreement made and
entered into as of January 10, 2020 between RWB Illinois, VW Properties LLC, as seller, and
each of the MAG Sellers (the “Real Estate Purchase Agreement”).

Pursuant to the MAG Merger Agreement, on closing of the MAG Acquisition, MichiCann paid to
the MAG Sellers US $7,100,000 in cash and issued to the Sellers a non-transferable, fully paid
right to receive in the aggregate 17,133,597 Resulting Issuer Shares and 17,133,597 Resulting
Issuer Series 2 Preferred Shares.

3.3 Trends, Commitments, Events or Uncertainties

In accordance with the Canadian Securities Administrators’ Staff Notice 51-352, below is a table
of concordance that is intended to assist readers in identifying those parts of this Listing Statement
that address the disclosure expectations outlined in Staff Notice 51-352.

Industry Involvement Specific Disclosure Necessary to Fairly Present all Listing Statement Cross

All Issuers with U.S.
Marijuana-Related
Activities

Material Facts, Risks and Uncertainties

Describe the nature of the issuer’s involvement in
the U.S. marijuana industry and include the
disclosures indicated for at least one of the direct,
indirect and ancillary industry involvement types
noted in this table.

Prominently state that marijuana is illegal under
U.S. federal law and that enforcement of relevant
laws is a significant risk.

Discuss any statements and other available guidance
made by federal authorities or prosecutors regarding
the risk of enforcement action in any jurisdiction
where the issuer conducts U.S. marijuana-related
activities.

Outline related risks including, among others, the
risk that third-party service providers could suspend
or withdraw services and the risk that regulatory
bodies could impose certain restrictions on the
issuer’s ability to operate in the U.S.
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Reference

See “4.2 — Market Information,
Trends, Commitments, Events and
Uncertainties”

See “4.2 — Market Information,
Trends, Commitments, Events and
Uncertainties”

See “4.2 — Market Information,
Trends, Commitments, Events and
Uncertainties”

See “4.2 — Market Information,
Trends, Commitments, Events and
Uncertainties”

Section 17 — Risk Factors — U.S.
state regulatory uncertainty




U.S. Marijuana Issuers
with direct involvement
in cultivation or
distribution

Given the illegality of marijuana under U.S. federal
law, discuss the issuer’s ability to access both public
and private capital and indicate what financing
options are/are not available in order to support
continuing operations.

Quantify the issuer’s balance sheet and operating
statement exposure to U.S. marijuana-related
activities.

Disclose if legal advice has not been obtained, either
in the form of a legal opinion or otherwise,
regarding (a) compliance with applicable state
regulatory frameworks and (b) potential exposure
and implications arising from U.S. federal law.

Outline the regulations for U.S. states in which the
issuer operates and confirm how the issuer complies
with applicable licensing requirements and the
regulatory framework enacted by the applicable U.S.
state.

Discuss the issuer’s program for monitoring
compliance with U.S. state law on an ongoing basis,
outline internal compliance procedures and provide
a positive statement indicating that the issuer is in
compliance with U.S. state law and the related
licensing framework. Promptly disclose any non-
compliance, citations or notices of violation which
may have an impact on the issuer’s licence, business
activities or operations.
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See “4.1 — Narrative Description
of Business”

See Financial Statements of Tidal
Royalty Corp.

Legal advice has been obtained.

See “4.2 — Market Information,
Trends, Commitments, Events and
Uncertainties”

Section 17 — Risk Factors — U.S.
state regulatory uncertainty

See “4.2 — Market Information,
Trends, Commitments, Events and
Uncertainties”

Section 17 — Risk Factors — U.S.
state regulatory uncertainty




U.S. Marijuana Issuers  Qyline the regulations for U.S. states in which the

.w1th mdlrect‘ issuer’s investee(s) operate.
involvement in

cultivation or
distribution

Provide reasonable assurance, through either
positive or negative statements, that the investee’s
business is in compliance with applicable licensing
requirements and the regulatory framework enacted
by the applicable U.S. state. Promptly disclose any
non-compliance, citations or notices of violation, of
which the issuer is aware, that may have an impact
on the investee’s licence, business activities or
operations.

U.S. Marijuana Issuers Provide reasonable assurance, through either

with material ancillary positive or negative statements, that the applicable

involvement customer’s or investee’s business is in compliance
with applicable licensing requirements and the

regulatory framework enacted by the applicable U.S.

state.

While the Company currently
only has ancillary involvement in
the U.S. cannabis industry
through its financing
commitments to Diem, the
Company anticipates entering into
additional arrangements, which
may include non-controlling
investments in an entity directly
involved in the U.S. marijuana
industry, and the Company will
evaluate, monitor and reassess the
following disclosure, and any
related risks, on an ongoing basis.
The Company’s disclosure
regarding its marijuana-related
activities will be supplemented,
amended and communicated to
investors in public filings,
including in the event of a change
in the type of industry
involvement of the Company,
government policy changes or the
introduction of new or amended
guidance, laws or regulations
regarding marijuana regulation..

Although the Company’s
activities, and the Company
believes the activities of the
companies it finances, are
compliant with applicable U.S.
state and local law, strict
compliance with state and local
laws with respect to cannabis
would neither absolve the
Company or the entities the
Company finances of liability
under U.S. federal law, nor
provide a defense to any federal
proceeding which may be brought
against the Company

Section 17 — Risk Factors — U.S.
state regulatory uncertainty

See “4.2 — Market Information, Trends, Commitments, Events and Uncertainties”.
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4. NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS
4.1 Narrative Description of the Business

Tidal Royalty Corp

General

Issuer is a publicly traded company with a focus on investing and financing in businesses that
pertain in any way to cannabis which are carried out in compliance with applicable U.S. state laws
(“legal cannabis industry”). The Issuer anticipates entering into financing arrangements
involving royalties, debt and other forms of investments / acquisitions in private and public
companies in the US legal cannabis industry.

The Issuer’s business objective is to provide capital solutions to companies in the legal cannabis
industry with large-scale potential and a highly-skilled and experienced management team across
multiple industry verticals, including cultivation, processing and distribution. The Issuer is
actively pursuing opportunities to provide expansion capital to licensed, qualified operators across
multiple industry verticals including cultivation, processing and distribution.

Composition of Investment Portfolio

The nature and timing of the Issuer’s investments will depend, in part, on available capital at any
particular time and the investment opportunities identified and available to the Issuer. The Issuer
expects its investment activities will be primarily focused on enterprises located in the United
States, although investments may extend globally (including the purchase of securities listed on
foreign stock exchanges). The Issuer expects to invest solely in cannabis sector. The Issuer
believes that any risk of limited diversification may be mitigated by closely monitoring its
investments. The actual composition of the Issuer’s investment portfolio will vary over time
depending on its assessment of a number of factors, including the performance of U.S. cannabis
markets and credit risk.

Investment Objectives
The principal investment objectives of the Issuer are as follows:

to seek high return investment opportunities by providing project-specific financing to
public and private companies through a range of investment instruments;

to identify early stage opportunities with attractive risk/reward ratios;
to preserve its capital and limit the downside risk of its capital;
to achieve a reasonable rate of capital appreciation;

to minimize the risk associated with investments by obtaining appropriate security, where
possible; and

to generate predictable cash-flow.

The Issuer’s investment objectives, investment strategy and investment restrictions may be
amended from time to time on the recommendation of senior management and approval by the
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board of directors of the Issuer. The Issuer does not anticipate the declaration of dividends to
shareholders at this time and plans to re-invest the profits of its investments to further the growth
and development of the Issuer’s investment portfolio.

Investment Strategy

To achieve the objectives as stated above, while mitigating risk, the Issuer, when appropriate,
shall employ the following disciplines:

The Issuer will obtain detailed knowledge of the relevant business in which the
investment will be made, as well as the target company (“Investee”).

The Issuer will seek to retain management or consultants having specific industry
expertise within the industry or sector in which an investment is contemplated or has been
made.

The Issuer will work closely with the Investee’s management and board, and in
some cases, assist in sourcing experienced and qualified persons to add to the board and/or
management of the Investee. In certain circumstances, a representative of the Issuer may be
appointed to an Investee’s board of directors.

Investments may include:

o equity, bridge loans, secured loans, unsecured loans, convertible debentures,
warrants and options, royalties, streaming investments, net profit interests and other
hybrid instruments;

O acquisitions, partnership interests, or joint venture interests with Investees;

o acquisition of a business or its assets, directly or via a wholly owned subsidiary, and
subsequent managing or assisting in developing the underlying business;

o capital investment in private companies, and assistance in moving them to an
acquisition or merger transaction with a larger company or to the public stage
through initial public offering, reverse takeover or other liquidity event;

o early stage equity investments in public companies believed to have favourable
management and business; and

o where appropriate, acting as a third-party advisor for opportunities in target or other
companies, in exchange for a fee.

The Issuer will have flexibility on the return sought, while seeking to recapture its
capital within a reasonable period following the initial investment(s).

The Issuer will seek to maintain the ability to actively review and monitor all of its
investments on an ongoing basis. Investees will be required to provide continuous disclosure
of operations and financial status. From time to time, the Issuer may insist on board or
management representation on Investees.

The Issuer will continually seek liquidity opportunities for its investments, with a
view to optimizing the return on its investment; recognizing that no two investments will be
alike in terms of the duration held or the best means of exiting an investment.
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The Issuer may acquire interests in Investees within the framework of the above
guidelines, which from time to time may result in the Issuer holding a control or complete
ownership position in an Investee.

The Issuer may utilize the services of both independent organizations and securities
dealers to gain additional information on target investments where appropriate.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, from time to time, the board of directors may authorize such
investments outside of these disciplines as it sees fit for the benefit of the Issuer and its
shareholders.

Portfolio

The Issuer’s current portfolio companies are Diem Cannabis, Harborside and Lighthouse, the
financing transactions in respect of each are described further below.

Diem Cannabis

On August 31, 2018, the Issuer entered into a definitive agreement (the “Closing”) with VLF
Holdings LLC, an Oregon limited liability company d/b/a Diem Cannabis (“Diem”) to finance the
expansion of TDMA LLC, a Massachusetts subsidiary of Diem (“TDMA”) into Massachusetts.
Diem is an experienced licensed operator in the highly-competitive Oregon market. Pursuant to
the agreement, the Issuer will provide Diem Cannabis with up to US$12.5 million over three years
to develop and operate a large-scale cultivation and processing facility (the “Site”) and up to four
dispensaries (the “Dispensaries”) in Massachusetts (the “Diem Financing”). The Financing will
be in the form of (i) promissory notes advanced at various stages of development of operations in
the state; and (ii) the purchase price for real property acquisitions with respect to Sites and
Dispensaries. Newly-formed subsidiaries of RLTY Development MA 1 LLC will acquire title to
the real property purchased in respect of the Site and Dispensary acquisitions and will enter into
leases (“Leases”) with TDMA (or its nominee) with respect to their operation.

The Leases will be “triple net” and will include payments of (i) annual base rent; (ii) percentage
rent of net sales; and (iii) additional rent relating to the costs of property insurance, real estate
taxes and any maintenance and repair. Where Diem proposes to enter into a third-party lease in
respect of a dispensary (an “Operating Lease™) as opposed to the purchase of real property, Diem
will enter into the operating lease directly with the third-party lessor and will grant to us a
collateral assignment in such Operating Lease.

The stages of development of operations at which financing will be deployed are: (1) At the due
diligence phase when Sites and Dispensaries are being identified, investigated and preliminary
purchase and sale or lease agreements are being negotiated. Financing at this stage is expected to
be used by Diem to fund day-to-day operations including salaries of its staff, rent, legal fees, etc.
(2) At the purchase and sale or lease phase when definitive purchase and sale or lease agreements
are entered into. In the case of properties to be purchased, financing will be used by the applicable
Issuer subsidiary to purchase the property, make property insurance payments, pay legal fees, etc.
In the case of properties to be leased, financing is expected to be used by Diem to make lease
payments, any applicable deposits, insurance payments, legal fees, etc. (3) At the construction
phase when the Site and Dispensaries are retrofitted or constructed for their intended use.
Financing at this stage is expected to be used by Diem to fund construction costs, lease or
purchase
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equipment and chattels, and other expenditures required in order for the Site and Dispensaries to
become operational.

Currently, a property in respect of a Dispensary has been acquired in Springfield, MA (title
acquired by RLTY Development Springfield LLC) (the “Springfield Property”) and a property
in respect of a Site has been acquired in Orange, MA (title acquired by RLTY Development
Orange LLC) (the “Orange Property”).

The payment of rent pursuant to the Leases will only commence in respect of the Orange Property
and each Dispensary once they are constructed, licenses for manufacturing/sales have been
obtained and the locations are fully operational. Construction on the Springfield Property is
expected to commence imminently and is estimated to last three-to-five months. Construction on
the Orange Property is expected to commence imminently and is estimated to last 10-12 months.
Applications to the appropriate regulatory authorities in respect of property-specific licenses are
expected to commence late in 2019. As such, it is currently anticipated that the payment of rent
pursuant to the Lease in respect of the Springfield Property will commence in the fourth quarter of
2019 and the payment of rent pursuant to the Lease in respect of the Orange Property to
commence in the first quarter of 2020. However, construction projects may often involve
unforeseen delays or uncover unexpected issues beyond the control of Issuer, and it is difficult to
anticipate the length of time required to receive regulatory approval and for the required licenses
to be issued. As such, there can be no assurance that the payment of rent pursuant to the Leases in
respect of the Orange Property and the Springfield Property will commence on this anticipated
timeline or at all. As the identification and negotiations for the purchase or lease of additional
Dispensaries are ongoing, it is not yet known when such additional Leases will be entered into
and the payment of rent will commence.

The Financing will be secured by (i) guarantees of the payment and performance of all obligations
of TDMA by Diem and certain of its subsidiaries (the “Entity Guarantors”) and key individuals
(the “Individual Guarantors”); (ii) liens over all of the assets of the Entity Guarantors; (iii)
pledges by the Entity Guarantors and Individual Guarantors of all equity interests in Diem and/or
its subsidiaries; and (iv) in the case of Operating Leases, collateral assignments in such Operating
Leases.

During the period ended October 31, 2018, and pursuant to the Financing, the Issuer entered into a
promissory note (“Promissory Note”) agreement with TDMA for $434,933 (USD$334,190) as a
working capital advance for identification and negotiation of the purchase agreements for the Site
and Dispensaries. The Promissory Note bears interest of 10% per annum and is due on February
28,2021, unless carlier satisfied as described below.

Once the Site and Dispensaries are operational and the Leases have been entered into, the
Promissory Note and all subsequently issued promissory notes (including interest accrued
thereon) will be deemed satisfied in full. If the Site and Dispensaries are not operational within
2.5 years following the Closing, the Issuer will have the right to seek certain repayments,
including repayment of the Promissory Note and all subsequently issued promissory notes.

On August 23, 2019, the Company entered into a Termination of Framework Agreement (the
“Termination”) with Diem. Pursuant to the termination, the Company will convey titles of certain
properties (Note 7) to TDMA in exchange of two promissory notes (the “Property Promissory
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Note”) for US $372,500. The Framework Agreement Promissory Note bears interest of 10% per
annum and is due on August 31, 2021.

On September 26, 2019, the Company entered into a definitive Membership Interest Purchase
Agreement (the “MIPA”) with TDMA to acquire all of the issued and outstanding equity in
TDMA Orange, LLC, a Diem Cannabis subsidiary. Pursuant to the terms of the MIPA, the
Company obtains 100% interest in two cultivation licenses and a processing license in the county
of Orange, in the Commonwealth of the State of Massachusetts.

As consideration, the Company will forgive the Framework Agreement Promissory Note and
Property Promissory Note including accrued interest, cross collateralization and general security
arrangement.

Lighthouse Strategies LLC

On January 9, 2019, the Issuer’s wholly-owned subsidiary, RLTY Beverage 1 LLC, closed its
strategic private placement for $5-million (U.S.) of Series A membership units of Lighthouse
Strategies LLC (“Lighthouse”) and the concurrent financing fee agreement.

Pursuant to the financing fee agreement, the Issuer is entitled to 1% of the net sales of certain of
Lighthouse's beverage lines, including Cannabiniers, Two Roots Brewing Co. and Creative Waters
Beverage Company. Financing fees will accrue until Dec. 1, 2019, at which point the Issuer may
choose to receive such fees in cash or Series A membership units of Lighthouse. Thereafter,

financing fees are payable quarterly in cash. The term of the financing fee agreement is between
four and six years, depending on the achievement of certain milestones and includes acceleration
provisions in certain events (including a substantial asset divestiture, change of control or initial
public offering).

Harborside Inc.

On November 15, 2018, the Issuer purchased $3 million of units (the “Units”) of FLRish, Inc., the
parent company of Harborside (“Harborside”) and entered into a non-binding memorandum of
understanding (“MOU”) with Harborside to provide royalty financing to prospective “Harborside”
brand dispensary operators. Each Unit is comprised of (A) one 12% unsecured convertible
debenture, convertible into common shares of Harborside (i) at the option of the holder at any
time prior to the last business day immediately preceding the third anniversary date of the closing;
and (ii) automatically upon a Harborside going-public transaction, at a conversion price equal to
the lower of (i) $6.90; and (ii) a 10% discount to the price of the common shares of Harborside as
part of a qualifying transaction; and (B) 87 common share purchase warrants exercisable for a
period of two years following the closing into common shares of Harborside at an exercise price
of $8.60 (subject to acceleration in the event of a going public transaction).

Pursuant to the terms of the MOU, the Issuer has agreed to provide up to US$10 million in royalty
financing to prospective dispensary operators licensing the “Harborside” brand. Each potential
dispensary financing transaction will be assessed by the Issuer on a case-by-case basis and will be
subject to the satisfactory completion of due diligence by the Issuer and the consummation of
definitive documentation with the prospective dispensary operator.

During the year ended July 31, 2019, Harborside completed a reverse-take over (“RTO”) of
Lineage Grow Company. On June 10, 2019 Harborside commenced trading on the Canadian
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Securities Exchange under the symbol “HBOR”. Following the completion of the RTO, the
debentures and accrued interest were converted into 567,205 common shares with an estimated
fair value of $ 3,573,392. The Company recognized a realized gain on change in fair value of
investments in equity investments and convertible debentures of $865,790 for the year ended July
31,2019.

MichiCann

MichiCann, operating as Red White & Bloom, is an investment company with a focus on the US
cannabis industry. MichiCann’s current investments are the PharmaCo Debenture and its rights
under the PharmaCo Put/Call Option Agreement.

On January 4, 2019, MichiCann entered into the Put-Call Option Agreement with the
shareholders of PharmaCo, which if exercised and subject to regulatory approval, would result in
MichiCann acquiring all the issued and outstanding shares of PharmaCo. (See General
Development of MichiCann’s Business — Agreements with PharmaCo).

MichiCann holds an 8% senior secured convertible debenture (the “Debenture”) of its Michigan
based investee (“PharmaCo”), a private company incorporated under the laws of the State
of Michigan.

On February 25, 2019, Tidal issued the $15,000,000 MichiCann Debenture. During the period
ended October 31, 2019, the Issuer amended the MichiCann Debenture and advanced an
additional US $2,000,000 to fund MichiCann working capital.

On January 10, 2020, MichiCann closed the acquisition of Mid-American Growers, Inc. pursuant
to an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated October 9, 2019 as amended on November 1, 2019 and
January 9, 2020 by way of a merger between MichiCann’s wholly-owned subsidiary, RWB
Acquisition Sub, Inc., and Mid-American Growers Inc. under the laws of Delaware to form MAG.

On January 10, 2020, MichiCann’s wholly-owned subsidiary, RWB Illinois acquired 142 acres of
land located at 14240 Greenhouse Avenue, Granville, Illinois. (For a more detailed description of
these agreements, see General Development of MichiCann’s Business — Agreements with MAG).

About the Michigan Market:

The Cannabis market in Michigan (one of the 10 largest U.S. states by population) is in excess of
US$1.36B and has the second highest medical cannabis patient population (highest % per capita in
the U.S). Recreational approvals by referendum took place in the Nov. 2018 election, with
availability expected in late 2020.

Licensing:

All non-licensed dispensaries under Michigan’s prior program have been ordered to cease
operations in 2019. Michigan Medical LPs will have a two-year head start for recreational
cannabis sales over new license applicants (who will likely not be able to apply until January
2022). This first mover advantage is unprecedented.

Prior to the current state licensing regime there were a number of licensed operators that relied on
municipal approvals to provide cannabis to medical patients. They operated under an Emergency
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Access to Medical Marijuana Act. The dispensaries were supplied by “Caregivers”. The
Caregivers were licensed to grow a small number of plants and could process cannabis for sale to
the medical patients through dispensaries, of note, there was no lab testing of product. This act
was replaced with a State based licensing regime that required more stringent approvals and lab
testing of product.

Under the new State based Medical Marijuana licensing there are currently 5 types of cannabis
licenses issued for Medical Marijuana in the State of Michigan:

1) Grow/Cultivation (equivalent to a licensed producer in Canada),
a. There are three classes of licenses for growers which are:
i) Class A — growing of up to 500 plants;

i) Class B - growing up to 1,000 plants; and

iii) Class C - growing up to 1,500 plants. The purpose of the
Class C grow licenses is to have a more efficient way for the
state department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs (LARA)
to keep track of large grow operations in the state of
Michigan. Large grow operators are allowed to apply and be
issued multiple Class C licenses for a single location (i.e you
could hold 10 Class C licenses and grow up to 15,000 plants)

2) Processing,

3) Provisioning Centers (dispensary equivalent) - which can include a delivery service
license as well,

4) Transportation, and
5) Laboratory.

License holders of any of 1 through 3 above are not able to hold a license for transportation or
laboratory testing.

In addition, previously operating dispensaries, that did not receive approval under the new
guidelines, have been ordered to cease operations within 60 days of their being denied a State
license or immediately if they have not applied; in essence requiring them to close in 2019. The
Caregivers are allowed to continue until at least the end of 2019 to allow for continued supply of
product but are required to pass lab testing of their product and must sell to a Licensed Grow and
not directly to dispensaries.

The Recreational market was approved by referendum in November 2018 and brought into law in
early 2019. It was decided by State legislators, and incorporated into law, that only existing
Medical license holders under 1-5 listed above, will be allowed to apply for recreational licenses
for a period of 24 months commencing on the date that recreational licenses are open for
applicants.
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PharmaCo has been granted a Step 1 prequalification by the Medical Marijuana Licensing Board
of the State of Michigan and has been awarded multiple municipal and state approvals for grower
permits (cultivation), manufacturing (including extraction and derivative manufacturing) and
provisioning centers (dispensaries). Current approvals allow for stacking of Michigan “C
Licenses” providing the PharmaCo with a unique opportunity to establish itself as one of the
largest licensed producer of cannabis in Michigan state.

PharmaCo:

The company employs an independent full team of experts in constructing and retrofitting of
large-scale cannabis production facilities. Pharmaco’s management team shall utilize years of
experience in cannabis standardization to establish themselves as the premier producer of quality
cannabis strains. Michicann does not have the power to direct the relevant activities of PharmaCo
and does not have any involvement in the governance or overall management of its activities.

PharmaCo has been State pre-qualified for processing licenses and has completed State and City
approvals for large scale processing operations. This will allow the company to produce various
oils, edibles and other cannabis derivatives. The company intends on constructing multiple
extraction and processing facilities for the production of cannabis derivative products in each state
that it operates in.

PharmaCo has purchased an 85,000 square foot facility to serve as one of its first large scale
indoor cultivation and manufacturing centers. Initial plans for this facility will include the ability
to produce in excess of 10,000,000 grams of flower per year with first harvest, post retrofitting to
a perpetual harvest facility, expected in Q4 2019, and will include state of the art extraction
capabilities in the same facility. PharmaCo has also purchased two smaller vertically integrated
grow and manufacturing operations as part of its dispensary acquisitions as well as outdoor grow
capabilities.

In all, PharmaCo controls over 600,000 square feet of grow capacity and is looking to further
expand that in calendar 2019.

PharmaCo, was pre-qualified for multiple provisioning center (dispensary) licenses and has
acquired and/or executed agreements to acquire a number of additional locations. In all Pharmaco
is operating 11 Provisioning Centers as of May 2019 and intends to have at least 25 operating
prior to yearend 2019. MichiCann plans to expand into additional states with a focus on Florida
(which allows for 30 dispensaries per license), California,Arizona, Pennsylvania, Nevada and
Ohio.

With 11 existing stores and a minimum of 25 locations operating by Q4 of 2019, Red White &
Bloom has established itself as the largest operator of dispensaries in Michigan

Plans are underway to roll out unified corporate branding to allow for even greater efficiency and
scaling outside Michigan.

About the Illinois Hemp/CBD Market:

On January 10, 2020 MichiCann completed its acquisition of MAG by way of the merger of RWB
Acquisition Sub, Inc. and Mid-American Growers, Inc. pursuant to which it acquired the largest
premium Hemp greenhouse in the world for the purpose of entering the CBD market. The facility,
recently licensed for Hemp production, consist of a 3.6 million square foot modernized
greenhouse
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with tens of thousands of square feet in ancillary structures to support its hemp CBD production in
the State of Illinois.

Industrial hemp production in Illinois was authorized in the Industrial Hemp Act [505 ILCS 89]
effective August 26, 2018 and final regulations governing Industrial Hemp licensing in Illinois
were adopted on April 29, 2019.  Applications for industrial hemp production licenses now
being accepted and are processed on a first come, first-served basis. A maximum number of
licenses has not yet been set. Industrial hemp is defined in Illinois as Cannabis sativa L. with a
delta-9 THC concentration of not more than 0.3% on a dry weight basis.

In the United States, Congress and the President have signed the 2018 Farm Bill into law, which
removes hemp from the Controlled Substances Act (CSA) and is now considered an agricultural
product. As such, Interstate commerce is legal and being conducted and even shipment via the
mail system is allowed. Additionally, banking institutions and the insurance industry can now
support companies in the hemp industry.

With the US now taking a global leadership position in regulating hemp derived CBD,
management believes that CBD will become increasingly accepted worldwide for uses that range
from dietary aids to pet health and come in a variety of forms.

The Brightfield Group projects about 50M projected consumers in the U.S., with projected
spending of $35 to $300 per month per customer. Overall, the Brightfield Group has forecasted a
$50B US Market by 2029.

2018 Farm Bill

In December 2018, President Trump signed the 2018 Farm Bill, which contained certain
provisions legalizing the production, extraction, interstate commerce of, etc. industrial hemp.
Industrial hemp is defined as hemp which contains less than 0.3% tetrahydrocannabinol (“THC”),
the cannabinoid most commonly associated with intoxication which is contained within cannabis
and hemp plants, on a dry weight basis.

This bill legalizes U.S. hemp for production and sale across state lines for research and
commercial uses for all hemp that meets all the following criteria:

+ the hemp contains less than 0.3% THC;
« the producer of the hemp is licensed by the state where it was grown; and
« the state where it was grown has a hemp program approved by the USDA.

Each state is allowed to submit a hemp regulatory program for USDA approval. The USDA will
be working on reviewing submitted programs and constructing a hemp regulatory program for all
states with no submitted program. No programs are currently approved by the USDA. Once a
program is approved, producers may apply for licenses under the program and sell hemp legally
for all purposes after the license is obtained. Hemp is a genetically related plant to cannabis and
has long been prohibited based at least in part on its similarity to cannabis, which tends to contain
significantly higher amounts of THC than hemp. Hemp, unlike cannabis plants which tend to be
richer in THC, is the most common source of cannabidiol (“CBD”). Research suggests that CBD
is a non-psychoactive cannabinoid which may have several therapeutic effects. CBD is
increasingly
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becoming popular as a wellness product, and its usage as an adjunct to THC is increasing as well.
Management believes hemp legalization is positive for a number of reasons: (1) CBD source
material will likely become cheaper, leading to lower cost basis in certain CBD infused products;
and (2) hemp legalization suggests liberalizing legislator and executive attitudes towards
cannabis.

Resulting Issuer
(i) Organization
The Resulting Issuer is an Investment Company active in the U.S. legal cannabis and hemp sector.

(ii) Business Objectives

It is anticipated that the Company will predominately focus its investments, with the strength of
its world-class team, on the major markets in the United States, including Michigan, Illinois,
California, Massachusetts and Florida in respect to cannabis and the entire US for legal hemp
CBD based products.

See item 4.1 above for a description of the Resulting Issuer’s business and objectives.
Short-term Objectives.

The principal milestones that must occur during the next 12-month period for the business
objectives described above to be accomplished are:
- Complete the transaction to acquire and/or invest in the Illinois operations

Complete a financing for the company

Enter into an agreement for the acquisition/investment of a Florida license

Close on a number of existing asset purchase agreements to further strengthen its leadership

position on Michigan

Launch a series of branded products based on proprietary genetics and/or formulations

Long-term Objectives.

RWB’s long term objectives are to continue to expand on its portfolio and extend additional
financing in hopes of establishing significantly scaled operations in each state in the United States
that it operates within. Establishing critical mass will allow the company to benefit from
operational efficiencies only afforded to companies that are able to operate at scale.

RWB’s investments expect to utilize its initial established retail presence as well as its access to
broader distribution channels to establish a number of consumer brands in the cannabis, derivative
and CBD markets. The company’s experience in standardization of cannabis and derivatives
provides a significant competitive advantage to allow for the company to ultimately serve a global
market.

RWB through its subsidiaries and investments is targeting a national US expansion and is aiming
to achieve a retail presence of 100+ locations by year end of 2020 and plans for a minimum of 6
million square feet of cultivation across the United States. Management believes that Red White &
Bloom Brands Inc. has the potential to be the largest national player by revenue in the U.S.
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Total Funds
Total Funds Available

The pro forma working capital position of the Resulting Issuer as at April 24, 2020, giving effect
to the Transaction as if it had been completed on that date, was approximately $60,683,774.

As at January 31, 2020 (the end of the Issuer’s most recent interim period for which financial
statements have been published), the Issuer had working capital of $17,394,782. The Resulting
Issuer expects to have positive cash flow from the sale of certain investments or equity financing
to fund its ongoing operations in its existing markets.

The consolidated pro forma balance sheet of the Resulting Issuer, which gives effect to the
Transaction as if it had been completed on January 31, 2020, is attached hereto as Appendix “T”.

Purpose of Funds

The Resulting Issuer intends to spend its available funds on further investments into the US legal
cannabis marketplace and for general corporate purposes. The estimated use of funds is set forth
below.

Use of Available Funds $
Working capital on hand as at April 24, 60,683,774
2020
Funds to complete 22,103,000
investment/acquisition targets
Funds for capital expenditure advances 5,004,883
to targets (dispensaries, manufacturing, 4,813,720
branded products and hemp) 4,316,040
General working capital
Unallocated working capital 16,237,643
Total use of available Funds 60,683,774

Notwithstanding the foregoing, there may be circumstances where, for sound business reasons, a
reallocation of funds may be necessary for the Resulting Issuer to achieve its objectives. The
Resulting Issuer may require additional funds in order to fulfill all of its expenditure requirements
to meet its business objectives and may either issue additional securities or incur debt. There can
be no assurance that additional funding required by the Resulting Issuer will be available, if
required. However, it is anticipated that the available funds will be sufficient to satisfy the
Resulting Issuer's objectives over the next 12 months.

4.2 Market Information, Trends, Commitments, Events and Uncertainties
State Legislative Trends

While currently a controlled substance under the Federal CSA, cannabis is legalized and regulated
by various states. As of the date of this listing statement, 30 states and Washington, DC have
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legalized medical cannabis. Nine states and Washington, DC have legalized adult recreational
cannabis use. The trend across the United States has been to legalize cannabis for medicinal
purposes in most cases, and recreational use in some cases.

During the November 8, 2016 election California, Maine, Massachusetts, and Nevada voted to
legalize adult-use cannabis and Arkansas, Florida, Montana, and North Dakota voted to legalize
medical cannabis. In June 2018 Oklahoma legalized medical cannabis. In November 2018, Utah
and Missouri will vote on the legalization of medical cannabis, while Michigan and North Dakota
will vote on legalizing cannabis for recreational use.

State Regulatory Infrastructure

Development of state programs for the regulation of medical or adult-use cannabis is state-
specific. Following the approval of medical or adult-use cannabis, some states have developed the
regulatory infrastructure quickly, while other states have taken several years to develop such
systems. State-specific advisory boards and committees have been created with the mandate to
manage the implementation of the new industries.

According to Marijuana Business Daily, the average amount of time that elapsed between the
legalization of medical cannabis sales and the opening of the first dispensaries in six states that
recently commenced sales was 28 months. Also, according to Marijuana Business Daily, there are
signs that the industry is maturing, and states are increasingly able to efficiently and quickly
establish regulatory frameworks following legalization, especially where adult-use cannabis is
legalized in states where regulated medical-use cannabis systems are already in place. For
example, according to Marijuana Business Daily, the average amount of time that elapsed
between voters approving adult-use cannabis production and sales to the opening of the first retail
stores in Colorado, Washington and Oregon was 15 months.

Pennsylvania and Ohio offer two contrasting instances of the implementation of state regulatory
infrastructure having both committed to a two-year implementation timeframe at the time of
legalization. The launch of Pennsylvania’s medical program has largely been on-time.
Successfully opened medical dispensaries within the two-year target, the state is now working to
bolster the supply chain by issuing more licenses. Ohio on the other hand missed their deadline of
September 8th, 2018 to have implemented a fully operational supply chain. Despite the longer
than expected rollout, Ohio continues to move ahead evaluating and issuing licenses.

Even where regulatory frameworks for cannabis production and sales are in place, states tend to
revise these rules over time. These revisions often impact sales, making it difficult to predict the
potential of new markets. States may, for example, restrict the number of cannabis businesses
permitted which can limit growth of the cannabis industry in those states. Alternatively, states
may relax their initial regulations relating to cannabis production and sales, which would likely
accelerate growth of the cannabis industry in such states. A common adjustment to medical
programs is the addition of qualifying medical conditions. Several states including Michigan, New
York, Connecticut, and Arizona have added new qualifying conditions following initial
legislature. Common among those new qualifying conditions are opioid replacement and chronic
and severe or intractable pain. These conditions affect a wide group of people and are catalysts for
medical cannabis adoption.

Effects of Government Regulations
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In the U.S., cannabis is largely regulated at the state level. To the Company’s knowledge and as of
the date of this Listing Statement, 30 states and Washington, DC have legalized medical cannabis,
while nine states and Washington, DC have legalized recreational cannabis use. Notwithstanding
the permissive regulatory environment of medical or recreational cannabis at the state level in
certain states, cannabis continues to be categorized as a Schedule I controlled substance under the
CSA and as such violates federal law in the U.S. As a result of the conflicting views between state
legislatures and the federal government regarding cannabis, financings with cannabis businesses
in the U.S. are subject to inconsistent legislation and regulation.

The federal government of the U.S. has specifically reserved the right to enforce federal law in
regard to the sale and disbursement of medical or adult-use use marijuana even if state law
sanctioned such sale and disbursement. It is presently unclear whether the U.S. federal
government intends to enforce federal laws relating to cannabis where the conduct at issue is legal
under applicable state law. This risk was further heightened by the revocation of a memorandum
(the “Cole Memorandum”), acknowledging that although cannabis is a controlled substance at
the federal level, several U.S. states have enacted laws relating to cannabis for medical purposes,
in January 2018.

The inconsistent regulation of cannabis at the federal and state levels was addressed in 2013 when
then Deputy Attorney General, James Cole, authored the Cole Memorandum acknowledging that
although cannabis is a controlled substance at the federal level, several U.S. states have enacted
laws relating to cannabis for medical purposes. The Cole Memorandum noted that in jurisdictions
that have enacted laws legalizing cannabis in some form and that have also implemented strong
and effective regulatory and enforcement systems to control the cultivation, distribution, sale and
possession of cannabis, conduct in compliance with those laws and regulations is less likely to be
a priority at the federal level. However, the Department of Justice (“DOJ”) has never provided
specific guidelines for what regulatory and enforcement systems it deems sufficient under the
Cole Memorandum standard.

However, on January 4, 2018 the Cole Memorandum was revoked by Attorney General Jeff
Sessions. While this did not create a change in federal law, as the Cole Memorandum was not
itself law, the revocation added to the uncertainty of U.S. federal enforcement of the CSA in states
where cannabis use is regulated. Sessions also issued a one-page memorandum known as the
“Sessions Memorandum.” This confirmed the rescission of the Cole Memorandum and explained
that the Cole Memorandum was “unnecessary” due to existing general enforcement guidance as
set forth in the U.S. Attorney’s Manual (the “USAM”) The USAM enforcement priorities, like
those of the Cole Memorandum, are also based on the federal government’s limited resources, and
include “law enforcement priorities set by the Attorney General,” the “seriousness” of the alleged
crimes, the “deterrent effect of criminal prosecution,” and “the cumulative impact of particular
crimes on the community.”

While the Sessions Memorandum does emphasize that marijuana is a Schedule I controlled
substance and states the statutory view that it is a “dangerous drug and that marijuana activity is a
serious crime,” it does not otherwise guide U.S. Attorneys that the prosecution of marijuana-
related offenses is now a DOJ priority. Furthermore, the Sessions Memorandum explicitly
describes itself as a guide to prosecutorial discretion. Such discretion is firmly in the hands of U.S.
Attorneys in deciding whether or not to prosecute marijuana-related offenses. U.S. Attorneys
could individually continue to exercise their discretion in a manner similar to that displayed under
the Cole

39



Memorandum’s guidance. Dozens of U.S. Attorneys across the country have affirmed their
commitment to proceeding in this manner, or otherwise affirming that their view of federal
enforcement priorities has not changed, although a few have displayed greater ambivalence. In
California, at least one U.S. Attorney has made comments indicating a desire to enforce the CSA.
Adam Braverman, Interim U.S. Attorney for the Southern District of California, has stated that the
rescission of the Cole Memorandum “returns trust and local control to federal prosecutors” to
enforce the CSA. Additionally, Greg Scott, the Interim U.S. Attorney for the Eastern District of
California, has a history of prosecuting medical cannabis activity; and his office published a
statement that cannabis remains illegal under federal law, and that his office would “evaluate
violations of those laws in accordance with our district’s federal law enforcement priorities and
resources.”

The Rohrabacher Blumenauer Appropriations Amendment (originally the Rohrabacher Farr
Amendment) has been included in federal annual spending bills since 2014. This amendment
restricts the Department of Justice from using federal funds to prevent states with medical
cannabis regulations from implementing laws that authorize the use, distribution, possession or
cultivation of medical cannabis. In 2017, Senator Patrick Leahy (D-Vermont) introduced a parity
amendment to H.R.1625—a vehicle for the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2018, preventing
federal prosecutors from using federal funds to impede the implementation of medical cannabis
laws enacted at the state level, subject to Congress restoring such funding (“Leahy
Amendment”). The Leahy Amendment was set to expire with the 2018 fiscal year on September
30, 2018, however, Congress approved a nine-week continuing resolution from the 2018 fiscal
year (the “Continuing Resolution”). The Continuing Resolution has the result of providing
ongoing and consistent protection for the medical cannabis industry until December 7, 2018.
Congress has been negotiating the 2019 fiscal year appropriations since February 2018. The much
relied on appropriations protecting the medical cannabis industry was renewed in both the House
and Senate versions of the 2019 fiscal year appropriations bills, with the expectation that the
language will be enacted in the final 2019 fiscal year appropriations bill. However, it should be
noted that there is no assurance that the final 2019 fiscal year appropriations bill will include
appropriations protecting the medical cannabis industry.

American courts have construed these appropriations bills to prevent the federal government from
prosecuting individuals when those individuals comply with state medical cannabis laws.
However, because this conduct continues to violate federal law, American courts have observed
that should Congress at any time choose to appropriate funds to fully prosecute the CSA, any
individual or business, even those that have fully complied with state law, could be prosecuted for
violations of federal law. If Congress restores funding, for example by declining to include the
Rohrabacher Blumenauer Appropriations Amendment in the 2019 fiscal year appropriations bill,
or by failing to pass necessary budget legislation and causing another government shutdown, the
government will have the authority to prosecute individuals for violations of the law before it
lacked funding under the five-year statute of limitations applicable to non-capital CSA violations.
Additionally, it is important to note that the appropriations protections only apply to medical
cannabis operations and provide no protection against businesses operating in compliance with a
state’s recreational cannabis laws.

Further, there can be no assurance that state laws legalizing and regulating the sale and use of
cannabis will not be repealed or overturned, or that local governmental authorities will not limit
the applicability of state laws within their respective jurisdictions. It is also important to note that
local
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and city ordinances may strictly limit and/or restrict the distribution of cannabis in a manner that
will make it extremely difficult or impossible to transact business in the cannabis industry. If the
U.S. federal government begins to enforce federal laws relating to cannabis in states where the
sale and use of cannabis is currently legal, or if existing state laws are repealed or curtailed, then
the Company’s financing of such businesses would be materially and adversely affected
notwithstanding that the Company may not be directly engaged in the sale or distribution of
cannabis.

Violations of any federal laws and regulations could result in significant fines, penalties,
administrative sanctions, convictions or settlements arising from civil proceedings conducted by
either the federal government or private citizens, or criminal charges, including, but not limited to,
disgorgement of profits, cessation of business activities or divestiture. This could have a material
adverse effect on the Company, including its reputation and ability to conduct business, the listing
of its securities on any stock exchange, its financial position, operating results, profitability or
liquidity or the market price of its publicly traded shares. In addition, it is difficult for the
Company to estimate the time or resources that would be needed for the investigation of any such
matters or its final resolution because, in part, the time and resources that may be needed are
dependent on the nature and extent of any information requested by the applicable authorities
involved, and such time or resources could be substantial. The approach to the enforcement of
cannabis laws may be subject to change or may not proceed as previously outlined.

The Company will continue to monitor, evaluate and re-assess the regulatory framework in each
state in which it may hold a financing, and the federal laws applicable thereto, on an ongoing
basis; and will update its continuous disclosure regarding government policy changes or new or
amended guidance, laws or regulations regarding cannabis in the U.S.

The Company is subject to a variety of laws and regulations in Canada and the U.S. that involve
money laundering, financial recordkeeping and proceeds of crime, including the Bank Secrecy
Act, the USA PATRIOT Act, the Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Terrorist Financing
Act (Canada), as amended and the rules and regulations thereunder, and any related or similar
rules, regulations or guidelines, issued, administered or enforced by governmental authorities in
the U.S. and Canada. Further, under U.S. federal law, banks or other financial institutions that
provide a cannabis business with a chequing account, debit or credit card, small business loan, or
any other service could be found guilty of money laundering, aiding and abetting, or conspiracy.

Despite these laws, the U.S. Treasury Department’s Financial Crimes Enforcement Network
(“FinCEN”) issued guidance on February 14, 2014 outlining the pathways for financial
institutions to bank marijuana businesses in compliance with federal enforcement priorities (the
“FinCEN Memorandum”). The FinCEN Memorandum states that in some circumstances, it is
permissible for banks to provide services to cannabis-related businesses without risking
prosecution for violation of federal money laundering laws. It refers to supplementary guidance in
the 2014 Cole Memo issued to federal prosecutors relating to the prosecution of money laundering
offenses predicated on cannabis-related violations of the CSA on the same day. The 2014 Cole
Memo was rescinded as of January 4, 2018, along with the Cole Memorandum, removing
guidance that enforcement of applicable financial crimes was not a DOJ priority.

Attorney General Sessions’ revocation of the Cole Memorandum and the 2014 Cole Memo has
not affected the status of the FinCEN Memorandum, nor has the Department of the Treasury given
any indication that it intends to rescind the FinCEN Memorandum itself. Though it was originally
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intended for the 2014 Cole Memo and the FinCEN Memorandum to work in tandem, the FinCEN
Memorandum appears to remain in effect as a standalone document which explicitly lists the eight
enforcement priorities originally cited in the rescinded Cole Memorandum. Although the FinCEN
Memorandum remains intact, indicating that the Department of the Treasury and FinCEN intend
to continue abiding by its guidance, it is unclear whether the current administration will continue
to follow the guidelines of the FinCEN Memorandum.

Overall, since the production and possession of cannabis is illegal under U.S. federal law, there is
a strong argument that banks cannot accept for deposit funds from businesses involved with the
cannabis industry. Consequently, businesses involved in the cannabis industry often have
difficulty finding a bank willing to accept their business. As the Company will have a material
ancillary involvement in the U.S. legal cannabis industry, the Company may find that it is unable
to open bank accounts with certain Canadian financial institutions, which in turn may make it
difficult to operate the Company’s business.

Proceeds of the Company’s financings may be considered proceeds of crime due to the fact that
cannabis remains illegal federally in the U.S. This may restrict the ability of the Company to
declare or pay dividends, effect other distributions or subsequently repatriate such funds back to
Canada. Furthermore, while the Company has no current intention to declare or pay dividends on
its Shares in the foreseeable future, the Company may decide or be required to suspend declaring
or paying dividends without advance notice and for an indefinite period of time.

Public Opinion

The increase in state legalization of cannabis use is largely a result of changing public opinion in
the United States. According to an October 2017 poll conducted by Gallup, 64% of Americans
think that the use of cannabis should be made legal, the highest level in the 48 years that Gallup
has conducted the poll. Further, in the 2016 Gallup poll, support among adults aged 18 to 34
increased from 35% to 77% between 2005 and 2016 and support among adults aged 35 to 54
increased from 35% to 61% over the same period. In addition, according to a recent Quinnipiac
University Poll, 94% of U.S. voters support the medical use of cannabis if recommended by a
physician.

Industry Outlook

Due to increases in state legalization and shifting public opinion, legal cannabis industry sales
have grown substantially in recent years. According to ArcView Market Research (ArcView),
2018 legal cannabis sales are expected between $8.5 billion to $11 billion. Furthermore, sales are
projected to reach $23.4 billion by 2022, which is over a 22% compound annual growth rate for
the four years from 2018 to 2022.

ArcView expects the distribution of industry sales between medical and adult-use to shift
substantially between 2017 and 2022 as more states legalize adult-use cannabis. Adult-use sales
were approximately $2.6 billion, equating to over 30% of total industry sales. By 2022, adult-use
sales are expected to increase to $15.7 billion or 67% of total industry sales.

Competitive Conditions and Environment

As an Investment Company the Resulting Issuer is well positioned to participate in the rapid
evolution of the cannabis industry through its ability to finance many segments of the industry.
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The Resulting Issuer plans to be heavily diversified in the various industry assets, providing it with
the adaptability required to thrive in this dynamic and fast-changing industry.

Within the short period of legal adult use, these increasing cannabis sales and further steps toward
industry regulation and legalization have prompted a push toward increasingly bigger waves of
investment and innovation in the cannabis industry. There is also a strong opportunity for
products, brands, research, and related services that will complement the cannabis market. The
Resulting Issuer seeks to leverage its operational expertise, industry knowledge, and diverse assets
to capitalize on the so-called “green-rush” in a regulated marijuana industry. Medical marijuana
opportunities are becoming increasingly available as new jurisdictions move towards establishing
new or improved medical marijuana systems. As Canada has developed an enviable regulatory
model, companies acting within that framework have expertise, knowledge and potentially
product to share with the global community.

Despite the fast growing market for legalized cannabis in both Canada and the U.S., there remains
a significant lack of traditional sources of bank lending or venture and private equity capital, as
well as an absence of traditional management expertise and advisory services. This is primarily
because of the regulatory and legal challenges that cannabis continues to pose in both Canada and
the United States. In addition to the problems posed by scarcity of capital, many holders of
cannabis licenses lack traditional business experience and skills and desire value added capital
that can add to the skill and experience of their management team. The Resulting Issuer is looking
to fill this market gap by providing both capital and operational expertise.

4.3 Outstanding Asset-based Securities
This information is not applicable to the Issuer.
4.4 Mineral Projects
This information is not applicable to the Issuer.
45 Oiland Gas Operations

This information is not applicable to the Issuer.
5. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
5.1 Annual Information

Issuer

The following table sets forth selected financial information for the Issuer for the six months
ended January 31, 2020 and the three most recently completed financial years ended July 31, 2019
(“fiscal 2019”), July 31, 2018 (“fiscal 2018”) and July 31, 2017 (“fiscal 2017”). The financial
information below has been prepared in accordance with IFRS.
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F h iod ded
or the year (period) ende January 31, g1 35 2019 July 31,2018 July 31,2017

(Expressed in Canadian 2020 . . .
dollars) (unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)
Revenue Nil Nil Nil nil
Total expenses $1,026,346 $18,612,517 $7,825,089 $32,424
Net loss $788,090 $18,612,517 $7,825,089 $32,424
Basic and diluted loss per share $0.00 $0.07 $0.26 $0.01
Total assets $24,404,335 $24,191,661 $34,566,033 $22,334
Total liabilities $601,502 $357,887 $340,042 $157,991
Working Capital (deficit) $23,802,833 $23,833,774 34,225,991 ($135,657)
f;;gi?:;g;s equity $23802833  ¢r3833774 34225991 ($135,657)
Dividends Nil Nil Nil nil
Number of Common Shares

outstanding 304,572,662 292,607,662 227,787,662 2,843,636

Issuer’s Management Discussion and Analysis

The Issuer’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the six months ended January 31, 2020
and for fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017 are attached as Appendix “B” and “D ” respectively and
should be read in conjunction with the financial statements of the Issuer for the same period, and
the notes thereto.

Certain information included in the Issuer’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis is forward-
looking and based upon assumptions and anticipated results that are subject to uncertainties.
Should one or more of these uncertainties materialize or should the underlying assumptions prove
incorrect, actual results may vary significantly from those expected. See “Caution Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements” for further details.

MichiCann

The following table sets forth selected financial information for MichiCann for the most recently
completed year’s ended December 31, 2019, December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017. The
financial information below has been prepared in accordance with IFRS.

For the year (period) ended

(gt T e December 31, December 31, December 31,

dollars) 2019 (audited) 2018 (audited) 2017 (audited)
Revenue - - -
Total expenses 12,519,900 2,131,039 32,686
Net loss 12,519,900 2,131,039 32,686
Basic and diluted loss per share 0.16 0.06 32,686
Total assets 107,979,469 34,937,686 624,638
Total liabilities 55,542,045 161,937 32,686
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Working Capital (deficit) (16,071,433) 34,775,749 38,265

Shareholders’ equity 52,437,424

(deficiency) (2,163,725) (32,686)
Dividends - - -
Number of Shares outstanding 84,211,752 74,222,182 1

MichiCann’s Management Discussion and Analysis

MichiCann Management’s Discussion and Analysis for year ended December 31, 2019 is attached
as Appendix “H” and the fiscal 2018 is attached as Appendix “F” and should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements of MichiCann for the same period, and the notes thereto.

Certain information included in MichiCann’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis is forward-
looking and based upon assumptions and anticipated results that are subject to uncertainties.
Should one or more of these uncertainties materialize or should the underlying assumptions prove
incorrect, actual results may vary significantly from those expected. See “Caution Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements” for further details.

5.2 Quarterly Information
Issuer

The following tables reflect the summary of quarterly results for the Issuer:

Three Months Ended Revenue Net Loss Loss per Share
January 31, 2020 Nil 233,120 (0.00)
October 31, 2019 Nil 528,201 (0.00)
July 31,2019 Nil 18,611,721 (0.07)
April 30,2019 Nil 5,739,365 (0.04)
January 31, 2019 Nil 1,547,604 (0.01)
October 31, 2018 Nil 3,853,748 (0.02)
July 31, 2018 Nil 6,807,138 (0.06)
April 30,2018 Nil 742,747 (0.26)
January 31, 2018 Nil 219,127 (0.08)
October 31, 2017 Nil 56,077 (0.02)
July 31, 2017 Nil 24,854 (0.00)
April 30,2017 Nil 5,390 (0.00)
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MichiCann

Since inception, MichiCann has not prepared quarterly interim financial statements prior to the
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019. See 5.1 Annual Information”.

5.3 Dividends

Neither the Issuer nor MichiCann have paid dividends in the past. The Resulting Issuer does not
intend, and is not required, to pay any dividends on the Resulting Issuer Shares. Any decision to
pay dividends will be made on the basis of the Issuer’s earnings, financial requirements and other
conditions existing at the time. Holders of Series II Preferred Shares shall be entitled to receive,
and the Resulting Issuer shall pay thereon, a fixed dividend equal to 5.0% per annum, calculated
monthly and payable in Series II Preferred Shares. Upon conversion of Series II Preferred Shares,
the dividend shall be calculated pro rata as at the most recently completed month prior to the
conversion date. Holders of Series II Preferred Shares shall be entitled to receive such dividends
paid and distributions made to the holders of the Common Shares to the same extent as if such
Holders had converted each Series II Preferred Share held by them into Common Shares and had
held such Common Shares on the record date for such dividends and distributions. See “/7. RISK
FACTORS”.

5.2 Foreign GAAP

The financial statements included in this Listing Statements for the Issuer and MichiCann have
been, and the future financial statements of the Resulting Issuer shall be, prepared in accordance
with IFRS.

6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Issuer

Please refer to Appendix “B” for the Issuer’s MD&A for the most recently completed fiscal year
ended July 31, 2019; and to Appendix “D” for the six months ended January 31, 2020.

MichiCann

Please refer to Appendix “F” for MichiCann’s MD&A for the most recently completed fiscal year
ended December 31, 2018; and to Appendix “H” for the year ended December 31, 2019.

7. MARKET FOR SECURITIES

On June 25, 2018, the Issuer’s Shares were approved for listing on the CSE under the trading
symbol “RLTY”. On June 29, 2018, on request from the Issuer, the Issuer’s Shares began trading
in U.S. funds instead of Canadian funds under the new symbol, “RLTY.U”

None of MichiCann’s securities are listed or posted for trading on any stock exchange or
quotation system.

The Resulting Issuer intends to be traded on the CSE under the symbol “RWB”.
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8. CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth (i) the Issuer’s capitalization as at April 24, 2020 immediately prior
to the Transaction; (ii) the consolidated capitalization of MichiCann as at April 24, 2020
immediately prior to the Transaction; and (iii) the Resulting Issuer’s pro forma consolidated
capitalization after giving effect to the Transaction. The table should be read in conjunction with
the financial statements of the Corporation and MichiCann, and the notes thereto, included
elsewhere in this Listing Statement. Immediately prior to the completion of the Transaction, Tidal
will complete a share consolidation on a 16:1 basis.

All of the issued and outstanding common shares of MichiCann will be exchanged on the
following basis: One (1) common share of Tidal and one (1) Tidal Series II Preferred Share for
each one (1) MichiCann common share, subject to adjustment in certain circumstances at set out
in the Business Combination Agreement.

. . Issuer MichiCann . q.c
Designation of . . . . . Resulting Issuer after giving
. immediately prior to immediately prior to q
Security . . effect to the Transaction
the Transaction the Transaction
Common Shares 375,431,661 84,211,753 132,190,811
Preferred Shares 50,900,000 n/a 3,181,250
Series II Preferred Nil n/a 108,726,349
Shares
Warrants to
purchase Common 18,987,365 595,340 1,194,402

Shares

Warrants to
purchase Series 11 Nil 595,340 595,340
Preferred Shares

Stock Options to

purchase Common 28,785,766 7,801,429 9,200,539
Shares

Stock Options to

purchase Series 11 Nil 7,801,429 7,401,429

Preferred Shares
Total 474,104,792 185,212,573 262,490,120
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9. OPTIONS TO PURCHASE SECURITIES
9.1 Stock Option Plan

The Issuer has in place a 10% rolling stock option plan (the “Option Plan”) dated July 15, 2017,
amended and restated as of December 6, 2018, as approved by shareholders of the Issuer at its
annual general and special meeting held on December 6, 2018. In connection with the
Transaction, the Option Plan was assumed by the Resulting Issuer.

The following information is intended to be a brief summary of the Option Plan:

The maximum number of Resulting Issuer Shares with respect to which options may be
granted pursuant to the Option Plan shall not exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding
Resulting Issuer Shares on a non-diluted basis at any time;

Options may be granted only to directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Issuer
or any related entity of the Issuer;

The total number of the Resulting Issuer Shares that may be reserved for issuance to any
one individual under the Option Plan shall not exceed 5% of the outstanding Resulting
Issuer Shares. The maximum number of options that may be granted to any one consultant
under the Option Plan, or employees performing investor relations activities for the Issuer,
within any 12-month period shall not exceed 2% of the issued and outstanding Resulting
Issuer Shares at the time of the grant;

The term of an option shall not exceed ten years from the date of the grant of the option;

Subject to allowable adjustments, the option price of any option shall not be lower than the
market price on the date on which the grant of the option is approved by the Resulting
Issuer Board;

An option shall be personal to the optionee and shall be non-assignable and non-transferable
(whether by operation of law or otherwise);

In the event that any optionee ceases to be an eligible person under the Option Plan (i.e.
ceases to be an officer, director, employee or consultant for any reason other than death or
termination with cause), the optionee will be entitled to exercise his or her options which
have vested as of such date of cessation only within a period of 30 days following the date
of such cessation or such other date as may be determined by the Resulting Issuer Board,
but in no event may any options be exercised following the expiry date thereof. In the event
an optionee is terminated with cause, the options held by such optionee will expire on the
date of such termination. In the event of the death of an optionee, any options held by such
optionee which have vested as of the date of death may be exercised within a period of one
year following the optionee’s death;

The Resulting Issuer Board may at any time amend the Option Plan or any options granted
thereunder, subject to the receipt of all applicable regulatory approvals, other than
substantive amendments to the Option Plan, which also require shareholder approval; and

In the event that an offer to purchase or repurchase the Resulting Issuer Shares or any part
thereof shall be made to all or substantially all holders of the Resulting Issuer Shares, the
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options shall be automatically and immediately accelerated such that all remaining options

will then be available for exercise.

The following table summarizes the options outstanding under the Resulting Issuer’s Option Plan

as at May 7, 2020.

Group

Consultants
Management
Consultants
Consultants
Management
Consultants
Management
Management
Management
Consultants

Consultants
Consultants
Consultants

Consultants
Consultants
Consultants
Consultants

Consultants
Consultants

Consultants

No. of Options

441,483
26,5621
6,250(1)
32,500(D
12,5001
1,212,628
67,187(H
1,000,0001)
350,000
3,500,00012)
500,000

600,000
400,000

12,50012)
500,000
30,000
12,5002)
100,000

25,0002

371,429®

(1) Exercisable to purchase Resulting Issuer Shares.

(2) Exercisable to purchase Resulting Issuer Shares and Series II Preferred Shares.

10.

10.1-10.5 General

Securities
under
Option

441,483
26,562
6,250
32,500
12,500
1,212,628
67,187
1,000,000
350,000
3,500,000
500,000

600,000
400,000

12,500
500,000
30,000
12,5000
100,000

25,000

371,429

Grant Date

June 22, 2018
June 22,2018
Sept. 14,2018
Dec. 12,2018
Dec. 12,2018
Apr 26,2019
Apr 26,2019
October 1, 2018
May 13,2019
October 1, 2018

January 15,
2019

January 15,
2019

February 4,
2019

April 15,2019
April 29,2019
May 21,2019
July 17,2019

November 13,
2019
November 22,
2019

January 11,
2020

DESCRIPTION OF THE SECURITIES

Expiry Date

June 22, 2023
June 22, 2023
Sept. 12, 2020
Dec 12, 2023
Dec 12,2023
Apr 26,2024
Apr 26,2024
October 1, 2023
May 13,2024
October 1, 2023

January 15,
2024

January 15,
2024

February 4, 2024

April 15, 2024
April 29, 2024
May 21, 2024
July 17 2024

November 13,
2024
November 22,
2024

January 11,
2025

The Resulting Issuer’s authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number of Common
Shares and an unlimited number of Preferred Shares without par value.

As at the date of this Listing Statement the following securities are issued and outstanding:

a. 132,620,186 Resulting Issuer Shares,
b. 3,181,250 Preferred Shares;
c. 108,726,349 Series II Preferred Shares;
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Exercise
per
Common
Share

$5.28
$5.28
$3.84 USD
$1.84 USD
$1.84 USD
$5.44
$5.44
$0.50
$1.00
$0.50
$1.00

$2.50

$1.00

$1.00
$1.00
$1.00
$1.00
$1.00

$1.00

$1.00




1,106,738 Warrants to purchase Resulting Issuer Shares;
595,340 Warrants to purchase Series II Preferred Shares;
9,200,539 Options to purchase Resulting Issuer Shares; and
7,401,429 Options to purchase Series II Preferred Shares.

wmo A

Common Shares

The holders of Resulting Issuer Shares are entitled to receive notice of and to attend and vote at all
meetings of the shareholders of the Resulting Issuer and each Resulting Issuer confers the right to
one vote in person or by proxy at all meetings of the shareholders of the Resulting Issuer. The
holders of the Resulting Issuer Shares are entitled to receive such dividends in any financial year
as the Resulting Issuer’s Board may by resolution determine. In the event of the liquidation,
dissolution or winding-up of the Resulting Issuer, whether voluntary or involuntary, the holders of
the Resulting Issuer Shares are entitled to receive the remaining property and assets of the
Resulting Issuer, subject to the priority rights of the Preferred Shareholders. The Resulting Issuer
Shares do not carry any pre-emptive rights, conversion or exchange rights, or redemption,
retraction, purchase for cancellation or surrender rights. The Articles of the Resulting Issuer do
not have any sinking or purchase fund provisions and do not have provisions permitting or
restricting the issuance of additional securities and any other material restrictions. The Articles of
the Resulting Issuer also do not have any provisions requiring a securityholder to contribute
additional capital.

Preferred Shares

The Resulting Issuer is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Preferred Shares without par
value. Preferred Shares may be issued in one or more series and will be subject to such rights and
restrictions as the Resulting Issuer Board may determine.

As at the date of this Listing Statement, the Resulting Issuer has 3,181,250 non-voting,
convertible Series 1 Preferred Shares issued and outstanding. The terms of the Series 1
Convertible Preferred Shares provide, among other things, that they: (i) are non-voting; (ii) are
convertible into common shares of the Resulting Issuer on a one for one basis, subject to
customary adjustments; (iii) are eligible to participate in dividends if and when declared on the
Common Shares; (iv) have priority rights on liquidation; and (v) are subject to a restriction that no
holder of the Preferred Shares may convert into a number of Resulting Issuer Shares that would
result in such holder beneficially owning greater than 9.99% of the Resulting Issuer Shares.

The holders of the Preferred Shares have entered into a voluntary lock up arrangement (the
“Lock-Up Agreement”) whereby they have contractually agreed not to transfer, sell, dispose of,
or monetize any Resulting Issuer Shares received upon the conversion of its Preferred Shares or
Preferred Share warrants for a period of 6, 9, and 12 months after the closing date (the “Lock-Up
Period”). From 6 months and 1 day after the closing date, the holders of Preferred Shares may
transfer, sell, dispose of, or monetize up to 33.33% of the Resulting Issuer Shares such holder
owns (upon conversion of the Preferred Shares and/or Preferred Share warrants); from 9 months
and 1 day after the closing date, the holder of Preferred Shares may transfer, sell, dispose of, or
monetize up to 66.66% of the Resulting Issuer Shares such holder owns; and, from 12 months and
1 day after
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the closing date, the holder of Preferred Shares may freely transfer, sell, dispose of, or monetize
any and all Resulting Issuer Shares then held.

Series Il Preferred Shares

The Resulting Issuer is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Series II Preferred Shares
without par value. Each Series II Preferred Share shall be convertible into validly issued, fully
paid and non-assessable Common Shares on the following terms and conditions:

(a) Holder’s Conversion Right. At any time or times on or after the seven month anniversary
of the initial issuance date and before the two year anniversary of the initial issuance date, each
holder of a Series II Preferred Share shall be entitled to convert any whole number of Series 11
Preferred Shares, including any Series II Preferred Shares accrued from dividends issued
hereunder, into validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable Common Shares in accordance with
Section (c) at the Conversion Rate (as defined below). Any Series II Preferred Shares outstanding
on the two year anniversary of the initial issuance date, including any Series Il Preferred Shares
accrued from dividends, shall automatically convert into fully paid and non-assessable Common
Shares at such time and without requiring any further action by the Holder.

(b) Conversion Rate. The number of validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable Common
Shares issuable upon conversion of each Series II Preferred Share pursuant to Section (a) shall
initially be set at 1:1 (the “Conversion Rate”), subject to adjustment as provided herein. No
fractional Common Shares are to be issued upon the conversion of any Series II Preferred Shares.
If the issuance would result in the issuance of a fraction of a Common Share, the Company shall
round such fraction of a Common Share down to the nearest whole Common Share.

(c) Mechanics of Conversion. The conversion of each Series II Preferred Share shall be
conducted in the following manner:

) Holder’s Conversion. To convert a Series II Preferred Share into validly issued,
fully paid and non-assessable Common Shares on any Business Day after the seven month
anniversary of the initial issuance date and prior to the two year anniversary of the initial
issuance date (a “Conversion Date”), the Holder shall deliver (whether via facsimile or
otherwise), for receipt on or prior to 11:59 p.m., Vancouver time, on such date, a copy of an
executed notice of conversion (the “Conversion Notice”) of the Series II Preferred Shares
subject to such conversion to the Company.

(A) A Holder of Certificated Series II Preferred Shares shall, within five (5) Business
Days following a Conversion Notice of any such Series II Preferred Shares as
aforesaid, surrender to a nationally recognized overnight delivery service for
delivery to the Company the original certificates representing the Series II
Preferred Shares so converted as aforesaid.

(B) A Holder of Uncertificated Series II Preferred Shares evidenced by a direct
registration statement shall be deemed to have surrendered any such Series II
Preferred Shares upon receipt by the Company of the Conversion Notice.
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(C) A Holder of Uncertificated Series II Preferred Shares evidenced by a security
entitlement in respect of such Series II Preferred Shares in the book entry
registration system who desires to convert Series II Preferred Shares must do so by
causing a Book Entry Participant to deliver to the Depository the Conversion
Notice on behalf of the Holder. Forthwith upon receipt by the Depository, the
Depository shall deliver to the Transfer Agent confirmation of its intention to
convert Series II Preferred Shares in a manner acceptable to the Transfer Agent,
including by electronic means through a book based registration system, including
CDSX. By causing a Book Entry Participant to deliver a Conversion Notice to the
Depository, a Holder shall be deemed to have irrevocably surrendered his or her
Series 11 Preferred Shares so converted and appointed such Book Entry Participant
to act as his or her exclusive settlement agent with respect to the conversion of the
Series OO Preferred Shares and the receipt of Common Shares in connection with
the obligations arising from such conversion. Any Conversion Notice which the
Depository determines to be incomplete, not in proper form or not duly executed
shall for all purposes be void and of no force and effect and the conversion to
which it relates shall be considered for all purposes not to have been converted
thereby. A failure by a Book Entry Participant to convert or to give effect to the
settlement thereof in accordance with the Holder’s instructions will not give rise to
any obligations or liability on the part of the Company or Transfer Agent to the
Book Entry Participant or the Holder.

(ii)) Company’s Response. On or before the fifth (5th) Business Day following the date
of receipt by the Company of the original certificates representing the Series II Preferred
Shares subject to the Conversion Notice (in the case of Certificated Series II Preferred
Shares) or a duly completed Conversion Notice (in the case of Uncertificated Series 11
Preferred Shares), the Company shall issue and deliver, or cause to be issued and
delivered (via reputable overnight courier, as applicable) as specified in such Conversion
Notice, a certificate, direct registration statement or electronic deposit, registered in the
name of such Holder or its designee, for the number of Common Shares to which such
Holder shall be entitled. In the case of Certificated Series II Preferred Shares, if the
number of Series II Preferred Shares represented by the Series II Preferred Share
certificate(s) submitted for conversion pursuant to this Section (c) is greater than the
number of Series II Preferred Shares being converted, then the Company shall issue and
deliver to such Holder (or its designee) a new Series II Preferred Share certificate
representing the number of Series II Preferred Shares not converted.

(i) Record Holder. The Person or Persons entitled to receive the Common Shares
issuable upon a conversion of Series II Preferred Shares shall be treated for all purposes as
the record holder or holders of such Common Shares on the Conversion Date.

(iv)  Withholding Tax. The Company will be entitled to deduct and withhold from any
conversion of Series II Preferred Shares, and to otherwise recover from the Holder the full
amount of taxes or other additional amounts required to be deducted or withheld by the
Company under applicable laws.
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Voting Rights: Holders of Series II Preferred Shares shall have voting rights and are entitled to
vote on a matter with holders of Common Shares (and Preferred Shares if required by law or
otherwise entitled to vote with the holders of Common Shares), voting together as one class. Each
Series II Preferred Share shall entitle the holder thereof to cast that number of votes per share as is
equal to the number of Common Shares into which it is then convertible using the record date for
determining the shareholders of the Company eligible to vote on such matters as the date as of
which the Conversion Rate is calculated. Holders of the Series II Preferred Shares shall be entitled
to written notice of all shareholder meetings or written consents (and copies of proxy materials
and other information sent to shareholders), which notice shall be provided pursuant to the
Company’s bylaws and applicable law.

Dividends: Holders of Series II Preferred Shares shall be entitled to receive, and the Company
shall pay thereon, a fixed dividend equal to 5.0% per annum, calculated monthly and payable in
Series II Preferred Shares. Upon conversion of Series II Preferred Shares, the dividend shall be
calculated pro rata as at the most recently completed month prior to the Conversion Date. Holders
of Series II Preferred Shares shall be entitled to receive such dividends paid and distributions
made to the holders of the Common Shares to the same extent as if such Holders had converted
each Series II Preferred Share held by them into Common Shares and had held such Common
Shares on the record date for such dividends and distributions. Payment under the preceding
sentence shall be made concurrently with the dividend or distribution to the holders of Common
Shares. The Company will be entitled to deduct and withhold from any dividends paid in respect
of Series II Preferred Shares, and to otherwise recover from the Holder the full amount of taxes or
other additional amounts required to be deducted or withheld by the Company under applicable
laws.

Warrants

As at the date hereof, there are Warrants issued and outstanding in the capital of the Resulting
Issuer as follows:

Common share purchase Warrants:

Date of Issuance Number of Warrants Exercise Price  Expiry Date
Outstanding
December 19,2018 595 340® $1.00 December 19, 2020

Finder Warrants:

Date of Issuance Number of Warrants Exercise Price  Expiry Date
Outstanding

June 12,2018 323,898(D $5.28 June 11, 2020

September 26,2018 187,500 $0.80 May 25, 2020

(1) Exercisable to purchase Resulting Issuer Shares.
(2) Exercisable to purchase Resulting Issuer Shares and Series II Preferred Shares.

10.6 Miscellaneous Securities Provisions

Only the Resulting Issuer’s outstanding common shares will be listed on the CSE.
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The rights of Shareholders may be modified only in accordance with the provisions attached
thereto in the Issuer’s Articles or the provisions of the BC Business Corporations Act.

While non-voting unless required by law, the convertible Preferred Shares are ranked senior to the
Resulting Issuer’s Shares with respect as to the first preference as to dividends, distributions and
payments upon the liquidation, dissolution and winding up of the Resulting Issuer. The Preferred
Shares, in the event of dividends or distributions, shall be entitled to receive on an equal basis as
those of the Resulting Issuer Shares as if they had been converted to Resulting Issuer Shares.

10.7 Prior Sales
Issuer

The following table summarizes the prices at which securities of the Issuer have been sold within
the 12 months before the date of this Listing Statement:

Issue Date Class of Security Numbf:r' of Price
Securities
March 1, 2018 Special Warrants() 3,570,000 $0.80
March 1, 2018 Finder Special Warrants® 330,750 n/a
April 30,2018 Special Warrants() 793,125 $0.80
April 30,2018 Finder Special Warrants® 76,250 n/a
May 25,2018 Preferred Share Unit® 2,500,000 $0.80
May 25, 2018 Finder Special Warrants 250,000 n/a
June 8, 2018 Common Shares 5,897,189 $5.28
June 8, 2018 Finder Warrants® 323,898 n/a

1. Each special warrant entitled the holder to receive, without payment of any additional consideration or need for further action,
one unit of the Issuer, each unit comprising of one common share and one share purchase warrant; each warrant entitling the
holder to acquire one additional share at $0.80 for a period of 24 months.

2. Each finder special warrant entitled the holder to receive, without payment of any additional consideration or need for further
action, one unit of the Issuer, each unit comprising of one common share and one share purchase warrant; each warrant
entitling the holder to acquire one additional share at $0.80 for a period of 24 months.

3. Each preferred share unit consists of one Preferred share (a “Preferred Share”) and one preferred share purchase warrant; each
warrant is exercisable by the holder to acquire one additional Preferred Share in the capital of the Company at a price of $0.80
for a period of 24 months following the issuance date. The Preferred Shares are subject to the restriction that no holder of the
Preferred Shares may convert into a number of Shares that would result in such holder beneficially owning greater than 9.99%
of the Shares; and further subject at all times to the Lock-Up Agreement. See Item 10, “Preferred Shares”.

4. Each finder warrant entitles the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $5.28 for a period of 24 months.
MichiCann

The following table summarizes the prices at which securities of MichiCann have been sold
within the 12 months before the date of this Listing Statement:
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Issue Date
Number of

Class of Security Securities Price

December 18, 2018 Common Shares 30,068,182 $1.00

February 22,2019 Common Shares 4,500,000 $1.00

February 22,2019 Common Shares 2,240,000 $2.50

September 30, 2019 Common Shares 1,168,100 $5.00

October 9, 2019 Common Shares 840,000 $5.00

October 23, 2019 Common Shares 1,200,000 $5.00

December 18, 2019 Common Shares 27,000 $5.00

February 25, 2019 MichiCann 1 $15,000,000
Debenture

October 20, 2019 MichiCann 1 $2,000,000 USD
Debenture

March 12,2020 MichiCann 1 $500,000 USD
Debenture

10.8  Stock Exchange Price

The Tidal Shares are currently listed on the CSE under the trading symbol “RLTY.U”. The table
below sets forth the high and low trading prices and volume for the Tidal Shares traded through
the CSE on a monthly basis from the date trading commenced on the CSE on June 25, 2018 to the
date of this Listing Statement.

Price Range and Trading Volume

High Low Volume
® ®
March 2019 to Present(!) N/A N/A N/A
February 2019() US $4.88 US $4.88 1,247,531
January2019 US $3.36 US $3.36 2,495,570
December 2018 US $2.40 US $2.40 1,414,870
November 2018 US $3.52 US $3.52 1,410,386
October 2018 US $4.16 US $4.16 2,260,206
September 2018 US $7.60 US $7.60 1,374,213
August 2018 US $11.20 US $11.20 992,377
July 2018 US $11.84 US $11.84 999,046
June 29, 2018 US $12.32 US $12.32 131,196
June 25-28, 2018 CA$13.28 CA$9.44 609,855

Notes:
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() The Tidal Shares were halted on February 11, 2019 in connection with the Transaction.
@ 0On June 29, 2018, the Tidal Shares began trading in U.S. funds instead of Canadian funds.

11. ESCROWED SECURITIES

The following table summarizes the Resulting Issuer Shares subject to escrow as of the date of this
Listing Statement:

Designation of class Number of securities Percentage
held in escrow held in escrow of class
Common shares 19,480,222 14.74%

The Common shares will be released in three equal tranches as follows: 1/3 on the date that is six
(6) months following Closing, 1/3 on the date that is twelve (12) months following Closing and
1/3 on the date that is eighteen (18) months following the Closing.

Further to NI 46-201 section 3.2, the Resulting Issuer qualifies to be an exempt issuer due to its
value that was established in recent financings.

12. PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

No person known to the Resulting Issuer beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, or exercises
control or direction over 10% or more of the outstanding Resulting Issuer Shares (either on an
undiluted or fully diluted basis).

13. DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

13.1 — Directors and Officers

The following table sets forth the name of all directors and officers of the Resulting Issuer, their
municipalities of residence, their current positions with the Resulting Issuer, their principal
occupations during the past five years and the number and percentage of Resulting Issuer Shares
beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or over which control or direction is exercised as at the
date of this Listing Statement.
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Name, Position, Province
or State and Country
of Residence

Brad Rogers

Chief Executive Officer and
Director, Member of Audit
Committee

Ontario, Canada

Theo van der Linde
Chief Financial Officer
and Director,

British Columbia, Canada

Brendan Purdy
Director, Audit Committee
Chairman

Ontario, Canada

Michael Marchese
Director

Ontario, Canada

Principal Occupation or Employment
for the Past Five Years

Mr. Rogers was the former President and Chief
Operating Officer of CannTrust Holdings (CSE:
TRST) from April 2015 until November 2018.
Mr. Rogers was also a co-founder and Chief
Operating Officer of Mettrum Ltd. (now owned
by Canopy Growth Corp. TSX: WEED) from
January 2013 until December 2015. He led
Mettrum Ltd. from pre-licensing to public listing,
including the licencing of three facilities and
multiple rounds of financing. From 1996 to 2012,
Mr. Rogers was the VP Product for Mood Media.
He has an MBA from the Ivey School of
Business.

Mr. van der Linde is a Chartered Accountant with
20 years’ extensive finance, administration and
public accounting experience in diverse industries
including mining, oil & gas, financial services,
manufacturing and retail. During the last nine
years of his career Mr. van der Linde has been
focused on the mining industry working with
Junior Exploration and producing mining
Companies at various stages of growth and in
several jurisdictions including South Africa, West-
Africa, Peru, Sri-lanka and the United States. Mr.
van der Linde currently acts a mining consultant
as the President of Executive Management
Solutions Ltd.

Corporate Secretary and director of Global
Blockchain Technologies Corp.; CEO and
President of Element 79 Capital Inc.; former CEO
and director of Enforcer Gold Corp.; director of
each of Supreme Metals Corp. and ZTest
Electronics Inc.; former director, CEO and
chairman of High Hampton Holdings Corp.
(CSE:HC) from November 2016 to December
2017; CEO and Director of Seaway Energy
Services from April, 2016 to October 2016; a
Director of Greenock Resources Inc. from
October 2015 to February, 2016.

MichiCann Medical president, co-founder and
director. Co-founded Aleafia Health Inc. and
directed its branding. (TSX: ALEF: OTC:
ALEAF, FRA: ARAH).
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Date Elected
or Appointed

April 24,
2020

July 2017

July 2017

April 24,
2020

Number &
Percentage of
Shares Held!

2,500,000
1.89%

Nil

Nil

4,302,500
3.24%




Bill Dawson ; : ; ;
Chief Financial Officer of SBG — Skill Based .
Director, Member of Audit April 24, 148,000

) Games Inc. since 2014; President and Chief 2020
Committee Executive Officer of Play Games for Fun Limited 0.11%
. Since 2013; Chief Financial Officer of Oakshire
Ontario, Canada Holdings Limited from 2011 to 2018; Chief

Financial Officer of Pong Game Studios
Corporation from 2011 to 2018; Chief Financial
Officer of Caliburger Canada Incorporated from
2015 to 2017; Chief Financial Officer of Blow
Canada Inc. from 2014 to 2017.

The Resulting Issuer currently has established an Audit Committee consisting of Messrs. Rogers,
Purdy and Dawson and a Compensation Committee consisting of Messrs. Rogers, Purdy and
Dawson. The composition and mandate of the Audit Committee and the Compensation Committee
is determined by the Resulting Issuer’s Board.

Each Director stands for re-election at the Annual General Meeting of shareholders.

13.2 Corporate Cease Trade Orders

Except as noted below, no director, officer or promoter of the Resulting Issuer has, within the last
ten years, been a director, officer or promoter of any company that:

(a) was the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied the company
access to any statutory exemption for a period of more than 30 consecutive; or

(b) was subject to an order that was issued after he or she ceased to act in that capacity,
which resulted from an event that occurred while that person was acting as director,
officer or promoter.

Brendan Purdy was an independent director of Boomerang Oil, Inc. (“Boomerang”) when cease
trade orders were issued by the British Columbia Securities Commission and Alberta Securities
Commission in 2015 due to Boomerang failing to file its annual audited financial statements for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, and its management's discussion and analysis relating
thereto, as required under Part 5 of National Instrument 51-102. Boomerang continues to be
subject to the cease trade orders.

13.3  Bankruptcies

No director, officer, or promoter of the Resulting Issuer or any shareholder anticipated to hold a
sufficient amount of securities of the Resulting Issuer:

(c) is, as at the date hereof, or has been within the last 10 years, a director or executive
officer of any company that, while acting in that capacity, or within a year of ceasing to
act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to
bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or
compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold
1ts assets; or

(d) has, within the 10 years before the date hereof, become bankrupt, made a proposal under
any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any
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proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver
manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of the director, executive officer or
shareholder.

13.4 Penalties or Sanctions

No director, officer, or promoter of the Resulting Issuer or any shareholder anticipated to hold a
sufficient amount of securities of the Resulting Issuer, has been subject to any penalties or
sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation or by a securities regulatory
authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a securities regulatory authority or has
been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body or self-
regulatory authority that would be likely considered important to a reasonable investor in making
an investment decision.

13.5 Conflicts of Interest

To the best knowledge of the Resulting Issuer and other than as disclosed herein, there are no
known existing or potential material conflicts of interest between the Resulting Issuer and a
director, officer or promoter of the Resulting Issuer except that certain of the directors, officers
and promoters of the Resulting Issuer serve as directors, officers and promoters of other
companies and therefore it is possible that a conflict may arise between their duties as a director,
officer or promoter of the Resulting Issuer and their duties as a director, officer and promoter of
such other companies. See “17 — RISK FACTORS”.

The directors, officers and promoters of the Resulting Issuer are aware of the existence of laws
governing accountability of directors and officers for corporate opportunity and requiring
disclosure by directors of conflicts of interest and the Resulting Issuer will rely upon such laws in
respect of any directors’ and officers’ conflict of interest or in respect of any breaches of duty by
any of its directors or officers. All such conflicts will be disclosed by such directors or officers in
accordance with applicable law and they will govern themselves in respect thereof to the best of
their ability in accordance with the obligation imposed upon them by law.

13.6 Management

The following summarizes certain information concerning the Resulting Issuer’s directors and
officers:

Brad Rogers, Chief Executive Officer and Director, age 48, acted as Michicann’s Chief
Executive Officer prior to the closing of the Transaction and previously served as President of
Canntrust, one of Canada’s leading licensed cannabis producers. Under Brad’s direction,
Canntrust created the Canadian cannabis market’s Gold Standard by producing quality,
pharmaceutically standardized product across flower and extract. A recognized expert in cannabis
production and a creative brand-building marketer, Mr. Rogers was instrumental in leading
CannTrust into early profitability. He was the driving force behind its capital raises and IPO that
peaked at a $1.5 billion market cap.

Utilizing industry-leading scientific expertise and a disciplined “data driven” approach, Mr.
Rogers managed CannTrust’s growth from 20 employees to more than 500 before his departure.
Directed the creation of four adult consumer cannabis brands — Liiv; SYNR.G, Xscape and Peak
Leaf across
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National Distribution. To meet the needs of both the medical and recreational markets, he also
supervised the opening of the first two phases of CannTrusts’s Perpetual Harvest Facility in
Niagara which is expected to reach an annual output exceeding 100,000 kilograms. Mr. Rogers
also worked on developing such innovative product extensions as beverages, vape pens, and
edibles.

In addition, Mr. Rogers was part of the team that built one of the first ever commercially scaled
cannabis production facilities in the world (for medicinal cannabis use) in 2014. That company
(Metrum) was successfully sold in 2016 to Canopy Growth (NYSE:WEED) for over $450 million.

He holds an MBA from the Richard Ivey School of Business, proudly supports Toronto’s Centre
for Addiction and Mental Health, the Trillium Gift of Life Network, and Inner City EQAO
Mentoring. Mr. Rogers will devote approximately 80% of his time to the business of the Issuer.

Theo van der Linde, Chief Financial Officer and Director, age 45, is a Chartered Accountant
with 20 years extensive experience in finance, reporting, regulatory requirements, public company
administration, equity markets and financing of publicly traded companies. He has served as a
CFO & Director for a number of TSX Venture Exchange and Canadian Securities Exchange listed
companies over the past several years. Mr. van der Linde has extensive experience in financial
services, manufacturing, oil & gas, mining and retail industries. Most recently, he has been
involved with future use trends of natural resources as well as other disruptive technologies. Mr.
van der Linde received a B.Comm. (Hons) in Finance, is a Chartered Accountant and is a member
of good standing of the Institute of the Chartered Public Accountants of British Columbia.

Mr. van der Linde, in his capacity as Chief Financial Officer of the Resulting Issuer, is not subject
to the terms of any non-competition or non-disclosure agreement. Mr. van der Linde will devote
such time and expertise as is reasonably required by Resulting Issuer.

Mr. van der Linde will devote approximately 75% of his time to the business of the Issuer.

Brendan Purdy, Director, age 32, is a practicing securities lawyer, with experience in public
companies, and the capital markets. Mr. Purdy received his J.D. from the University of Ottawa,
received a Bachelor of Management and Organizational Studies degree from the University of
Western Ontario. Mr. Purdy has significant cannabis industry experience, in both his private
practice and in his capacity as management and director of public cannabis issuers. Mr. Purdy
most recently acted as Director, CEO, and Chairman of High Hampton Holdings Corp. (CSE:
HC), a CSE-listed cannabis investment company focused on acquisitions of cannabis distribution
companies, branding opportunities, and state licensed producers in California, USA. Mr. Purdy
was involved in identifying and facilitating the acquisition of CoachellaGro Corp., a California-
based corporation holding 10.8 acres of land within the designated cannabis cultivation zone in
Coachella, California.

In his securities law practice, Mr. Purdy has facilitated the acquisition and financing of other
licensed producers and cannabis ancillary companies within Canada. Following his resignation as
CEO of High Hampton, Mr. Purdy became General Counsel to 3 Sixty Secure Corp., a Canadian
company providing static security and secure logistics for the transport and distribution of
cannabis for several prominent licensed producers.
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Mr. Purdy, in his capacity as a Director of the Resulting Issuer, is not subject to the terms of any
non-competition or non-disclosure agreement. Mr. Purdy will devote such time and expertise as is
reasonably required by Resulting Issuer.

Mr. Purdy will devote approximately 30% of his time to the business of the Issuer.

Michael Marchese, Director, age 45, Michael Marchese, MichiCann Medical president, co-
founder and director, has played a major role in starting, developing and organizing the company
to date. He also co-founded Aleafia Health Inc. and directed its branding. (TSX: ALEF: OTC:
ALEAF, FRA: ARAH). He continues to advise the company. When MichiCann management is in
place, he will transition to a marketing advisory role in his widely noted area of expertise and
continue supervising the company’s branding and its interface with internal and external
audiences. For the past several decades, Marchese has successfully operated his own branding
company, Marchese Design, and has developed identities and communications programs for such
leading brands as Aleafia, Tutto Gourmet Foods, V Grace Bay, Turks & Caicos and Royal Group
Technologies and its successor company, the Vision Group. Prior to the closing of the
Transaction, Mr. Marchese served as a director and President of MichiCann Medical Inc since its
inception. Mr. Marchese will devote approximately 80% of his time to the business of the Issuer.

Mr. Marchese, in his capacity as a director of the Resulting Issuer, is an independent contractor,
providing his services on a part-time basis, is not subject to the terms of a formal engagement
agreement with the Issuer, and is not subject to any non-competition or non-disclosure agreement.
Mr. Marchese will devote such time and expertise as is reasonably required by Resulting Issuer.

Bill Dawson, Director, age 68, is a Chartered Professional Accountant and Chartered Accountant
with more than 40 years of experience in the field. Mr. Dawson has served as the Chief Financial
Officer of SBG — Skill Based Games Inc. since 2014 and the President and Chief Executive
Officer of Play Games for Fun Limited Since 2013. Mr. Dawson previously served as Chief
Financial Officer of Oakshire Holdings Limited from 2011 to 2018, Pong Game Studios
Corporation from 2011 to 2018, Caliburger Canada Incorporated from 2015 to 2017 and Blow
Canada Inc. from 2014 to 2017. Mr. Dawson holds a BA in economics and finance as well as an
MBA from York University.

Mr. Dawson, in his capacity as a director of the Issuer, is an independent contractor, providing his
services on a part-time basis, is not subject to the terms of a formal engagement agreement with
the Issuer, and is not subject to any non-competition or non-disclosure agreement. Mr. Dawson
expects to dedicate approximately 20% of his time to the affairs of the Issuer.

14. CAPITALIZATION
The following tables provide information about the anticipated share capitalization of the Resulting

Issuer after giving effect to the Transaction:
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Number of
Securities Number of Securities % of Issued % of Issued

Issued Capital (non-diluted) (fully-diluted) (non-diluted) (fully diluted)
Public Float

Total outstanding (A) 132,190,811 262,831,841 100% 100%
Held by Related Persons

B) 6,950,500 8,406,749 5.26% 3.20%
Total Public Float (A-B) 125,240,311 254,425,092 94.74% 96.80%

Freely-Tradeable Float

Number of outstanding 19,480,222 19,480,222 14.74% 7.41%
securities subject to resale

restrictions

Total Tradeable Float (A- 112,710,589 243,351,619 85.26% 92.59%
0

Public Security-holders (Registered)

For the purposes of this table, "public security-holders" are registered Shareholders other than
related persons enumerated in section (B) of the previous chart as at the date of this Listing
Statement.

Size of Holding Number of holders Total number of Shares
1 — 99 securities 3 35

100 — 499 securities 5 1,686

500 — 999 securities 5 3,634

1,000 — 1,999 securities 4 7,538

2,000 — 2,999 securities 7 15,859

3,000 — 3,999 securities 6 18,975

4,000 — 4,999 securities 3 14,157

5,000 or more securities 526 125,178,427
Totals 559 125,240,311

Public Security-holders (Beneficial)

The following table includes (i) beneficial holders holding securities in their own name as
registered shareholders; and (ii) beneficial holders holding securities through an intermediary
where the Issuer has been given written confirmation of shareholdings. For the purposes of this
section, it is sufficient if the intermediary provides a breakdown by number of beneficial holders
for each line item below; names and holdings of specific beneficial holders do not have to be
disclosed. If an intermediary or intermediaries will not provide details of beneficial holders, give
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the aggregate position of all such intermediaries in the last line. All information as at the date of
this Listing Statement

Size of Holding Number of holders Total number of Shares
1 — 99 securities 100 5,452

100 — 499 securities 191 44,385

500 — 999 securities 98 46,174

1,000 — 1,999 securities 51 72,601

2,000 — 2,999 securities 20 45,992

3,000 — 3,999 securities 10 33,743

4,000 — 4,999 securities 8 33,571

5,000 or more securities 30 16,455,492

Unable to confirm

Totals 508 16,737,410

Non-Public Security-holders (Registered)

The following table includes "non-public securityholders", being those related persons
enumerated in section (B) of the issued capital chart as at the date of this Listing Statement.

Size of Holding Number of holders Total number of Shares
1 — 99 securities - -

100 — 499 securities - -

500 — 999 securities - -

1,000 — 1,999 securities - -

2,000 — 2,999 securities - -

3,000 — 3,999 securities - -

4,000 — 4,999 securities - -

5,000 or more securities 3 6,950,500

Totals 3 6,950,500

14.2  The following table details securities convertible or exchangeable into Resulting Issuer
Shares and Resulting Issuer Series II Preferred Shares.

Number of Number of
convertible / Number of Series II
exchangeable Common Shares Preferred Shares Date of
Description of securities upon conversion / upon conversion/ Conversion or
Security Exercise Price outstanding exercise exercise Expiry
Warrants $0.80 187,500 187,500 N/A M2ag2%)5,
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Warrants

Options

Options

Options

Options

Preferred
Shares()

Series II Preferred
Shares

MichiCann
Warrants

MichiCann
Options

MichiCann
Options

MichiCann
Options

MichiCann
Options

MichiCann
Options

MichiCann
Options

MichiCann
Options

MichiCann
Options

$5.28

$5.28

US$3.84

US$1.84

$5.44

N/A

N/A

$1.00

$0.50

$2.50

$1.00

$1.00

$1.00

$1.00

$1.00

$1.00

323,898

468,045

6,250

45,000

1,279,815

3,181,250

108,726,349

595,340

4,500,000

600,000

500,000

400,000

12,500

500,000

350,000

30,000

64

323,898

468,045

6,250

45,000

1,279,815

3,181,250

108,726,349

595,340

4,500,000

600,000

500,000

400,000

12,500

500,000

350,000

30,000

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

595,340

4,500,000

600,000

500,000

400,000

12,500

500,000

350,000

30,000

June 11,
200

December
12,2023

April 26,
2024

N/A

April 26,
2024

N/A

Note 2

December
19, 2020

October 1,
2023

January 15,
2024

January 15,
2024

February 4,
2024

April 15,
2024

April 29,
2024

May 13,
2024

May 21,
2024




Note:

MichiCann
Options

MichiCann
Options

MichiCann
Options

MichiCann
Options

M

$1.00

$1.00

$1.00

$1.00

12,500

100,000

25,000

371,429

12,500

100,000

25,000

371,429

12,500

100,000

25,000

371,429

July 17,
2024

November
13,2024

November
22,2024

January 11,
2025

The Preferred Shares are subject to the restriction that no holder of the Preferred Shares may convert into a number of

Shares that would result in such holder beneficially owning greater than 9.99% of the Shares; and further subject at

all times to the Lock-Up Agreement. See Item 10, “Preferred Shares”.

@

At any time or times on or after the seven month anniversary of the initial issuance date and before the two year

anniversary of the initial issuance date, each holder of a Series II Preferred Share shall be entitled to convert any
whole number of Series II Preferred Shares, including any Series II Preferred Shares accrued from dividends issued
hereunder, into validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable Common Shares at the Conversion Rate. Any Series 11
Preferred Shares outstanding on the two year anniversary of the initial issuance date, including any Series II Preferred
Shares accrued from dividends, shall automatically convert into fully paid and non-assessable Common Shares at
such time and without requiring any further action by the Holder.

15.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis
Set out below is a summary of compensation paid or accrued during the Issuer’s two most recently
completed financial years to the Issuer’s NEOs and directors for services provided and for services to be
provided, directly or indirectly, to the Issuer or any subsidiary thereof.

Name and
principal
position
Paul Rosen(!)
)
CEO and
Director
Theo van der
Linde®
CFO and
Director
Terry Taouss®)
)
President
Brendan
Purdy(s)
Director

Director and Named Executive Officer Compensation Table

Year

2019
2018

2019
2018

2019
2018

2019
2018

Table of compensation excluding compensation securities

Salary,
consulting
fee, retainer
or
commission
®
195,833
275,000

81,250
61,934

189,824
72,917

Nil
Nil

Bonus
)
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil

Value of all
Committee Value of other
or meeting perquisites compensation
fees ®) $)
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
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Total
compensation
®
195,833
275,000

81,250
61,934

189,824
72,917

Nil
Nil




Brian Penny(6)(7)
Director

Stuart
Wooldridge(6)
Director

Notes:

(O]

2019
2018

2019
2018

16,014
10,000
18,200
7,500

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

received by Mr. Rosen was in respect of his position as CEO of the Issuer.

2

Mr. van der Linde was in respect of his position as CFO of the Issuer.

3)

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

16,014
10,000
18,200

7,500

Mr. Rosen was appointed as CEO of the Issuer on January 1, 2018 and as a director on July 20, 2017. All of the compensation
Mr. van der Linde was appointed as CFO and a director of the Issuer on July 20, 2017. All of the compensation received by

Mr. Taouss was appointed as President of the Issuer July 5, 2018 and resigned effective January 22, 2019. Prior to July 5,

2018 and beginning on February 19, 2018, Mr. Taouss was in the role of Vice President, Operations. His compensation is

reflected from the period beginning on February 19, 2018 and ending July 31, 2018.
Mr. Purdy was appointed as a director of the Issuer July 20, 2017.
Mr. Penny was appointed as a director of the Issuer on June 22, 2018 and his compensation is reflected from the period

“)
(O]

beginning on June 22, 2018 and ending on July 31, 2018.

(6)
()]

Stock Options and Other Compensation Securities

Mr. Wooldridge was appointed as a director of the Issuer September 2001 .
As of the Listing Statement a Former Director or Officer of the Issuer.

The following table sets forth all compensation securities granted or issued to each NEO and
director of the Issuer on a pre-consolidated basis during the year ended July 31, 2019 for services
provided or to be provided, directly or indirectly, to the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries:

Type of
compensation
security
Name and
position
Paul Options
Rosen®
CEO and
Director
Theo van Options
der
Linde®
CFO and
Director

Compensation Securities

Number of
compensation
securities,
number of
underlying
securities
125,000 options
exercisable into
125,000
common shares

12,500 options
exercisable into
12,500
common shares
18,750 options
exercisable into
18,750
common shares

Date of
issue or
grant
12/12/2018

12/12/2018

04/26/2019
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Issue,
conversion
or exercise

price ($)
$1.84

(USD)

$1.84
(USD)

$4.16
(USD)

Closing
price of
security or
underlying
security on
date of
grant ($)

Closing
price of
security or
underlying
security at
year end ($)

$4.16 (USD)

$4.16 (USD)

$4.16 (USD)

Expiry
Date

12/12/23

12/12/23

04/26/24




Terry Taouss®  Options 62,500 options ~ 12/12/2018 $1.84 $4.16 12/12/23

President exercisable into (USD) (USD)
62,500
common shares
Brian Penny©® Options 18,750 options 06/22/2018 $5.28 $6.88 06/22/23
Director exercisable into (USD)
18,750
common shares
Stuart Options 4,687 options 06/22/2018 $5.28 $6.88 06/22/23
Waooldridge”) exercisable into (USD)
Director 4,687
common shares
Notes:
(€))] Tidal Shares began trading on the CSE on June 25, 2018.
2 Mr. Rosen had 288,750 options outstanding at the end the end of the most recently completed financial year.
ESg Mr. van der Linde had 12,500 options outstanding at the end the end of the most recently completed financial year.
4) Mr. Taouss had128,125 options outstanding at the end the end of the most recently completed financial year.
5) Mr. Purdy had 9,3750 options outstanding at the end the end of the most recently completed financial year.
6) Mr. Penny had 18,750 options outstanding at the end the end of the most recently completed financial year.
) Mr. Wooldridge had 4,687 options outstanding at the end the end of the most recently completed financial year.

Exercise of Compensation Securities by Directors and Named Executive Officers

No compensation securities were exercised by any director or NEO during the year ended July 31,
2019.
External Management Companies

None of the NEOs or directors of the Issuer have been retained or employed by an external
management company which has entered into an understanding, arrangement or agreement with
the Issuer to provide executive management services to the Issuer, directly or indirectly.

Stock Option Plans and Other Incentive Plans

The only equity compensation plan which the Issuer has in place is the 10% rolling stock option
plan (the “Option Plan”) dated July 15, 2017, amended and restated as of December 6, 2018, as
approved by shareholders of the Issuer at its annual general and special meeting held on
December 6, 2018. The purpose of the Option Plan is to provide the Issuer with a share-related
mechanism to attract, retain and motivate qualified directors, officers, employees and consultants,
to reward such of those directors, officers, employees and consultants as may be awarded options
under the Option Plan by the Tidal Board from time to time for their contributions toward the long
term goals of the Issuer and to enable and encourage such directors, officers, employees and
consultants to acquire Tidal Shares as long term investments.

The following information is intended to be a brief summary of the Option Plan:

The maximum number of Tidal Shares with respect to which options may be granted
pursuant to the Option Plan shall not exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding Tidal Shares
on a non-diluted basis at any time;

Options may be granted only to directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Issuer
or any related entity of the Issuer;
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The total number of Tidal Shares that may be reserved for issuance to any one individual
under the Option Plan shall not exceed 5% of the outstanding Tidal Shares. The maximum
number of options that may be granted to any one consultant under the Option Plan, or
employees performing investor relations activities for the Issuer, within any 12-month
period shall not exceed 2% of the issued and outstanding Tidal Shares at the time of the
grant;

The term of an option shall not exceed ten years from the date of the grant of the option;

Subject to allowable adjustments, the option price of any option shall not be lower than the
market price on the date on which the grant of the option is approved by the Tidal Board,

An option shall be personal to the optionee and shall be non-assignable and non-transferable
(whether by operation of law or otherwise);

In the event that any optionee ceases to be an eligible person under the Option Plan (i.e.
ceases to be an officer, director, employee or consultant for any reason other than death or
termination with cause), the optionee will be entitled to exercise his or her options which
have vested as of such date of cessation only within a period of 30 days following the date
of such cessation or such other date as may be determined by the Tidal Board, but in no
event may any options be exercised following the expiry date thereof. In the event an
optionee is terminated with cause, the options held by such optionee will expire on the date
of such termination. In the event of the death of an optionee, any options held by such
optionee which have vested as of the date of death may be exercised within a period of one
year following the optionee’s death;

The Tidal Board may at any time amend the Option Plan or any options granted thereunder,
subject to the receipt of all applicable regulatory approvals, other than substantive
amendments to the Option Plan, which also require shareholder approval; and

In the event that an offer to purchase or repurchase Tidal Shares or any part thereof shall be
made to all or substantially all holders of Tidal Shares, the options shall be automatically
and immediately accelerated such that all remaining options will then be available for
exercise.

Employment, consulting and management agreements

Other than as set out below, the Issuer has not entered into any other contract, agreement, plan or
arrangement that provides for payments to a NEO or a director at, following or in connection with
any termination (whether voluntary, involuntary or constructive), resignation, retirement a change
in control of the Issuer or a change in an NEOs or directors’ responsibilities.

The Issuer entered into a management consulting agreement with Theo van der Linde effective
July 20, 2017 with regard to his services as Chief Financial Officer of the Issuer. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Issuer has agreed to pay Mr. van der Linde a base salary of $72,000 per annum and
shall continue indefinitely until terminated by either party in accordance with the terms of the
agreement. The agreement provides for a severance clause of three months’ notice for
termination.
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In the event that Mr. van der Linde resigns for “Good Cause” following a “Change of Control” (as
those terms are defined in the applicable agreement), Mr. van der Linde will be entitled to two
times the annual pro-rated fee paid.

The Issuer entered into an informal verbal agreement with Paul Rosen effective July 20, 2017 with
regard to his services as CEO of the Issuer. Pursuant to the informal verbal agreement, the Issuer
has agreed to pay Mr. Rosen a base salary of $300,000 per annum and shall continue indefinitely
until terminated by either party. The agreement does not contain severance or change of control
provisions. Subsequent to the year ended July 31, 2018, Mr. Rosen’s salary was increased to
$400,000 per annum. Mr. Rosen ceased to act as an officer and director of the Issuer effective
February 2019.

The Issuer entered into an informal verbal agreement with Terry Taouss effective July 5, 2018
with regard to his services as President of the Issuer. Pursuant to the informal verbal agreement,
the Issuer has agreed to pay Mr. Taouss a base salary of $175,000 per annum, with possible
bonuses to be awarded at the discretion of the Tidal Board and shall continue indefinitely until
terminated by either party. The agreement provides for a severance clause of twelve months’
notice for termination. The agreement does not contain change of control provisions. Subsequent
to the year ended July 31, 2018, Mr. Taouss’s salary was increased to $250,000. Mr. Taouss
ceased to act as an officer of the Issuer effective February 2019.

Oversight and description of director and named executive officer compensation

The Tidal Board is responsible for determining, by way of discussions at board meetings, the
compensation to be paid to the NEOs and directors of the Issuer. The Tidal Board conducts
reviews with regard to the compensation of the directors and the executive officers once a year.

Director Compensation

For the financial year ended July 31, 2019, the Issuer did not employ a nominating committee. All
tasks related to developing and monitoring the approach to the nomination of directors to the Tidal
Board were performed by the members of the Tidal Board.

Other than as set forth in the foregoing, no director of the Issuer who is not a Named Executive
Officer has received, during the most recently completed financial year, compensation pursuant
to:

(a) any standard arrangement for the compensation of directors for their services in their
capacity as directors, including any additional amounts payable for committee participation

or special assignments;

(b) any other arrangement, in addition to, or in lieu of, any standard arrangement, for the
compensation of directors in their capacity as directors; or

(c) any arrangement for the compensation of directors for services as consultants or expert.
Named Executive Officer Compensation
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For the financial year ended July 31, 2019, the Issuer did not have a formal compensation
program with specific performance goals nor did it employ a compensation committee. All tasks
related to developing and monitoring the Issuer’s approach to the compensation of officers were
performed by the members of the Tidal Board. The compensation of each of the NEOs was
reviewed, recommended and approved by the Issuer’s independent directors.

The Tidal Board considers the performance of each NEO along with the Issuer’s ability to pay
compensation and the Issuer's results of operation for the period. As the objectives of the Issuer’s
compensation procedures are to align the interests of employees with the interests of shareholders,
a significant portion of total compensation is based upon overall corporate performance.

Compensation is designed to achieve the following key objectives:
to support our overall business strategy and objectives;
to provide market competitive compensation that is substantially performance-based;

to provide incentives that encourage superior corporate performance and retention of highly
skilled and talented NEOs; and

to align executive compensation with corporate performance and therefore shareholders'
interests.

The Issuer’s compensation package is comprised of short-term compensation in the form of base
salary or service fees, medium-term compensation in the form of discretionary cash bonuses and
long-term compensation in the form of option-based awards. The Issuer does not have a formal
compensation program which sets benchmarks for performance by NEOs. Base salary is
determined by the Tidal Board largely based on market standards. In addition, the Tidal Board
may consider, on an annual basis, an award of bonuses to key executives and senior management.
The amount and award of such bonuses is discretionary, depending on, among other factors, the
financial performance of the Issuer and the position of a participant. The Tidal Board considers
that the payment of such discretionary annual cash bonuses satisfies the medium-term
compensation component. No bonuses were awarded for the financial year ended July 31, 2019.
Lastly, the Issuer chooses to grant stock options to executive officers to satisfy the long-term
compensation component.

The Tidal Board has not directly considered the implications of the risks associated with our
compensation policies and practices. The Issuer does not have a set policy preventing an NEO or
director from purchasing financing instruments such as prepaid variable forward contracts, equity
swaps, collars or units of exchange funds designed to hedge or offset a decrease in market value of
equity securities granted as compensation or held, directly or indirectly, by such person. The
Issuer does not use a peer group to determine compensation.

Since the end of the July 31, 2019 financial year, the Tidal Board has established a Compensation
Committee.
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Pension Disclosure

The Issuer does not have a pension plan that provides for payments or benefits to the NEOs or
directors at, following, or in connection with retirement. The Issuer does not have any form of
deferred compensation plan.

Post-Transaction Executive Compensation

After Completion of the Transaction, the Resulting Issuer will enter into management agreements
with certain key employees of the company pursuant to which each will provide their respective
services to the Resulting Issuer. The terms and conditions of all such management agreements
have not yet been determined and will be subject to the prior approval of the Resulting Issuer’s
Board of Directors.

It is anticipated that the Resulting Issuer will pay compensation to its directors in the form of
annual fees for attending meetings of the Resulting Issuer’s Board of Directors. Directors may
receive additional compensation for participating in and acting as chairs of committees of the
Resulting Issuer. Directors will also be entitled to receive stock options and other applicable
awards as determined by the Resulting Issuer’s Board and will be reimbursed for any out-of-
pocket travel expenses incurred in order to attend meetings of the Resulting Issuer’s Board,
committees of the Resulting Issuer’s Board or meetings of the shareholders of the Resulting
Issuer. It is also anticipated that the Resulting Issuer will obtain customary insurance for the
benefit of its directors and enter into indemnification agreements with its directors pursuant to
which the Resulting Issuer will agree to indemnify its directors to the extent permitted by
applicable law

16. INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

No director, executive officer or senior officer the Resulting Issuer, or any associates of such
persons, is indebted to the Resulting Issuer and no indebtedness of such persons is the subject of a
guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or other similar arrangement provided by the
Resulting Issuer.

17. RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Resulting Issuer’s securities should be considered highly speculative due to
the nature of our business and the present stage of our development. An investment in the
Resulting Issuer’s securities should only be made by knowledgeable and sophisticated investors
who are willing to risk and can afford the loss of their entire investment. Prospective investors
should consult with their professional advisors to assess an investment in the Resulting Issuer. In
evaluating the Resulting Issuer and its business, investors should carefully consider, in addition to
the other information contained in this Listing Statement, the risk factors listed below. These risk
factors are not a definitive list of all risk factors associated with an investment in the Resulting
Issuer or in connection with our operations.

Risks Relating to an Investment in our Common Shares

The market reaction to the Transaction and the future trading prices of the Resulting Issuer
Shares cannot be predicted.
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Following the Transaction, the price of the Resulting Issuer Shares may fluctuate significantly due
to the market’s reaction to the Transaction and general market and economic conditions. An active
trading market for the Resulting Issuer Shares following the Transaction may never develop or, if
developed, it may not be sustained.

We have no source of operating revenue and it is likely we will operate at a loss until we are able
to realize cash flow from our financings.

We may require additional financing in order to fund our businesses or business expansion. Our
ability to arrange such financing in the future will depend in part upon prevailing capital market
conditions, as well as our business success. There can be no assurance that we will be successful
in our efforts to arrange additional financing on terms satisfactory to us, or at all. If additional
financing is raised by the issuance of common shares from treasury, control of the Resulting
Issuer may change and shareholders may suffer additional dilution. If adequate funds are not
available, or are not available on acceptable terms, we may not be able to operate our businesses
at their maximum potential, to expand, to take advantage of other opportunities, or otherwise
remain in business.

We may issue a substantial number of our common shares without investor approval to raise
additional financing and we may consolidate the current outstanding common shares.

Any such issuance or consolidation of our securities in the future could reduce an investor’s
ownership percentage and voting rights in us and further dilute the value of the investor’s
investment.

The market price of our common shares may experience significant volatility.

Factors such as announcements of quarterly variations in operating results, revenues, costs,
changes in financial estimates or other material comments by securities analysts relating to us, our
competitors or the industry in general, announcements by other companies in the industry relating
to their operations, strategic initiatives, financial condition or performance or relating to the
industry in general, announcements of acquisitions or consolidations involving our portfolio
companies, competitors or among the industry in general, as well as market conditions in the
cannabis industry, such as regulatory developments, may have a significant impact on the market
price of our common shares. Global stock markets and the CSE in particular have, from time to
time, experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations, which have often been unrelated to the
operations of particular companies. Share prices for many companies in our sector have
experienced wide fluctuations that have been often unrelated to the operations of the companies
themselves. In addition, there can be no assurance that an active trading or liquid market will be
sustained for our common shares.

We do not anticipate that any dividends will be paid on our common shares in the foreseeable
future.

We anticipate that we will reinvest any future earnings in the development and growth of our
business. Therefore, investors will not receive any funds unless they sell their common shares, and
shareholders may not be able to sell their shares on favourable terms or at all.
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The Resulting Issuer has a limited operating history with respect to financings in the U.S.
cannabis sector, which can make it difficult for investors to evaluate the Resulting Issuer’s
operations and prospects and may increase the risks associated with investment in the Resulting
Issuer.

The Resulting Issuer has a history of negative cash flow and losses that is not expected to change
in the short term. Financings may not begin generating cash flow to the Resulting Issuer for
several years following any financing.

The Resulting Issuer will face intense competition from other companies, some of which can be
expected to have longer operating histories and more financial resources and experience than the
Resulting Issuer.

Currently, the U.S. cannabis industry generally is comprised of individuals and small to medium-
sized entities. However, the risk remains that large conglomerates and companies who also
recognize the potential for financial success through investment in this industry could strategically
purchase or assume control of certain aspects of the industry. In doing so, these larger competitors
could establish price setting and cost controls which would effectively “price out” many of the
individuals and small to medium-sized entities who currently make up the bulk of the participants
in the varied businesses operating within and in support of the medical and adult-use marijuana
industry. While the trend in connection with most state laws and regulations may deter this type of
takeover, this industry remains quite nascent, and therefore faces many unknown future
developments, which in itself is a risk.

Because of the early stage of the industry in which the Resulting Issuer will operate, the Resulting
Issuer expects to face additional competition from new entrants. The Resulting Issuer may not
have sufficient resources to remain competitive, which could materially and adversely affect the
business, financial condition and results of operations of the Resulting Issuer.

Resulting Issuer indebtedness could have a number of adverse impacts on the Resulting Issuer,
including reducing the availability of cash flows to fund working capital and capital expenses.

Any indebtedness of the Resulting Issuer could have significant consequences on the Resulting
Issuer, including: increase the Resulting Issuer’s vulnerability to general adverse economic and
industry conditions; require the Resulting Issuer to dedicate a substantial portion of its cash flow
from operations to making interest and principal payments on its indebtedness, reducing the
availability of the Resulting Issuer’s cash flow to fund capital expenditures, working capital and
other general corporate purposes; limit the Resulting Issuer’s flexibility in planning for, or
reacting to, changes in the business and the industry in which it operates; place the Resulting
Issuer at a competitive disadvantage compared to its competitors that have greater financial
resources; and limit the Resulting Issuer’s ability to complete fundamental corporate changes or
transactions or to declare or pay dividends.

The Resulting Issuer’s revenues and expenses may be negatively impacted by fluctuations in
currency.

The Resulting Issuer’s revenues and expenses are expected to be primarily denominated in U.S.
dollars, and therefore may be exposed to significant currency exchange fluctuations. Recent events
in the global financial markets have been coupled with increased volatility in the currency
markets. Fluctuations in the exchange rate between the U.S. dollar and the Canadian dollar may
have a
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material adverse effect on the Resulting Issuer’s business, financial condition and operating
results. The Resulting Issuer may, in the future, establish a program to hedge a portion of its
foreign currency exposure with the objective of minimizing the impact of adverse foreign
currency exchange movements. However, even if the Resulting Issuer develops a hedging
program, there can be no assurance that it will effectively mitigate currency risks.

Risks Related to the Cannabis Industry

While certain U.S. states have enacted medical and/or adult-use cannabis legislation, cannabis
continues to be illegal under U.S. federal law, which may subject us to regulatory or legal
enforcement, litigation, increased costs and reputational harm.

More than half of the U.S. states have enacted legislation to regulate the sale and use of cannabis
on either a medical or adult-use level. However, notwithstanding the permissive regulatory
environment of cannabis at the state level, cannabis continues to be categorized as a controlled
substance under the U.S. Controlled Substances Act of 1970 (“CSA”), and as such, activities
within the cannabis industry are illegal under U.S. federal law. It is also illegal to aid or abet such
activities or to conspire to attempt to engage in such activities. Financing businesses in the
cannabis industry may be deemed aiding and abetting an illegal activity under federal law. If such
an action were brought, we may be forced to cease operations and our investors could lose their
entire investment. Such an action would have a material negative effect on our business and
operations. For background information on the inconsistency between state and federal regulation
of cannabis, please refer to “Item 4.2 - Market Information, Trends, Commitments, Events and
Uncertainties — Effects of Government Regulations”.

2018 Farm Bill

For background, hemp is defined in the legislation as the cannabis plant which is the same plant
that produced marijuana. The key difference is that hemp cannot contain more than 0.3% of
THC. In conclusion hemp does not have the same euphoria effects. For decades in the US,
federal law did not differentiate hemp from other cannabis plants, all of which were effectively
made illegal in 1937 under the Marijuana Tax Act and formally made illegal in 1970 under the
Controlled Substance Act which under the 1970 Controlled Substance Act bans cannabis of any
kind.

There were pilot programs to study hemp, often referred to as “industrial hemp” that were
approved by both the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) and the state departments of
agriculture in the US. This allowed small-scale expansion of hemp cultivation for limited
purposes.

The 2018 Farm Bill is more expansive as it allows for hemp cultivation broadly, not simple pilot
programs for studying market interest in hemp-derived products. It explicitly allows the transfer
of hemp-derived products across state lines in the US for commercial or other purposes. It also
puts no restrictions on the scale, transport or possession of hem-derived products, so long as those
items are produced in a manner consistent with the law.

As noted above, hemp cannot contain more than 0.3% THC, per section 1-113 of the 2018 Farm
Bill. Any cannabis plant that contains more than 0.3% THC would be considered non-hemp
cannabis (or marijuana) under US Federal Law and would therefore not be protected under the
2018 Farm Bill.
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Second, there will be significant shared state-federal regulatory power over hemp cultivation and
production. Under section 10113 of the 2018 Farm Bill state departments of agriculture must
consult with the state’s governor and chief law enforcement office to devise a plan that must be
submitted to the Secretary of the USDA. A state’s plan to licence and regulate hemp can only
commence once the Secretary of the USDA approves that state’s plan. In states opting t not to
devise a hemp regulatory program the USDA will construct a regulatory program under which
hemp cultivators in those states must apply for licenses and comply with a federally run program

Third, the law outlines actions that are considered violations of federal hemp law including such
activities as cultivating without a licenses or producing cannabis with more than 0.3% THC. The
law details possible punishments for such violations, pathways for violators to become compliant
and even which activities qualify as felonies under the law, such as repeated offenses,

One big misconception about the 2018 Farm Bill is that cannabidiol (CBD — a non-intoxicating
compound found in cannabis) is legalized. It is true that section 12619 of the 2018 Farm Bill
removed hemp-derived products from its schedule I status under the Controlled Substance Act, but
the legislation does not legalize CBD generally as it remains a Schedule I substance under federal
law. The 2018 Farm Bill ensures that any cannabinoid (a set of chemical compounds found in the
cannabis plant that is derived from hemp) will be legal if and only if that hemp is produced in a
manner consistent with the 2018 Farm Bill, associated federal regulations, associated state
regulations and by the licensed grower. All other cannabinoids produced in any other setting,
remain a Schedule I substance under federal law and are thus illegal. The one exception is
pharmaceutical-grade CBD products that have been approved by the FDA which currently
includes one drug which is GW Pharmaceutical’s Epidiolex.

The funding of businesses in the cannabis industry may expose us to potential criminal liability.

While we do not intend to harvest, distribute or sell cannabis, the funding of businesses in the
medical and adult-use cannabis industry could be deemed to be participating in marijuana
cultivation, which remains illegal under federal law pursuant to the CSA and exposes us to
potential criminal liability, with the additional risk that our properties, or those of our portfolio
companies, could be subject to civil forfeiture proceedings. For background information on the
inconsistency between state and federal regulation of cannabis, please refer to “ltem 4.2 - Market
Information, Trends, Commitments, Events and Uncertainties — Effects of Government
Regulations”.

Management may not be able to predict all new emerging risks or how such risks may impact
actual results of the Resulting Issuer in the highly regulated, highly competitive and rapidly
evolving U.S. cannabis industry.

As a result of the conflicting views between state legislatures and the federal government
regarding cannabis, financings with cannabis related businesses in the U.S. are subject to a higher
degree of uncertainty and risk. Such risks are difficult to predict. For instance, it is presently
unclear whether the U.S. federal government intends to enforce federal laws relating to cannabis
where the conduct at issue is legal under applicable state law. Further, there can be no assurance
that state laws legalizing and regulating the sale and use of cannabis will not be repealed or
overturned, or that local governmental authorities will not limit the applicability of state laws
within their respective jurisdictions.
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Unless and until the U.S. federal government amends the CSA with respect to cannabis (and as to
the timing or scope of any such potential amendment there can be no assurance), there can be no
assurance that it will not seek to prosecute cases involving cannabis businesses that are otherwise
compliant with state law. Such potential proceedings could result in significant fines, penalties,
administrative sanctions, convictions or settlements arising from civil proceedings conducted by
either the federal government or private citizens; or criminal charges, including, but not limited to,
disgorgement of profits, cessation of business activities or divestiture. Such proceedings could
have a material adverse effect on the Resulting Issuer’s business, revenues, operating results and
financial condition as well as the Resulting Issuer’s reputation, even if such proceedings were
concluded successfully in favour of the Resulting Issuer. The regulatory uncertainties make
identifying the new risks applicable to the Resulting Issuer and its business and the assessment of
the impact of those risks on the Resulting Issuer and its business extremely difficult.

The U.S. cannabis industry is subject to extensive controls and regulations, which impose
significant costs on the Resulting Issuer and its portfolio companies and may affect the financial
condition of market participants, including the Resulting Issuer.

Participants in the U.S. cannabis industry will incur ongoing costs and obligations related to
regulatory compliance. Failure to comply with regulations may result in additional costs for
corrective measures, penalties or restrictions of operations. In addition, changes in regulations,
more vigorous enforcement thereof or other unanticipated events could require extensive changes
to operations, increased compliance costs or give rise to material liabilities, which could have a
material adverse effect on the business, results of operations and financial condition of the
participant and, thereby, on the Resulting Issuer’s prospective returns.

It is also important to note that local and city ordinances may strictly limit and/or restrict the
distribution of cannabis in a manner that will make it extremely difficult or impossible to transact
business in the cannabis industry. If the U.S. federal government begins to enforce federal laws
relating to cannabis in states where the sale and use of cannabis is currently legal, or if existing
state laws are repealed or curtailed, then the Resulting Issuer’s financings in such businesses
would be materially and adversely affected notwithstanding that the Resulting Issuer may not be
directly engaged in the sale or distribution of cannabis.

Changes to or the imposition of new government regulations, including those relating to taxes and
other government levies, may affect the marketability of cannabis products. Such changes in
government levies (including taxes), which are beyond the control of the participant and which
cannot be predicted, could reduce the Resulting Issuer’s earnings and could make future financing
uneconomic.

The Resulting Issuer and the companies it funds may become subject to litigation which could
have a significant impact on the Resulting Issuer’s profitability.

The cannabis industry is subject to numerous legal challenges and could become subject to new,
unexpected legal challenges. The Resulting Issuer, or one or more of the Resulting Issuer’s
portfolio companies, may become subject to a variety of claims and lawsuits, such as U.S. federal
actions against any individual or entity engaged in the marijuana industry. There can be no
assurances the federal government of the United States or other jurisdictions will not seek to
enforce the applicable laws against the Resulting Issuer. The consequences of such enforcement
would be materially adverse to the Resulting Issuer and the Resulting Issuer’s business and could
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result in the forfeiture or seizure of all or substantially all of the Resulting Issuer’s assets.
Litigation and other claims are subject to inherent uncertainties and management’s view of these
matters may change in the future. Adverse outcomes in some or all of these claims may result in
significant monetary damages or injunctive relief that could adversely affect our ability to conduct
our business. A material adverse impact on our financial statements also could occur for the
period in which the effect of an unfavorable final outcome becomes probable and reasonably
estimable.

As the possession and use of cannabis is illegal under the CSA, we may be deemed to be aiding
and abetting illegal activities through the funding of our portfolio companies, and as such may be
subject to enforcement actions which could materially and adversely affect our business.

The possession, use, cultivation, or transfer of cannabis remains illegal under the CSA. As a
result, law enforcement authorities regulating the illegal use of cannabis may seek to bring an
action or actions against us, including, but not limited to, a claim of aiding and abetting another’s
criminal activities. The federal aiding and abetting statute provides that anyone who “commits an
offense against the United States or aids, abets, counsels, commands, induces or procures its
commission, is punishable as a principal.” 18 U.S.C. §2(a). Such an action would have a material
adverse impact on our business and operations.

Losing access to traditional banking and the application of anti-money laundering rules and
regulations to our business could have a significant effect on our ability to conclude financings
and achieve returns.

The Resulting Issuer is subject to a variety of laws and regulations in Canada and the U.S. that
involve money laundering, financial recordkeeping and proceeds of crime, including the U.S.
Currency and Foreign Transactions Reporting Act of 1970 (commonly known as the Bank
Secrecy Act), as amended by Title III of the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing
Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (USA PATRIOT

Act), the Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Terrorist Financing Act (Canada), as
amended and the rules and regulations thereunder, and any related or similar rules, regulations or
guidelines, issued, administered or enforced by governmental authorities in the U.S. and Canada.
Further, under U.S. federal law, banks or other financial institutions that provide a cannabis
business with a chequing account, debit or credit card, small business loan, or any other service
could be found guilty of money laundering, aiding and abetting, or conspiracy. For background on
these laws and various guidance issued by certain regulatory authorities concerning banking
cannabis-related businesses, please refer to “Item 4.2 - Market Information, Trends, Commitments,
Events and Uncertainties — Effects of Government Regulations”.

Overall, since the production and possession of cannabis is illegal under U.S. federal law, there is
a strong argument that banks cannot accept for deposit funds from businesses involved with the
cannabis industry. Consequently, businesses involved in the cannabis industry often have
difficulty finding a bank willing to accept their business. As the Resulting Issuer will have a
material ancillary involvement in the U.S. legal cannabis industry, the Resulting Issuer may find
that it is unable to open bank accounts with certain Canadian financial institutions, which in turn
may make it difficult to operate the Resulting Issuer’s business. Furthermore, the Resulting
Issuer’s U.S. subsidiaries may be unable to open bank accounts with U.S. financial institutions,
which may also make it difficult to operate the Resulting Issuer’s business.
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Proceeds from the Resulting Issuer’s financings could be considered proceeds of crime which may
restrict the Resulting Issuer’s ability to pay dividends or effect other distributions to its
shareholders.

The Resulting Issuer’s future financings, and any proceeds thereof, may be considered proceeds of
crime due to the fact that cannabis remains illegal federally in the U.S. This may restrict the
ability of the Resulting Issuer to declare or pay dividends, effect other distributions or
subsequently repatriate such funds back to Canada. Furthermore, while the Resulting Issuer has no
current intention to declare or pay dividends on its Shares in the foreseeable future, the Resulting
Issuer may decide or be required to suspend declaring or paying dividends without advance notice
and for an indefinite period of time.

The Resulting Issuer has historically relied entirely on access to both public and private capital in
order to support its continuing operations, and the Resulting Issuer expects to continue to rely
almost exclusively on the capital markets to finance its business in the U.S. legal cannabis
industry.

Although such business carries a higher degree of risk, and despite the legal standing of cannabis
businesses pursuant to U.S. federal laws, Canadian based issuers involved in the U.S. legal
cannabis industry have been successful in raising substantial amounts of private and public
financing. However, there is no assurance the Resulting Issuer will be successful, in whole or in
part, in raising funds in the future, particularly if the U.S. federal authorities change their position
toward enforcing the CSA. Further, access to funding from U.S. residents may be limited due to
their unwillingness to be associated with activities which violate U.S. federal laws.

The Resulting Issuer’s involvement in the U.S. cannabis industry may become the subject of
heightened scrutiny by regulators, stock exchanges, clearing agencies and other authorities in

Canada, which could lead to the imposition of certain restrictions on the Resulting Issuer’s ability
to invest in the U.S.

It has been reported in Canada that the Canadian Depository for Securities Limited is considering
a policy shift that would see its subsidiary, CDS Clearing and Depository Services Inc. (“CDS”),
refuse to settle trades for cannabis issuers that have investments in the U.S. CDS is Canada’s
central securities depository, clearing and settling trades in the Canadian equity, fixed income and
money markets. The TMX Group, the owner and operator of CDS, subsequently issued a
statement on August 17, 2017 reaffirming that there is no CDS ban on the clearing of securities of
issuers with cannabis-related activities in the U.S., despite media reports to the contrary, and that
the TMX Group was working with regulators to arrive at a solution that will clarify this matter,
which would be communicated at a later time. If such a ban were to be implemented, it would
have a material adverse effect on the ability of holders of the Resulting Issuer’s Shares to make
and settle trades. In particular, the Shares would become highly illiquid as until an alternative was
implemented, investors would have no ability to effect a trade of the Shares through the facilities
of the Exchange.

On February 8, 2018, following discussions with the Canadian Securities Administrators and
recognized Canadian securities exchanges, the TMX Group announced the signing of a
Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) with Aequitas NEO Exchange Inc., the CSE, the
Toronto Stock Exchange, and the TSX Venture Exchange. The MOU outlines the parties’
understanding of Canada’s regulatory framework applicable to the rules, procedures, and
regulatory oversight of the exchanges and CDS as it relates to issuers with cannabis-related
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activities in the U.S. The MOU confirms, with respect to the clearing of listed securities, that CDS
relies on the exchanges to review the conduct of listed issuers. As a result, there is no CDS ban on
the clearing of securities of issuers with cannabis-related activities in the U.S. However, there can
be no guarantee that this approach to regulation will continue in the future.

For the reasons set forth above, the Resulting Issuer’s future financings in the U.S. may become
the subject of heightened scrutiny by regulators, stock exchanges and other authorities in Canada.
As a result, the Resulting Issuer may be subject to significant direct and indirect interaction with
public officials. There can be no assurance that this heightened scrutiny will not in turn lead to the
imposition of certain restrictions on the Resulting Issuer’s ability to invest in the U.S. or any other
jurisdiction, in addition to those described herein.

The Resulting Issuer’s proposed business operations will indirectly be affected by a variety of
laws, regulations and guidelines which could increase compliance costs substantially or require
the alteration of business plans.

The Resulting Issuer’s business operations will indirectly be affected by laws and regulations
relating to the manufacture, management, transportation, storage and disposal of cannabis, as well
as laws and regulations relating to consumable products health and safety, the conduct of
operations and the protection of the environment. These laws are broad in scope and subject to
evolving interpretations, which could require participants to incur substantial costs associated with
compliance or alter certain aspects of its business plans. In addition, violations of these laws, or
allegations of such violations, could disrupt certain aspects of the Resulting Issuer’s business plans
and result in a material adverse effect on certain aspects of its planned operations.

As consumer perceptions regarding legality, morality, consumption, safety, efficacy and quality of
cannabis evolve, the Resulting Issuer may face unfavourable publicity or consumer perception.

The legal cannabis industry in the U.S. is at an early stage of its development. Cannabis has been,
and will continue to be, a controlled substance for the foreseeable future. Consumer perceptions
regarding legality, morality, consumption, safety, efficacy and quality of cannabis are mixed and
evolving. Consumer perception can be significantly influenced by scientific research or findings,
regulatory investigations, litigation, media attention and other publicity regarding the
consumption of cannabis products. There can be no assurance that future scientific research,
findings, regulatory proceedings, litigation, media attention or other research findings or publicity
will be favourable to the cannabis market or any particular product, or consistent with earlier
publicity. Future research reports, findings, regulatory proceedings, litigation, media attention or
other publicity that are perceived as less favourable than, or that question, earlier research reports,
findings or publicity could have a material adverse effect on the demand for cannabis and on the
business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows of the Resulting Issuer. Further,
adverse publicity reports or other media attention regarding cannabis in general or associating the
consumption of cannabis with illness or other negative effects or events, could have such a
material adverse effect. Public opinion and support for medical and adult-use cannabis use has
traditionally been inconsistent and varies from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. While public opinion
and support appears to be rising for legalizing medical and adult-use cannabis, it remains a
controversial issue subject to differing opinions surrounding the level of legalization (for example,
medical marijuana as opposed to legalization in general). The Resulting Issuer’s ability to gain
and increase market acceptance of its proposed royalty business may require substantial
expenditures on investor relations, strategic
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relationships and marketing initiatives. There can be no assurance that such initiatives will be
successful and their failure may have an adverse effect on the Resulting Issuer.

Cannabis use may increase the risk of serious adverse side effects which could subject the
Resulting Issuer or its portfolio companies to product liability claims, regulatory action and
litigation.

As a company that finances businesses in the cannabis industry, we face the risk of exposure to, or
having our portfolio companies exposed to, product liability claims, regulatory action and
litigation if the products or services of our portfolio companies are alleged to have caused loss or
injury. Our portfolio companies may become subject to product liability claims due to allegations
that their products caused or contributed to injury or illness, failed to include adequate instructions
for use or failed to include adequate warnings concerning possible side effects or interactions with
other substances. This risk is exacerbated by the fact that cannabis use may increase the risk of
developing schizophrenia and other psychoses, may exacerbate the symptoms for individuals with
bipolar disorder, may increase the risk for the development of depressive disorders, may impair
learning, memory and attention capabilities, and result in other side effects. In addition, previously
unknown adverse reactions resulting from human consumption of cannabis products alone or in
combination with other medications or substances could also occur. There can be no assurance
that our portfolio companies will be able to maintain product liability insurance on acceptable
terms or with adequate coverage against potential liabilities. Such insurance is expensive and may
not be available in the future on acceptable terms, or at all. The inability to obtain sufficient
insurance coverage on reasonable terms or to otherwise protect against potential product liability
claims could result in our portfolio companies becoming subject to significant liabilities that are
uninsured and also could adversely affect their commercial arrangements with third parties. Such a
product liability claim or regulatory action against an operator could result in increased costs,
could adversely affect the Resulting Issuer’s financing and reputation, and could have a material
adverse effect on the results of operations and financial condition of the Resulting Issuer.

If our portfolio companies do not comply with applicable packaging, labeling and advertising
restrictions on the sale of cannabis in the adult-use market, we could face increased costs, our
reputation could be negatively affected and there could be a material adverse effect on our results
of operations and financial condition.

Products distributed by our portfolio companies into the adult-use market may be required to
comply with legislative requirements relating to product formats, product packaging, and
marketing activities around such products, among others. As such, the portfolio of brands and
products of our portfolio companies will need to be specifically adapted, and their marketing
activities carefully structured, to enable them to develop their brands in an effective and compliant
manner. If our portfolio companies are unable to effectively market their cannabis products and
compete for market share, or if the costs relating to compliance with government legislation
increase beyond what can be absorbed in the price of products, our earnings could be adversely
affected which could make future financing uneconomic.

The products of our portfolio companies may become subject to product recalls, which could
negatively impact our results of operations.

Manufacturers and distributors of products are sometimes subject to the recall or return of their
products for a variety of reasons, including product defects, such as contamination, unintended
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harmful side effects or interactions with other substances, packaging safety and inadequate or
inaccurate labeling disclosure. If any of the products of our portfolio companies are recalled due
to an alleged product defect or for any other reason, such recall may disrupt certain aspects of the
Resulting Issuer’s business plans and result in a material adverse effect on certain aspects of its
planned operations. In addition, a product recall involving one or multiple of our portfolio
companies may require significant attention by our senior management. If the products of one of
our portfolio companies were subject to recall, the image of that brand and the Resulting Issuer as
an investor could be harmed. A recall for any of the foregoing reasons could lead to decreased
demand for the products of our portfolio companies and could have a material adverse effect on
the results of operations and financial condition of the Resulting Issuer. Additionally, product
recalls may lead to increased scrutiny of our operations by the U.S. FDA, Health Canada or other
regulatory agencies, requiring further senior management attention and potential legal fees and
other expenses.

General Business Risks
There can be no assurance that future financings made by the Resulting Issuer will be profitable.

As part of the Resulting Issuer’s overall business strategy, the Resulting Issuer intends to pursue
its financing policy and objectives. There are always risks associated with any business
transaction, particularly one that involves a largely cash based operation, operating in a new and
growing field, with conflicting federal and state laws. There is no assurance any financings will be
profitable.

As the cannabis industry is nascent, expectations regarding the development of the market may
not be accurate and may change.

Due to the early stage of the legal cannabis industry, forecasts regarding the size of the industry
and the sales of products are inherently subject to significant unreliability. A failure in the demand
for products to materialize as a result of competition, technological change or other factors could
have a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations and financial condition of the
Resulting Issuer.

The success of the Resulting Issuer is dependent upon the ability, expertise, judgment, discretion
and good faith of its board of directors and senior management.

The Resulting Issuer must rely substantially upon the knowledge and expertise of its directors and
officers in entering into any investment arrangements or transactions and in determining the
composition of the Resulting Issuer’s investment portfolio. The loss of any of the Resulting
Issuer’s directors and/or officers could have a material adverse effect on the Resulting Issuer’s
business, operating results or financial condition.

The Resulting Issuer’s participation in the cannabis industry may lead to litigation, formal or
informal complaints, enforcement actions, and inquiries by various federal, state, or local
governmental authorities.

Litigation, complaints, and enforcement actions the Resulting Issuer could consume considerable
amounts of financial and other corporate resources, which could have an adverse effect on the
Resulting Issuer’s future cash flows, earnings, results of operations and financial condition.
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The Resulting Issuer is a British Columbia corporation governed by the Business Corporations
Act (British Columbia) and, as such, our corporate structure, the rights and obligations of
shareholders and our corporate bodies may be different from those of the home countries of
international investors.

Non-Canadian residents may find it more difficult and costlier to exercise shareholder rights.
International investors may also find it costly and difficult to effect service of process and enforce
their civil liabilities against us or some of our directors, controlling persons and officers.

The cultivation, extraction and processing of cannabis and derivative products is dependent on a
number of key inputs and their related costs including raw materials, electricity, water and other
local utilities.

Any significant interruption or negative change in the availability or economics of the supply
chain for key inputs could materially impact the business, financial condition and operating
results of an operator. Some of these inputs may only be available from a single supplier or a
limited group of suppliers.

If a sole source supplier was to go out of business, an operator might be unable to find a
replacement for such source in a timely manner or at all. Any inability to secure required supplies
and services or to do so on appropriate terms could have a materially adverse impact on the
business, financial condition and operating results of an operator, and consequently, the Resulting
Issuer.

The success of the Resulting Issuer may depend, in part, on the ability of an operator to maintain
and enhance trade secret protection over its various existing and potential proprietary techniques
and processes, or trademark and branding developed by it.

Each operator may also be vulnerable to competitors who develop competing technology, whether
independently or as a result of acquiring access to the proprietary products and trade secrets of the
operator. In addition, effective future patent, copyright and trade secret protection may be
unavailable or limited in certain foreign countries and may be unenforceable under the laws of
certain jurisdictions.

Insurance coverage obtained by an operator may be insufficient to cover all claims to which the
operator may become subject.

The Resulting Issuer will require an operator to have insurance coverage for applicable risks.
However, there can be no assurance that such coverage will be available or sufficient to cover
claims to which the operator may become subject. Each operator may be affected by a number of
operational risks and may not be adequately insured for certain risks, including: civil litigation;
labour disputes; catastrophic accidents; fires; blockades or other acts of social activism; changes
in the regulatory environment; impact of non-compliance with laws and regulations; natural
phenomena, such as inclement weather conditions, floods, earthquakes and ground movements.
There is no assurance that the foregoing risks and hazards will not result in damage to, or
destruction of, an operator’s properties, grow facilities and extraction facilities, personal injury or
death, environmental damage, adverse impacts on the operator’s operations, costs, monetary
losses, potential legal liability and adverse governmental action, any of which could have an
adverse impact on the Resulting Issuer’s future cash flows, earnings and financial condition. Also,
an
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operator may be subject to or affected by liability or sustain loss for certain risks and hazards
against which it may elect not to insure because of the cost. If insurance coverage is unavailable
or insufficient to cover any such claims, an operator’s financial resources, results of operations
and prospects, as well as the Resulting Issuer’s financing, could be adversely affected.

Maintaining a public listing is costly and will add to the Resulting Issuer’s legal and financial
compliance costs.

As a public company, there are costs associated with legal, accounting and other expenses related
to regulatory compliance. Securities legislation and the rules and policies of the CSE require listed
companies to, among other things, adopt corporate governance and related practices, and to
continuously prepare and disclose material information, all of which add to a company’s legal and
financial compliance costs. The Resulting Issuer may also elect to devote greater resources than it
otherwise would have on communication and other activities typically considered important by
publicly traded companies.

The Resulting Issuer may become party to litigation from time to time in the ordinary course of
business which could adversely affect its business.

Should any litigation in which the Resulting Issuer becomes involved be determined against the
Resulting Issuer, such a decision could adversely affect the Resulting Issuer’s ability to continue
operating and the market price for Shares. Even if the Resulting Issuer is involved in litigation and
wins, litigation can redirect significant resources.

The Resulting Issuer may experience difficulty implementing its business strategy.

The growth and expansion of the Resulting Issuer is heavily dependent upon the successful
implementation of its business strategy. There can be no assurance that the Resulting Issuer will
be successful in the implementation of its business strategy.

Conflicts of interest involving the Resulting Issuer’s directors and officers may arise and may be
resolved in a manner that is unfavourable to the Resulting Issuer.

Certain of the Resulting Issuer’s directors and officers are, and may continue to be, involved in
other business ventures through their direct and indirect participation in corporations, partnerships,
joint ventures, etc. that may become potential competitors of the technologies, products and
services the Resulting Issuer intends to provide. Situations may arise in connection with potential
acquisitions or opportunities where the other interests of these directors and officers conflict with
or diverge from the Resulting Issuer’s interests. In accordance with applicable corporate law,
directors who have a material interest in or who is a party to a material contract or a proposed
material contract with the Resulting Issuer are required, subject to certain exceptions, to disclose
that interest and generally abstain from voting on any resolution to approve the contract. In
addition, the directors and officers are required to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the
Resulting Issuer’s best interests. However, in conflict of interest situations, the Resulting Issuer’s
directors and officers may owe the same duty to another company and will need to balance their
competing interests with their duties to the Resulting Issuer. Circumstances (including with
respect to future corporate opportunities) may arise that may be resolved in a manner that is
unfavourable to the Resulting Issuer.
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The available talent pool may not be large enough for the Resulting Issuer to identify and hire
personnel required to develop the business, which may mean that the growth of the Resulting
Issuer’s business will suffer.

As the Resulting Issuer grows, it will need to hire additional human resources to continue to
develop the business. However, experienced talent in the areas of financings and cannabis may be
difficult to source, and there can be no assurance that the appropriate individuals will be available
or affordable to the Resulting Issuer. Without adequate personnel and expertise, the growth of the
Resulting Issuer’s business may suffer.

If the requirements of the Investment Company Act of 1940 (the “1940 Act”) were imposed on the
Resulting Issuer, such requirements would adversely affect our operations.

The Resulting Issuer intends to conduct its operations so that it is not required to register as an
investment company under the 1940 Act. Section 3(a)(1)(A) of the 1940 Act defines an
investment company as any issuer that is or holds itself out as being engaged primarily in the
business of investing, reinvesting or trading in securities. Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the 1940 Act
defines an investment company as any issuer that is engaged or proposes to engage in the business
of investing, reinvesting, owning, holding or trading in securities and owns or proposes to acquire
investment securities having a value exceeding 40% of the value of the issuer’s total assets
(exclusive of U.S. government securities and cash items) on an unconsolidated basis, which we
refer to as the 40% test. Excluded from the term “investment securities,” among other things, are
securities issued by majority-owned subsidiaries that are not themselves investment companies
and are not relying on the exception from the definition of investment company set forth in
Section 3(c)(1) or Section 3(c)(7) of the 1940 Act.

The Resulting Issuer is organized as a holding company that conducts business primarily through
wholly-owned or majority-owned subsidiaries. The Resulting Issuer intends to conduct operations
so that it complies with the 40% test. The Resulting Issuer will monitor our holdings to comply
with this test. Failure to comply with the 40% test could require the Resulting Issuer to register as
an investment company under the 1940 Act, which would have a material adverse effect on our
operations.

There could be adverse tax consequence for our shareholders in the United States if we are
deemed a passive foreign investment company.

Under United States federal income tax laws, if a company is (or for any past period was) a
passive foreign investment company (which we refer to as “PFIC”), it could have adverse United
States federal income tax consequences to U.S. shareholders even if the company is no longer a
PFIC. The determination of whether we are a PFIC is a factual determination made annually
based on all the facts and circumstances and thus is subject to change. Furthermore, the principles
and methodology used in determining whether a company is a PFIC are subject to interpretation.
The Resulting Issuer believes based on current business plans and financial expectations that it
may be a PFIC for the current tax year and future tax years. United States purchasers of our
common shares are urged to consult their tax advisors concerning United States federal income
tax consequences of holding our common shares if we are considered to be a PFIC.

If we are a PFIC, U.S. holders would be subject to adverse U.S. federal income tax consequences
such as the ineligibility for any preferred tax rates on capital gains, the ineligibility for actual or
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deemed dividends, interest charges on certain taxes treated as deferred, and additional reporting
requirements under U.S. federal income tax laws or regulations. Whether or not U.S. holders make
a timely qualified electing fund (or QEF) election or mark-to-market election may affect the U.S.
federal income tax consequences to U.S. holders with respect to the acquisition, ownership, and
disposition of our common shares and any distributions such U.S. holders may receive. Investors
should consult their own tax advisors regarding all aspects of the application of the PFIC rules to
our common shares.

Covid-19

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic has impacted the Issuer’s plans and activities. The
Issuer may face disruption to operations, supply chain delays, travel and trade restrictions and
impact on economic activity in affected countries or regions can be expected and can be difficult
to quantify. Such pandemics or diseases represent a serious threat to maintaining a skilled
workforce industry and could be a major health-care challenge for the Issuer. There can be no
assurance that the Issuer’s personnel will not be impacted by these pandemic diseases and
ultimately that the Issuer would see its workforce productivity reduced or incur increased medical
costs/insurance premiums as a result of these health risks. In addition, the COVID-19 pandemic
has created a dramatic slowdown in the global economy. The duration of the COVID-19
pandemic outbreak and the resultant travel restrictions, social distancing, Government response
actions, business closures and business disruptions, can all have an impact on the Issuer’s
operations and access to capital. There can be no assurance that the Issuer will not be impacted by
adverse consequences that may be brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic on global financial
markets may reduce resource prices, share prices and financial liquidity and thereby that may
severely limit the financing capital available.

18. PROMOTERS
Not Applicable

19. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND REGULATORY ACTIONS

As of the date of this Listing Statement, there are no legal proceedings material, and no
contemplated legal proceedings known to be material, to the Resulting Issuer or its expected
subsidiaries, to which the Resulting Issuer or its expected subsidiaries is a party or of which any of
the Resulting Issuer or its expected subsidiaries’ respective property is the subject matter.

As of the date of this Listing Statement, the Resulting Issuer has not been subject to any penalties
or sanctions imposed by any court or regulatory authority relating to provincial and territorial
securities legislation or by a securities regulatory authority, within the three years immediately
preceding the date hereof, nor has any party entered into a settlement agreement with a securities
regulatory authority within the three years immediately preceding the date hereof, or been subject
to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body or self-regulatory
authority that are necessary to provide full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating
to the Resulting Issuer’s securities or would be likely to be considered important to a reasonable
investor making an investment decision.

85



22.2

20. INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL
TRANSACTIONS

Other than services as directors, executive officers and employees of the Resulting Issuer, the
Resulting Issuer has not acquired any assets or been provided any services in any material
transaction, or in any proposed material transaction, from any director, executive officer, insider
or promoter of the Resulting Issuer, the proposed nominees for election as directors of the
Resulting Issuer, the proposed executive officers, insiders or promoters of the Resulting Issuer, or
their associates and affiliates. Other than as disclosed below, no director, executive officer, insider
or promoter of the Resulting Issuer or any associate or affiliate of any such person or company has
or had any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction that has materially affected or
will materially affect the Resulting Issuer.

21. AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENTS AND REGISTRARS

The Resulting Issuer’s auditor is Manning Elliot LLP, 11th Floor, 1050 West Pender Street,
Vancouver, British Columbia Canada V6E 3S7.

The Resulting Issuer’s transfer agent is National Issuer Services Ltd., 760 — 777 Hornby Street,
Vancouver, British Columbia V6Z 1S4

MichiCann’s independent auditors are Smythe LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants, 1700
—475 Howe St, Vancouver, BC V6C 2B3.

22. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Except for contracts entered into by the Resulting Issuer in the ordinary course of business, the
Resulting Issuer does not currently have any material contracts in place with the exception of:

1. The Business Combination Agreement.
The Debenture Purchase Agreement.
The PharmaCo Debenture.

The PharmaCo Put/Call Option Agreement.

2

3

4

5. The Tidal Debenture.
6. The Bridging Amended Credit Agreement
7. The MAG Merger Agreement

8. The MAG Real Estate Purchase Agreement
22.1  Special Agreements

Not applicable.

Co-tenancy, Unitholders or Limited Partnership Agreements

Not applicable.
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23. INTEREST OF EXPERTS

No person, company or auditor named in this document as having prepared or certified a part of
the document or a report described in this document and no responsible solicitor or any partner of
a responsible solicitor’s firm, holds any material beneficial interest, direct or indirect, in any
securities or property of the Resulting Issuer or of an associate or affiliate of the Resulting Issuer.

24. OTHER MATERIAL FACTS

Other than as set out elsewhere in this Listing Statement, there are no other material facts
about the Resulting Issuer and its securities which are necessary in order for this Listing
Statement to contain full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the
Resulting Issuer and its securities.

25. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
25.1 Financial Statements of the Issuer

Please refer to Appendix “A” for the Issuer’s annual audited financial statements for the fiscal
years ended July 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 and to Appendix “C” for the Issuer’s interim financial
statements for the six months ended January 31, 2020.

25.2 Financial Statements of MichiCann

Please refer to Appendix “E” for MichiCann’s annual audited financial statements for the fiscal
periods ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 and to Appendix “G” for the Michicann’s financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2019.

25.3 Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Statements of the Resulting Issuer as at January
31,2020

Please refer to Appendix I for the Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Statements of the Issuer as at
January 31, 2020.
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CERTIFICATE OF THE ISSUER

Pursuant to a resolution duly passed by its Board of Directors, Red White & Bloom Brands Inc.
hereby applies for the listing of the above mentioned securities on the CSE. The foregoing
contains full, true and plain disclosure of all material information relating to the Red White &
Blooms Brands Inc. It contains no untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a
material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to prevent a statement that is made
from being false or misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made.

Dated this 7th day of May, 2020.

“Brad Rogers” “Theo van der Linde”
Brad Rogers Theo van der Linde
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
“Brendan Purdy” “Michael Marchese”
Brendan Purdy Michael Marchese
Director Director
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MichiCann Medical Inc.
Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 and the period from
December 5, 2017 (incorporation) to December 31, 2017
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MICHICANN MEDICAL INC.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of MichiCann Medical Inc. (the "Company"), which comprise the statements
of financial position as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the statements of comprehensive loss, changes in equity,
and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2018 and for the 26-day period ended December 31, 2017, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial performance and its cash flows for year ended
December 31, 2018 and for the 26-day period ended December 31, 2017 in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises of Management's Discussion
and Analysis.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audits of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

We obtained Management's Discussion and Analysis prior to the date of this auditors' report. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.




Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

4 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

A Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Kevin Yokichi Nishi.

Chartered Professional Accountants

Vancouver, British Columbia
May 22,2019




MichiCann Medical Inc.

Statements of Financial Position
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

December 31,

December 31,

2018 2017
$ $
Assets
Current assets
Cash 24,377,286 326,721
Prepaid expenses 50,000 297,917
Loans receivable (Note 3) 5,700,400 -
Amounts receivable (Notes 3 and 4) 4,810,000 -
Total assets 34,937,686 624,638
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 6) 161,937 27,442
Convertible debentures (Note 8) - 533,755
161,937 561,197
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liability (Note 9) - 25,176
Total liabilities 161,937 586,373
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital (Note 4) 35,111,680 1
Convertible debentures — equity component (Note 8) - 70,950
Reserves (Note 4) 1,952,794 -
Subscriptions receivable (Note 4) (125,000) -
Deficit (2,163,725) (32,686)
Total shareholders’ equity 34,775,749 38,265
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 34,937,686 624,638

Approved and authorized for issuance on behalf of the Board of Directors on May 22, 2019 by:

/s/Michael Marchese

Michael Marchese, Director

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)
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MichiCann Medical Inc.
Statements of Comprehensive Loss
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

December 5, 2017

Year ended (Incorporation) -

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017
Expenses

Consulting fees (Note 6) $ 325,000 $ 27,083
Professional fees 53,522 2,442
Office expenses 7,865 280
Travel 32,921 -
Foreign exchange gain (25,465) -
Accretion expense (Note 8) 139,938 2,881
Share-based compensation (Note 4) 1,637,559 -
Loss before income tax (2,171,340) (32,686)
Deferred income tax recovery 40,301 -
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the period $  (2,131,039) $ (32,686)
Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ (0.06) $ (32,686)

Weighted average shares outstanding 38,474,379 1

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)
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MichiCann Medical Inc.

Statements of Changes in Equity
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Balance, December 5, 2017
(incorporation)

Equity component of convertible
debentures

Deferred income tax on equity
component of convertible
debentures

Net loss for the period

Balance, December 31, 2017
Equity component of convertible
debentures

Deferred income tax on equity
component of convertible
debentures

Convertible debentures exercised
Shares issued, net

Finders’ warrants issued
Share-based compensation

Net loss for the year

Balance, December 31, 2018

Convertible

Subscriptions debentures
receivable — equity Total shareholders
$ Reserves component Deficit equity
Share capital $ $ $ $
Number of Amount
shares $

1 1 - - - -

- - - - 96,126 - 96,12

- - - - (25,176) - (25,176

R R - - - (32,686) (32,686

1 1 - - 70,950 (32,686) 38,26!

- - - - 56,017 - 56,01

- - - - (15,125) - (15,125

2,024,000 1,114,518 - - (111,842) - 1,002,671

72,198,181 34,312,396 (125,000) - - - 34,187,3%
- (315,235) - 315,235 - -

- - - 1,637,559 - - 1,637,55!

- - - - - (2,131,039) (2,131,039

74,222,182 35,111,680 (125,000) 1,952,794 - (2,163,725) 34,775,74

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)
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MichiCann Medical Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Year ended
December 31,
2018
$

Operating activities
Net loss for the year (2,131,039)
Items not affecting cash:

Accretion expense 139,938

Share based compensation 1,637,559

Unrealized foreign exchange (25,465)

Deferred income tax recovery (40,301)
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:

Prepaid expenses 247917

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 134,495
Net cash used in operating activities (36,896)
Investing activity

Loans receivable (5,700,400)
Net cash used in investing activity (5,700,400)
Financing activities

Issuance of share capital, net 29,377,396

Convertible debentures issued 385,000
Net cash provided by financing activities 29,762,396
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance
of cash held in foreign currencies 25,465
Increase in cash 24,050,565
Cash, beginning of period 326,721
Cash, end of period 24,377,286

December 5, 2017
(Incorporation) -
December 31,
2017
$

(32,686)

2,881

(297,917)
27,442

(300,280)

1
627,000

627,001

326,721

326,721

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information (Note 10)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)
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Michicann Medical Inc.

Notes to the financial statements

December 31, 2018 and 26-Day Period Ended December 31, 2017
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

1. Nature of Business and Continuance of Operations

MichiCann Medical Inc. (the “Company” or “MichiCann”) was a private cannabis investment company
incorporated under the laws of Ontario on December 5, 2017. The Company’s head office and registered office is
located at 8820 Jane Street, Concord, ON, L4K 2M9 Canada.

As at December 31, 2018, the Company had not yet generated any revenue, has working capital of $34,775,749
(2017 - $63,441) and has accumulated losses of $2,163,725 since inception. The Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern is dependent upon its ability to generate future profitable operations, to obtain the necessary
financing to meet its obligations and repay its liabilities arising from normal business operations when they come
due. These financial statements have been prepared under the assumption of a going concern, which assumes that
the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The
Company estimates that it will have sufficient capital to continue operations for the upcoming year.

If the going concern assumption were not appropriate for these financial statements then adjustments would be
necessary to the carrying values of assets and liabilities, the reported expenses and the statements of financial
position classifications used. Such adjustments could be material.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“TFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for financial assets classified as
fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in
Canadian dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on May 22, 2019.
(b) Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the actual results. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Significant assumptions about the future and other sources of estimated uncertainty that management has
made as at the balance sheet dates that could result in a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities in the event that actual results differ from assumptions made, related to, but are not limited to,
the following:




Michicann Medical Inc.

Notes to the financial statements

December 31, 2018 and 26-Day Period Ended December 31, 2017
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

2.

Significant Accounting Policies - continued

(b)

()

Use of Estimates and Judgments - continued

Share-based Compensation

The inputs used for share-based compensation calculation. The Company provides compensation benefits to
its consultants, directors and officers through a stock option plan. The fair value of each option award is
estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model which utilizes subjective
assumptions such as expected price volatility and expected life of the option. Share-based compensation
expense also utilizes subjective assumption on forfeiture rate. Changes in these input assumptions can
significantly affect the fair value estimate.

Convertible Debentures

In accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement, convertible debentures are compound
financial instruments that are accounted for separately by their components: a financial liability and an equity
instrument. The identification of convertible debenture components is based on interpretations of the
substance of the contractual arrangement and therefore requires judgment from management. The separation
of the components affects the initial recognition of the convertible debenture at issuance and the subsequent
recognition of interest on the liability component. The determination of the fair value of the liability is also
based on a number of assumptions, including contractual future cash flows, discount factors and the presence
of any derivative financial instruments.

Deferred Income Taxes

The Company estimates the expected manner and timing of the realization or settlement of the carrying value
of its assets and liabilities and applies the tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted on the estimated
dates of realization or settlement. In assessing the probability of realizing income tax assets, management
makes estimates related to expectations of future taxable income, applicable tax opportunities, expected
timing of reversals of existing temporary differences and the likelihood that tax positions taken will be
sustained upon examination by applicable tax authorities. The actual amount of income taxes only becomes
final upon filing and acceptance of the tax return by the relevant tax authorities, which occurs subsequent to
the issuance of the financial statements.

Financial Instruments
Financial Assets

The Company recognizes a financial asset when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. The Company classifies financial assets at initial recognition as financial assets: measured at
amortized cost, measured at fair value through other comprehensive income or measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Assessment and decision on the business model
approach used is an accounting judgement.

Financial assets measured at amortized costs

A financial asset that meets both of the following conditions is classified as a financial asset measured at
amortized cost.

- The Company’s business model for such financial assets, is to hold the assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows.

- The contractual terms of the financial asset gives rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding.
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Michicann Medical Inc.

Notes to the financial statements

December 31, 2018 and 26-Day Period Ended December 31, 2017
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

2.

Significant Accounting Policies - continued

(c) Financial Instruments - continued

A financial asset measured at amortized cost is initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs directly
attributable to the asset. After initial recognition, the carrying amount of the financial asset measured at
amortized cost is determined using the effective interest method, net of impairment loss, if necessary.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)

For financial assets that are not measured at amortized cost, the Company can make an irrevocable election at
initial recognition to classify the instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FTVOCI"),
with all subsequent changes in fair value being recognized in other comprehensive income. This election is
available for each separate investment. Under this new FTVOCI category, fair value changes are recognized
in OCI while dividends are recognized in profit or loss. On disposal of the investment the cumulative change
in fair value is not recycled to profit or loss, rather transferred to deficit. The Company does not have any
financial assets designated as FTVOCI.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

A financial asset measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized initially at fair value with any
associated transaction costs being recognized in profit or loss when incurred. Subsequently, the financial asset
is re-measured at fair value, and a gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss in the reporting period in which it
arises.

Impairment

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model. The expected
credit loss model requires the Company to account for expected credit losses (“ECL”) and changes in those
ECL at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial assets.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. A financial liability is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or
when it expires. Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss or financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost. All interest-related charges are reported
in profit or loss within interest expense, if applicable.

As at December 31, 2018, the Company’s financial instruments are comprised of cash, accounts receivable,
convertible debt, accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

The Company classifies and discloses fair value measurements based on a three-level hierarchy:
* Level 1 — inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; * Level 2
— inputs other than quoted prices in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and
* Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liability are not based on observable market data.

9




Michicann Medical Inc.

Notes to the financial statements
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2.

Significant Accounting Policies - continued

(c) Financial Instruments - continued

=

N

Compound Financial Instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise convertible debt in Canadian dollars that
can be converted to common shares at the option of the holder, when the number of shares to be issued is
fixed and does not vary with changes in fair value.

The liability component of compound financial instruments is initially recognized at the fair value of a similar
liability that does not have a conversion option. The conversion component is initially recognized at the
difference between fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the
liability component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and conversion
components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts. Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of a compound financial instrument is measured at amortized cost using the discounted cash
flows. Interest related to the financial liability is recognized in profit or loss. On conversion, the financial
liability is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognized.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of long-lived assets to
determine whether there is an indication that those assets have suffered an impairment. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
charge (if any). The recoverable amount used for this purpose is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its recorded
amount, the recorded amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment charge is
recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to a
maximum amount equal to the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset in prior years.

Share Capital

Proceeds received on the issuance of units, consisting of common shares and warrants, are allocated first to
common shares based on the market trading price of the common shares at the time the units are issued, and
any excess is allocated to warrants.

Incremental costs directly attributed to the issuance of common shares are shown in equity as a reduction, net
of tax, of the proceeds received on issue. Shares issued for non-monetary consideration are valued based on
the fair value of the goods or services received unless the fair value of the shares are a more reliable measure.

10
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2.

Significant Accounting Policies - continued

U]

Income Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items
recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity is recognized in other comprehensive income or
equity and not in the statement of operations. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the statement of financial position method on temporary differences at
the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and recognized only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable income will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share are computed using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. The treasury stock method is used for the calculation of diluted loss per share,
whereby all “in the money” stock options and share purchase warrants are assumed to have been exercised at
the beginning of the period and the proceeds from their exercise are assumed to have been used to purchase
common shares at the average market price during the period. When a loss is incurred during the period, basic
and diluted loss per share are the same as the exercise of stock options and share purchase warrants would be
anti-dilutive.

Share-based Payments

The grant date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognized as stock-based
compensation expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met,
such that the amount ultimately recognized as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the
related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment awards
with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such
conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.

Where equity instruments are granted to parties other than employees, they are recorded by reference to the
fair value of the services received. If the fair value of the services received cannot be reliably estimated, the
Company measures the services received by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the counterparty renders service.
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2.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
(h) Share-based Payments - continued

All equity-settled share-based payments are reflected in contributed surplus, unless exercised. Upon exercise,
shares are issued from treasury and the amount reflected in reserves is credited to share capital, adjusted for
any consideration paid.

(i) Adoption of Accounting Standard

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted the following accounting pronouncements retrospectively with no
restatement of comparative periods:

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company adopted IFRS 15 with a date of initial application as of January 1, 2018. IFRS 15 specifies
how and when revenue should be recognized as well as requiring more informative and relevant disclosures.
The standard supersedes International Accounting Standard (“IAS”) 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction
Contracts, and a number of revenue-related interpretations. Application of the standard is mandatory and it
applies to nearly all contracts with customers: the main exceptions are leases, financial instruments and
insurance contracts. The adoption of IFRS 15 did not have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial
statements are listed below and include only those which the Company reasonably expects may be applicable to
the Company at a future date. The Company intends to adopt these standards and interpretations when they
become effective and does not expect the standards to have a material impact on the financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases

This new standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
for both the lessee and the lessor. The new standard introduces a single lessee accounting model that requires the
recognition of all assets and liabilities arising from a lease. The main features of the new standard are as follows:

An entity identifies as a lease a contract that conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period in exchange for consideration.

A lessee recognizes an asset representing the right to use the leased asset, and a liability for its obligation to
make lease payments. Exceptions are permitted for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

A lease asset is initially measured at cost, and is then depreciated similarly to property, plant and equipment.
A lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the unpaid lease payments.

A lessee presents interest expense on a lease liability separately from depreciation of a lease asset in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

A lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for them
accordingly.

A lessor provides enhanced disclosures about its risk exposure, particularly exposure to residual-value risk.

The new standard supersedes the requirements in IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement

contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
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2.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
IFRS 16 Leases - continued

These standards are applicable to the Company’s annual period beginning January 1, 2019. The Company does
not expect there to be a material impact on adoption.

Loans Receivable and Amounts Receivable

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company advanced a series of funds, totalling $5,700,400, to
PharmaCo Inc. (“PharmaCo”), an arms-length party, in the form of a debenture. The debenture is non-interest
bearing, unsecured and is due on demand.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company issued 4,810,000 common shares valued at $1.00 per
common share for a total value of $4,810,000 to a third-party company, as consideration to settle amounts owed by
PharmaCo to the third-party company. The amounts receivable due from PharmaCo of $4,810,000 is non-interest
bearing, unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Share Capital

Authorized:

Unlimited number of common shares without par value.

Issued:

On January 2, 2018, the Company issued 37,309,999 founder common shares for gross proceeds of $37.

On November 21, 2018, the Company issued an aggregate of $1,012,000 principal amount of unsecured
convertible debentures (the “Unsecured Debentures”) convertible into one common share of the Company at a
price of $0.50 per common share. All Unsecured Debentures were converted into an aggregate of 2,024,000
common shares of the Company on November 21, 2018 (Note 8).

On December 19, 2018, the Company issued 30,078,182 common shares pursuant to a non-brokered financing
(first tranche) at a price of $1.00 for aggregate gross proceeds of $30,078,182. The Company paid share issuance
costs of $470,340 as finder fees. Subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2018, $125,000 in subscriptions
receivable was received.

On December 19, 2018, the Company completed the issuance of 4,810,000 common shares to settle certain debts
at a price of $1.00 per common share for a total of $4,810,000. The shares were issued to settle amounts owned
by PharmaCo to a third-party company (Note 3).

During the period ended December 31, 2017, the Company issued 1 incorporation share for a nominal value.
Warrants:

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company issued 595,340 finders’ warrants with an exercise price
of $1.00 per common share of the Company for a period of two years. The finders’ warrants have a fair value of

$315,235 estimated using the Black-Scholes options pricing model with the following weighted average
assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate 1.89%
Expected term (in years) 2
Estimated dividend yield 0%
Estimated volatility 100.00%
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4. Share Capital - continued

Warrant transactions and the number of warrants outstanding are summarized as follows:

Number of Weighted Average
Warrants Exercise Price
Balance at December 31, 2017 - $ -
Issued 595,430 1.00
Exercised - -
Cancelled - -
Balance at December 31, 2018 595,430 $ 1.00
The following warrants were outstanding at December 31, 2018:
Number of Number of
Exercise Warrants Warrants
Issue Date Expiry Date Price Outstanding Exercisable
December 19, 2018 December 19, 2020 $ 1.00 595,340 595,340
595,340 595,340

Options:

On October 1, 2018, the Company granted 2,000,000 stock options to a consultant and an officer of the
Company. These stock options vest 12.5% on January 1, 2019, 12.5% on April 1, 2019, 12.5% on July
1, 2019, 12.5% on October 1, 2019, 12.5% on January 1, 2020, 12.5% on April 1, 2020, 12.5% on July
1, 2020 and the remaining 12.5% on October 1, 2020. These stock options have an exercise price of
$0.50 per share and expire on October 1, 2023.

On October 1, 2018, the Company granted 2,500,000 stock options to consultants of the Company.
These stock options vest 25% on January 1, 2019, 25% on April 1, 2019, 25% on July 1, 2019, 25% on
October 1, 2019. These stock options have an exercise price of $0.50 per share and expire on October
1, 2023.

The options granted during the year ended December 31, 2018 have a fair value of $3,739,048 estimated using the
Black-Scholes options pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate 2.42%
Expected term (in years) 5
Estimated dividend yield 0%
Estimated volatility 100.00%

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company recognized $1,637,559 in stock-based
compensation under graded vesting.
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4. Share Capital - continued

Options transactions and the number of options outstanding are summarized are as follows:

Number of Weighted Average
Stock Options Exercise Price
Balance at December 31, 2017 - $ -
Granted 4,500,000 0.50
Exercised - -
Cancelled - -
Balance at December 31, 2018 4,500,000 $ 0.50
The following options were outstanding at December 31, 2018:
Number of Number of
Exercise Options Options
Grant Date Expiry Date Price Outstanding Exercisable
October 1, 2018 October 1, 2023 $0.50 4,500,000 -
4,500,000 -

5. Financial Instruments and Risks

(a) Fair Value

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were presented on the Company’s statement
of financial position as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted prices in Significant
active markets other Significant
for identical observable unobservable Balance as at
instruments inputs inputs December 31
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ $ $ $

December 31,2018

Cash 24,377,286 - . 24,377,286

Loans receivable 5,700,400 - - 5,700,400

Amounts receivable 4,810,000 - - 4,810,000
Total 34,887,686 - - 34,887,686

Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities 161,937 - - 161,937
Total 161,937 - - 161,937
December 31, 2017

Cash 326,721 - - 326,721
Total 326,721 - - 326,721

Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities 27,422 - - 27,422
Total 27,422 - - 27,422
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5.

Financial Instruments and Risks - continued

(a) Fair Value -continued

The fair values of other financial instruments, which include accounts payable and accrued liabilities, loans
receivable and amounts receivable, approximate their carrying values due to the relatively short-term maturity
of these instruments.

(b) Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to a concentration of credit risk consist primarily
of cash, loans receivable and amounts receivable. The Company limits its exposure to credit loss by placing
its cash with high credit quality financial institutions. Deposits held with these institutions may exceed the
amount of insurance provided on such deposits. The Company is exposed to significant credit risk on its
loans receivable and amounts receivable. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum
credit exposure.

(c) Foreign Exchange Rate

The Company holds cash in US dollars, as a consequence, the financial results of the Company’s operations
as reported in Canadian dollars are subject to changes in the value of the Canadian dollar relative to the US
dollar. Therefore, exchange rate movements in the US dollar can have a significant impact on the Company’s
operating results due to the translation of monetary assets.

At December 31, 2018, a 10% strengthening (weakening) of the Canadian dollar against the US dollar would
have increased (decreased) the Company’s net loss before taxes by approximately $125,000 (December 31,
2017 - $nil).

(d) Interest Rate Risk
The Company is not exposed to any significant interest rate risk.
(e) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Company currently settles its financial obligations out of cash. The ability to do this relies on the
Company raising equity financing in a timely manner and by maintaining sufficient cash in excess of
anticipated needs.
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6.

Related Party Transactions

The following is a summary of related party transactions that occurred during the year ended December
31, 2018:

(a) Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is $6,250 (2017 - $nil) payable to a director
of the Company. Amounts due to related parties have no stated terms of interest and/or
repayment.

(b) Key management personnel include the directors and officers of the Company. Key
management compensation consists of the following:

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
$ $

Consulting fees paid or accrued to a company
controlled by the director of the Company 75,000 6,250
Share-based compensation 280,829 -

There were no post-employment benefits, termination benefits or other long-term benefits paid to
key management personnel for the year ended December 31, 2018 and period from
incorporation on December 5, 2017 to December 31, 2017.

Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to maintain its ability to continue as a going concern and to provide returns to
shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders. The capital structure of the Company consists of cash and equity,
comprised of issued share capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of economic conditions. The
Company, upon approval from its Board of Directors, will balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues or by undertaking other activities as deemed appropriate under the specific circumstances.

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements and the Company’s overall strategy with
respect to capital risk management remains the same for the years presented.
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8.

Convertible Debentures

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company issued $385,000 in convertible debentures to a group of
arms-length lenders. The convertible debentures are non-interest bearing and are convertible into common shares
of the Company at a conversion price of $0.50 per common share.

On inception, the Company allocated the total proceeds received between the liability and equity components of
the convertible debenture using the residual method, based on a discount rate of 18%, which is the estimated cost
at which the Company could borrow similar debt without a conversion feature. The liability component with a fair
value of $328,983 on inception is measured at amortized cost and is accrued over the expected term to maturity
using the effective interest method. The equity component with a fair value of $56,017 on inception is presented as
a component of shareholders’ equity.

During the period ended December 31, 2017, the Company issued $627,000 in convertible debentures to a group
of arms-length lenders. The convertible debentures are non-interest bearing and are convertible into common
shares of the Company at a conversion price of $0.50 per common share.

On inception, the Company allocated the total proceeds received between the liability and equity components of
the convertible debenture using the residual method, based on a discount rate of 18%, which is the estimated cost
at which the Company could borrow similar debt without a conversion feature. The liability component with a fair
value of $530,874 on inception is measured at amortized cost and is accrued over the expected term to maturity
using the effective interest method. The equity component with a fair value of $96,126 on inception is presented as
a component of shareholders’ equity.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the total convertible debentures outstanding of $1,012,000 was
converted into common shares of the Company.

A continuity of the liability portion of the convertible debentures is as follows:

Balance, December 5, 2017 $ -

Issuance of convertible debentures 530,874
Accretion expense 2,881
Balance, December 31, 2017 533,755
Issuance of convertible debentures 328,983
Accretion expense 139,938
Settlement of convertible debentures (1,002,676)
Balance, December 31, 2018 $ -
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9. Income Taxes

The tax effect (computed by applying the Canadian federal and provincial statutory rate) of the significant

temporary differences, which comprise deferred income tax assets and liabilities, are as follows:

2018 2017
Loss before income taxes $ (2,171,340) $ (32,686)
Statutory income tax rate 27.00% 27.00%
Expected income tax recovery (586,262) (8,825)
Non-deductible recoveries and other 442,626 -
Changes in unrecognized deductible temporary
differences 85,901 778
Convertible debentures and others (40,301) -
Unused tax losses and tax offsets not recognized 57,735 8,047
Total income tax recovery $ (40,301) $ -
The significant components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
2018 2017
$ $
Deferred income tax assets
Non-capital losses carried forward - -
Deferred income tax liabilities - (25,176)
Net deferred income tax asset (liabilities) - (25,176)

As at December 31, 2018, the Company has non-capital losses carried forward of approximately $422,000 which

are available to offset future years’ taxable income and expires through to 2038.

$
2037 (30,000)
2038 (392,000)
(422,000)
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10.

11.

12.

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

2018 2017
Additional Information
Shares issued for convertible debenture on conversion $ 4,810,000 $ -
Finder’s warrants issued $ 315235 § -

Segmented Information

The Company currently has an investment in one company in the cannabis industry and operates in one
geographic location, being Canada.

Subsequent Events

On January 15, 2019, the Company granted a total of 1,100,000 stock options to a consultant of the Company.
500,000 of these stock options vest on April 1, 2019. Theses stock options have an exercise price of $1.00 per
share and expire on January 15, 2024. The remaining 600,000 of these stock options vest on October 1, 2019.
These stock options have an exercise price of $2.50 per share and expire on January 15, 2024.

On April 29, 2019, the Company granted 500,000 stock options to a consultant of the Company. These stock
options vest 25% on execution of the agreement, 25% on May 30, 2019, 25% on August 30, 2019 and the
remaining 25% on December 30, 2019. These stock options have an exercise price of $1.00 per share and expire
on April 29, 2024.

On May 13, 2019, the Company entered into a non-binding letter of intent with an arm’s length company to
acquire greenhouse facilities and equipment in Illinois, United States.

PharmaCo Agreements

On January 4, 2019, MichiCann entered into a put/call option agreement (the “Put/Call Option Agreement”) with
PharmaCo and its shareholders (“PharmaCo Shareholders”) pursuant to which the PharmaCo Shareholders
granted MichiCann the call right to acquire 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of PharmaCo from the
PharmaCo Shareholders, and MichiCann granted all of the PharmaCo Shareholders the put right to sell 100% of
the issued and outstanding shares of PharmaCo to MichiCann, in exchange for the issuance of 37,000,000
MichiCann Shares in the aggregate (subject to standard anti-dilution protections) subject to all state and local
regulatory approvals including the approval of the Medical Marihuana Licensing Board and/or the Bureau of
Medical Marihuana Regulation (“BMMR”) within the Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
(“LARA”) in the State of Michigan.

On January 4, 2019, MichiCann entered into a debenture purchase agreement (the “Debenture Purchase
Agreement”) with PharmaCo (“OpCo”) pursuant to which MichiCann agreed to purchase an up to US
$114,734,209 8% senior secured convertible debenture of PharmaCo (the “Opco Debenture™). The Opco
Debenture has a maturity date of January 4, 2023 unless the Opco Debenture becomes due earlier.

The principal amount of Opco Debenture outstanding is convertible at any time on the earlier of the business day
immediately preceding: (i) the Maturity Date; and (ii) the date that is 30 days after the holder received LARA’s
written approval of the Holder Application (application seeking permission to convert the Debenture and own the
Conversion Shares). In such circumstances, the principal amount of the Opco Debenture is convertible into
common shares of Opco at a conversion price equal to the then outstanding balance of the Opco Debenture divided
by the total number of Opco Shares then outstanding.
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12. Subsequent Events - continued

PharmaCo Agreements - continued

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the conversion of the Opco Debenture is subject to PharmaCo and MichiCann
having obtained all required permits from governmental authorities in connection with MichiCann’s ownership of
Opco Shares, including, without limitation, all required cannabis licenses or related permits issued by LARA (but
excluding any permit or other requirement which arises or may arise under any Excluded Law).

The Opco Debenture is secured against the assets of PharmaCo pursuant to a security agreement dated as January
4,2019.

On January 4, 2019, MichiCann advanced USD $21,320,758 as a first tranche under the Opco Debenture, (which,
included $5,700,400 in loans receivable by MichiCann pursuant to non-interest-bearing promissory notes) (Note
3).

On February 22, 2019, MichiCann advanced USD $6,046,863 as a second tranche under the Opco Debenture.
On March 1, 2019, MichiCann advanced USD $11,327,594 as a third tranche under the Opco Debenture.

Financings

On February 22, 2019, MichiCann issued 4,500,000 common shares pursuant to a non-brokered financing (second
tranche) at a price of $1.00 per MichiCann Share for aggregate proceeds of $4,500,000.

On February 22, 2019, MichiCann issued 2,240,000 common shares pursuant to a new non-brokered financing at
a price of $2.50 per common share for aggregate proceeds of $5,600,000.

On February 25, 2019, MichiCann issued $15,000,000 principal amount of senior secured convertible debenture
(the “Tidal Debenture”) to Tidal. The Tidal Debenture becomes due and payable (the “Tidal Debenture Maturity
Date”) on the earlier of: (i) August 25, 2019 (subject to extension) and (ii) the date that all amounts owning under
the Tidal Debenture become due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Tidal Debenture, including
following an event of default.

The Tidal Debenture is convertible into MichiCann Shares in the event that the Proposed Transaction is not
completed prior to the Tidal Debenture Maturity Date and MichiCann instead completes a “Change of Control” or
a “Go Public Transaction” as such terms are defined in the Tidal Debenture. In such circumstances, the holder has
the right to convert the Tidal Debenture at a price per MichiCann Share equal to the lesser of (i) $2.50 per
MichiCann Share; and (ii) a 20% discount to the issue price or effective price per MichiCann Share for any
financing completed as part of or concurrently with the Go Public Transaction, if applicable, or the effective
purchase price per MichiCann Share in the case of a Change of Control transaction. The Tidal Debenture is
secured against the assets of MichiCann pursuant to a general security and pledge agreement dated February 25,
2019 (the “GSA and Pledge Agreement”).
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12.

Subsequent Events - continued

Tidal Royalty Corp. Definitive Agreement

On May 8, 2019, the Company has executed a business combination agreement (the “Definitive Agreement”) with
Tidal Royalty Corp. pursuant to which Tidal will acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares of the Company
(the “Proposed Transaction”). Under the terms of the Definitive Agreement, all of the issued and outstanding
common shares of MichiCann will be exchanged on the basis of 2.08 common shares of Tidal, for each one (1)
MichiCann common share, subject to adjustment in certain circumstances as set out in the Definitive Agreement
(the “Exchange Ratio”). Upon completion of the Proposed Transaction, and assuming no other issuances of
securities by MichiCann, existing MichiCann and Tidal shareholders will own approximately 80% and 20% of the
resulting company (the “Resulting Issuer”), respectively, on a fully diluted basis. All outstanding options and
warrants to purchase MichiCann common shares will be replaced with options and warrants to purchase common
shares of the Resulting Issuer in accordance with the Exchange Ratio.

The Proposed Transaction will be completed by way of a three-cornered amalgamation under the Business
Corporations Act (Ontario), whereby 2690229 Ontario Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Tidal (“Subco”)
will amalgamate with the Company (the “Amalgamation”). The Proposed Transaction will constitute a
“Fundamental Change” of the Company, as such term is defined in the policies of the Canadian Securities
Exchange (the “CSE”) and as a result Tidal will be required to obtain the approval of the holders of its
outstanding common shares, by simple majority, which it intends to obtain by way of written consent. The
Amalgamation will also require the approval by 66 2/3 of the votes cast by shareholders of MichiCann at a special
meeting of shareholders to be held on or before May 24, 2019.

Immediately prior to the completion of the Amalgamation, Tidal will (i) complete a share consolidation on an 8:1
basis (the “Consolidation”), (ii) the Company will change its name to “Red White & Bloom Inc.” or such other
name.

Pursuant to the terms of the Definitive Agreement, the closing of the Proposed Transaction is subject to a number
of conditions, including but not limited to (i) obtaining requisite shareholder approvals, (ii) the completion of the
Consolidation, the Name Change and the Board Appointments, (iii) obtaining requisite regulatory approvals
including the approval of the CSE for the Proposed Transaction and the listing of the common share of the
Resulting Issuer, (iv) obtaining escrow agreements from the directors and officers of each of MichiCann and
Tidal, and certain shareholders of each of MichiCann, its Michigan based investee and Tidal pursuant to which
the escrowed shares would be subject to restrictions on transfer and other dealings and released in three equal
tranches over a period of 18 months following the closing of the Proposed Transaction, and (vi) other closing
conditions customary for transactions of this nature.
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The following management discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) should be read in
conjunction with the audited financial statements and accompanying notes (“Financial
Statements”’) of MichiCann Medical Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ended December 31,
2018. Results have been prepared using accounting policies in compliance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”). All monetary amounts are reported in Canadian dollars unless

otherwise indicated.

For further information on the Company reference should be made to the Company’s public
filings which are available on SEDAR.

This MD&A contains forward-looking information. See “Forward-Looking Information” and
“Risks and Uncertainties” for a discussion of the risks, uncertainties and assumptions
relating to such information.
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Introduction

The following discussion of performance and financial condition should be read in conjunction with
the financial statements of MichiCann Medical Inc (the “Company”) for the year ended December 31,
2018. The Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
and interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”). The
Company’s reporting currency is Canadian dollars unless otherwise stated. This Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) is dated May 22, 2019.

Description of Business

MichiCann Medical Inc. (the “Company” or “MichiCann”) is a private investment company
incorporated under the laws of Ontario on December 5, 2017. The Company’s head office is located at
8820 Jane Street, Concord, ON, L4K 2M9 Canada.

As at December 31, 2018, the Company had not yet generated any revenue, has working capital of
$34,775,749 (2017 — $63,441) and has accumulated losses of $(2,163,725) since inception. The
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon its ability to generate future
profitable operations, to obtain the necessary financing to meet its obligations and repay its liabilities
arising from normal business operations when they come due. These factors indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. These financial statements have been prepared under the assumption of a going concern,
which assumes that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business. The Company estimates that it will have sufficient capital to continue
operations for the upcoming year.

Project Overview

MichiCann, operating as Red White & Bloom, is an investment company with a focus on the US
cannabis industry. MichiCann’s current investments are the PharmaCo Debenture and its rights under
the PharmaCo Put/Call Option Agreement.

MichiCann holds 8% senior secured convertible debenture (the “Debenture”) and a put/call option (the
“Put/Call Option”) to acquire all the issued and outstanding shares of its Michigan based investee
(“PharmaCo”), a private company incorporated under the laws of the State of Michigan.

PharmaCo has been granted a Step 1 prequalification by the Medical Marihuana Licensing Board of
the State of Michigan and has been awarded multiple municipal approvals for grower permits
(cultivation), manufacturing (including extraction and derivative manufacturing) and provisioning
centers (dispensaries).

Current approvals allow for stacking of Michigan “C Licenses” providing PharmaCo with a unique
opportunity to establish itself as one of the largest licensed producer of cannabis in Michigan state.
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PharmaCo has been State pre-qualified for two Processing licenses with a third pending in three
distinct and strategic locations. PharmaCo has completed State and City approvals for large scale
processing operations. This will allow the company to produce various oils, edibles and other cannabis
derivatives. The company intends on constructing multiple extraction and processing facilities for the
production of cannabis derivative products in each state that it operates in.

PharmaCo has purchased an 85,000 square foot facility for its first indoor cultivation and
manufacturing center. Initial plans for this facility will include the ability to produce in excess of
10,000,000 grams of flower per year with first harvest, post retrofitting to a perpetual harvest facility,
expected in Q4 2019, and will include state of the art extraction capabilities in the same facility.
PharmaCo has also purchased two smaller vertically integrated grow and manufacturing operations as
part of its dispensary acquisitions.

PharmaCo, has been pre-qualified for three provisioning center licenses and has acquired and/or
executed agreements to acquire a further 18 locations. MichiCann plans to expand into additional
states with a focus on Florida (which allows for 30 dispensaries per license), Arizona, Pennsylvania,
Nevada and Ohio.

With 10 existing stores and a minimum of 25 locations operating by Q4 of 2019, RWB has established
itself as the largest operator of dispensaries in Michigan.

Plans are underway to roll out unified corporate branding to allow for even greater efficiency and
scaling outside Michigan.

SELECTED ANNUAL AND QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Selected Annual Information

The following selected financial information is derived from the audited financial statements of the Company. The
figures have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.

Period Ended December 31, (audited)

2018 2017

$ - s -
Total revenues
General and administrative 553,781 32,686
expenses
Net loss and comprehensive loss (2,131,039) (32,686)
Net loss per share — Basic & full,
diluted ’ Y (0.06) (32,686)
Totals assets 34,937,686 624,638
Total liabilities 161,937 586,373

Cash dividends declared per share Nil Nil
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2018 compared to the period from incorporation on December
5,2017 to December 31, 2017.

Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2018 was $2,131,039 as compared
to $32,686 for the period ended 2017. The increase in net loss and comprehensive loss of $2,098,353
was mainly attributable to the net effect of:

Increase of $297,917 in Consulting fees, from $27,083 in 2017 to $325,000 in 2018.

Increase of $51,080 in Professional fees, from $2,442 in 2017 to $53,522 in 2018.

Increase of $7,585 in Office expenses, from $280 in 2017 to $7,865 in 2018.

Increase of $32,921 in Travel, from $Nil in 2017 to $32,921 in 2018.

Increase of $25,465 in Foreign Exchange gain, from $Nil in 2017 to $25,465 in 2018.

Increase of $137,057 in Accretion expenses, from $2,881 in 2017 to $139,938 in 2018.
Increase of $1,637,559 in Share-based compensation, from $Nil in 2017 to $1,637,559 in 2018.
Increase of $40,301 in Deferred income tax recovery, from $Nil in 2017 to $40,301 in 2018.

Selected Financial Information

To date, the Company has not commenced commercial operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at December 31, 2018, the Company had working capital of $34,775,749 (2017: $63,441).

As at December 31, 2018, the Shareholders’ equity of $34,775,749 (2017: $38,265) consisted of share
capital of $35,111,680 (2017: $70,951), reserves of $1,952,794 (2017:$Nil), subscriptions receivable
of $125,000 (2017:$Nil) and deficit of $2,163,725 (2017: $32,686).

Outstanding Share Data

a) Authorized Share Capital: unlimited common shares without par value.
b) Issued and Outstanding as at December 31, 2018: 74,222,182 common shares (2017: 1).

Common shares

On February 1, 2018, the Company issued 37,310,000 founder common shares for gross proceeds of
$37.

On April 3, 2018, MichiCann issued an aggregate of $1,012,000 principal amount of unsecured
convertible debentures (the “Unsecured Debentures™) convertible into MichiCann common shares at a
price of $0.50 per MichiCann shares. All Unsecured Debentures converted into an aggregate of
2,024,000 MichiCann common shares on November 21, 2018.

On November 21, 2018, the Company completed the issuance of 4,810,00 common shares to settle
certain debt from PharmaCo at a price of $1.00 per common share for a total of $4,810,000. As at
December 31,
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2018, the amount is due to the Company by PharmaCo and is non-interest bearing, due on demand and
has no fixed date of repayment.

On December 18, 2018, MichiCann issued 30,078,182 common shares pursuant to a non-brokered
financing (first tranche) at a price of $1.00 for aggregate gross proceeds of $30,078,182. The
Company paid share issuance costs of $470,340 as finder fees. The Company also issued 595,340
finders’ with an exercise price of $1.00 per common share of the Company for a period of two years.
The finders’ warrants have a fair value of $315,235 estimated using the Black-Scholes options pricing
model.

During the period ended December 31, 2017, the Company issued 1 incorporation share for a nominal
value.

Common shares issuances subsequent to year end

On February 22, 2019, MichiCann issued 4,500,000 MichiCann Shares pursuant to a non-brokered
financing (second tranche) at a price of $1.00 per MichiCann Share for aggregate proceeds of
4,500,000.

On February 22, 2019, MichiCann issued 2,240,000 MichiCann Shares pursuant to a new non-
brokered financing at a price of $2.50 per MichiCann Share for aggregate proceeds of $5,600,000.

Options

On October 1, 2018, the Company granted 2,000,000 stock options to various consultants, directors
and officers of the Company. These stock options vest 12.5% on January 1, 2019, 12.5% on April 1,
2019, 12.5% on July 1, 2019, 12.5% on October 1, 2019, 12.5% on January 1, 2020, 12.5% on April
1, 2020, 12.5% on July 1, 2020 and the remaining 12.5% on October 1, 2020. These stock options
have an exercise price of $0.50 per share and expire on October 1, 2023.

On October 1, 2018, the Company granted 2,500,000 stock options to various consultants, directors
and officers of the Company. These stock options vest 25% on January 1, 2019, 25% on April 1,
2019, 25% on July 1, 2019, 25% on October 1, 2019. These stock options have an exercise price of
$0.50 per share and expire on October 1, 2023.

The options granted during the year ended December 31, 2018 have a fair value of $3,739,048
estimated using the Black-Scholes options pricing model. During the year ended December 31, 2018,
the Company recognized $1,637,559 in stock-based compensation expense under graded vesting. The
Company did not grant any stock options during the period ended December 31, 2017.

The following options were outstanding at December 31, 2018:

Exercise Number of
Grant Date Expiry Date Price Options Exercisable

October 1, 2018 October 1, 2023 $0.50 4,500,000 -

4,500,000 -
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Warrants
During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company issued 595,340 finder’s warrants with an
exercise price of $1.00 per common share of the Company for a period of two years. The finder’s

warrants have a fair value of $315,235 estimated using the Black-Scholes options pricing model.

The following warrants were outstanding at December 31, 2018:

Exercise Number of

Issue Date Expiry Date Price Warrants Exercisable
December 19, December 19,
2018 2020 $1.00 595,340 595,340
595,340 595,340

Financial and Other Instruments

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts payables
and accrued liabilities, loans receivable and amounts receivable and related party transactions. Unless
otherwise noted, it is management’s opinion that the Company is not exposed to significant interest,
currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments.

The fair value of these instruments approximates their carrying value due to the short-term nature of
their maturity.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the Company to select from possible alternative
accounting principles, and to make estimates and assumptions that determine the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and reported costs and expenditures during the reporting
period. Estimates and assumptions may be revised as new information is obtained, and are subject to
change. The Company’s accounting policies and estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements are considered appropriate in the circumstances, but are subject to judgments and
uncertainties inherent in the financial reporting process.
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Adoption of New and Revised Standards and Interpretations

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted the following accounting pronouncements retrospectively
with no restatement of comparative periods:

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company adopted IFRS 15 with a date of initial application as of January 1, 2018. IFRS 15
specifies how and when revenue should be recognized as well as requiring more informative and
relevant disclosures. The standard supersedes IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts, and a
number of revenue-related interpretations. Application of the standard is mandatory and it applies to
nearly all contracts with customers: the main exceptions are leases, financial instruments and
insurance contracts. The adoption of IFRS 15 did not have an impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Company’s
financial statements are listed below and include only those which the Company reasonably expects
may be applicable to the Company at a future date. The Company intends to adopt these standards and
interpretations when they become effective and is currently assessing their impact on the financial
statements.

IFRS 16 Leases

This new standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both the lessee and the lessor. The new standard introduces a single lessee
accounting model that requires the recognition of all assets and liabilities arising from a lease. The
main features of the new standard are as follows:

An entity identifies as a lease a contract that conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period in exchange for consideration.

A lessee recognizes an asset representing the right to use the leased asset, and a liability for its
obligation to make lease payments. Exceptions are permitted for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets.

A lease asset is initially measured at cost, and is then depreciated similarly to property, plant
and equipment. A lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the unpaid lease
payments.

A lessee presents interest expense on a lease liability separately from depreciation of a lease
asset in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

A lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for
them accordingly.

A lessor provides enhanced disclosures about its risk exposure, particularly exposure to
residual-value risk.
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The new standard supersedes the requirements in IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

This standard is applicable to the Company’s annual period beginning January 1, 2019. The Company
does not expect there to be a material impact on adoption.

Related Party Transactions

The following is a summary of related party transactions that occurred during the year ended
December 31, 2018 and the period from incorporation on December 5, 2017 to December 31, 2017:

(a) Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is $6,250 (2017 - $nil) payable to a director of
the Company. Amounts due to related parties have no stated terms of interest and/or repayment.

(b) Key management personnel include the directors and officers of the Company. Key management
compensation consists of the following:

Year ended Period ended
December 31, December 31,

2018 2017
$ $

Consulting fees paid or accrued to a company
controlled by the director of the Company 75,000 6,250
Share-based compensation 280,829 -

There were no post-employment benefits, termination benefits or other long-term benefits paid to key
management personnel for the year ended December 31, 2018 and period from incorporation on
December 5, 2017 to December 31, 2017.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company did not enter into any off-balance sheet arrangements during the period.

Outstanding Share Data as of Report Date

As at December 31, 2018 and the date of this report, the Company has:

December 31, 2018 May 17,2019
Issued and outstanding common shares 74,222,182 80,962,182
Warrants outstanding 595,340 595,340
Stock options outstanding 4,500,000 6,100,000

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements

The information provided in this report, including the financial statements, is the responsibility of
Management. In the preparation of these statements estimates are sometimes necessary to make a
determination of future values for certain assets or liabilities. Management believes such estimates
have
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been based on careful judgments and have been properly reflected in the accompanying Financial
Statements.

Risks

The Investment in the common shares must be regarded as highly speculative due to the proposed
nature of the Company’s business and its present stage of development.

There can be no assurance that an active and liquid market for the Company’s common shares will
develop and an investor may find it difficult to resell the common shares.

Controls and Procedures

The Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) are responsible for
designing internal controls over financial reporting in order to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Company’s financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with IFRS. The design of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting was assessed as of the date of this MD&A.

Based on this assessment, it was determined that certain weaknesses existed in internal controls over
financial reporting. As indicative of many small companies, the lack of segregation of duties and
effective risk assessment were identified as areas where weaknesses existed. The existence of these
weaknesses is to be compensated for by senior management monitoring, which exists. The officers
will continue to monitor very closely all financial activities of the Company and increase the level of
supervision in key areas. It is important to note that this issue would also require the Company to hire
additional staff in order to provide greater segregation of duties. Since the increased costs of such
hiring could threaten the Company’s financial viability, management has chosen to disclose the
potential risk in its filings and proceed with increased staffing only when the budgets and work load
will enable the action. The Company has attempted to mitigate these weaknesses, through a
combination of extensive and detailed review by the CFO of the financial reports.

Outlook

Although current management has demonstrated its ability to raise funds in the past, with the current
financial market conditions and global economic uncertainty, there can be no assurance they will be
able to do so in the future. The financial results and discussion do not include the adjustments that
would be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern. Such adjustments
could be material.

Caution Regarding Forward Looking Statements

Except for historical information contained in this discussion and analysis, disclosure statements
contained herein are forward-looking. Forward-looking statements are subject to risks and
uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ materially, from those in such forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements are made based on management’s beliefs, estimates and
opinions on the date the statements are made and the Company undertakes no obligation to update
forward-looking statements if these beliefs, estimates and opinions or other circumstances should
change. Investors are cautioned against attributing undue certainty to forward-looking statements.
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Other Information
Additional information about the Company is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Subsequent Events

On January 15, 2019, the Company granted a total of 1,100,000 stock options to a consultant of the
Company. 500,000 of these stock options vest on April 1, 2019. Theses stock options have an exercise
price of $1.00 per share and expire on January 15, 2024. The remaining 600,000 of these stock options
vest on October 1, 2019. These stock options have an exercise price of $2.50 per share and expire on
January 15, 2024.

On April 29, 2019, the Company granted 500,000 stock options to a consultant of the Company. These
stock options vest 25% on execution of the agreement, 25% on May 30, 2019, 25% on August 30,
2019 and the remaining 25% on December 30, 2019. These stock options have an exercise price of
$1.00 per share and expire on April 29, 2024.

On May 13, 2019, the Company entered into a non-binding letter of intent with an arm’s length
company to acquire greenhouse facilities and equipment in Illinois, United States.

On January 4, 2019, MichiCann entered into a put/call option agreement (the “Put/Call Option
Agreement”) with PharmaCo and its shareholders (“PharmaCo Shareholders”) pursuant to which the
PharmaCo Shareholders granted MichiCann the call right to acquire 100% of the issued and
outstanding shares of PharmaCo from the PharmaCo Shareholders, and MichiCann granted all of the
PharmaCo Shareholders the put right to sell 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of PharmaCo
to MichiCann, in exchange for the issuance of 37,000,000 MichiCann Shares in the aggregate (subject
to standard anti-dilution protections) subject to all state and local regulatory approvals including the
approval of the Medical Marihuana Licensing Board and/or the Bureau of Medical Marihuana
Regulation (“BMMR”) within the Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs (“LARA”) in the
State of Michigan.

On February 25, 2019, MichiCann issued $15,000,000 principal amount of senior secured convertible
debenture (the “Tidal Debenture”) to Tidal. The Tidal Debenture becomes due and payable (the “Tidal
Debenture Maturity Date”) on the earliest of: (i) August 25, 2019 (subject to extension) and (ii) the
date that all amounts owning under the Tidal Debenture become due and payable in accordance with
the terms of the Tidal Debenture, including following an event of default.

The Tidal Debenture is convertible into MichiCann Shares in the in the event that the Proposed
Transaction is not completed prior to the Tidal Debenture Maturity Date and MichiCann instead
completes a “Change of Control” or a “Go Public Transaction” as such terms are defined in the Tidal
Debenture. In such circumstances, the holder has the right to convert the Tidal Debenture at a price per
MichiCann Share equal to the lesser of (i) $2.50 per MichiCann Share; and (ii) a 20% discount to the
issue price or effective price per MichiCann Share for any financing completed as part of or
concurrently with the Go Public Transaction, if applicable, or the effective purchase price per
MichiCann Share in the case of a Change of Control transaction. The Tidal Debenture is secured
against the assets of MichiCann pursuant to a general security and pledge agreement dated February
25,2019 (the “GSA and Pledge Agreement”).
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The following management discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) may contain “forward-looking
information” within the meaning of Canadian securities legislation (“forward-looking statements™).
These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this MD&A and the Company does not
intend, and does not assume any obligation, to update these forward-looking statements, except as
required under applicable securities legislation. Forward-looking statements relate to future events
or future performance and reflect Company management’s expectations or beliefs regarding future
events. In certain cases, forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of words such as
“plans”, “expects” or “does not expect”’, “is expected”, “budget”’, “scheduled”, “estimates”,

2 2

“forecasts”, “intends”, “anticipates” or “does not anticipate”, or “believes”, or variations of such

CLINNT3

words and phrases or statements that certain actions, events or results “may”, “could”, “would”,
“might” or “will be taken”, “occur” or “be achieved” or the negative of these terms or comparable
terminology. In this document, certain forward-looking statements are identified by words
including “may”, “future”, “expected”, “intends” and “estimates”. By their very nature forward-
looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may
cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Company to be materially different
from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking
statements. The Company provides no assurance that forward-looking statements will prove to be
accurate, as actual results and future events could differ materially from those anticipated in such

statements. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements.
Certain forward-looking statements in this MD&A include, but are not limited to the following:

« the Company’s expansion plans; and
« its expectations regarding production capacity and production yields

The above and other aspects of the Company’s anticipated future operations are forward-looking in
nature and, as a result, are subject to certain risks and uncertainties. Although the Company believes
that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable, undue reliance
should not be placed on them as actual results may differ materially from the forward-looking
statements. Such forward-looking statements are estimates reflecting the Company's best judgment
based upon current information and involve a number of risks and uncertainties, and there can be
no assurance that other factors will not affect the accuracy of such forward-looking statements.
Such factors include but are not limited to the Company’s ability to obtain the necessary financing
and the general impact of financial market conditions, the yield from marihuana growing
operations, product demand, changes in prices of required commodities, competition, government
regulations and other risks.

For further information on the Company reference should be made to the Company’s public filings
which are available on SEDAR.
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INTRODUCTION

The following MD&A of MichiCann Medical Inc. (the “Company” or “MichiCann”) should be read in
conjunction with the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, which are prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(“IFRIC”).

This document is intended to assist the reader in better understanding operations and key financial
results as of the date of this MD&A. The consolidated financial statements and this MD&A have been
approved by its Board of Directors. This MD&A is dated April 29, 2020.

All dollar amounts referred to in this MD&A are expressed in Canadian dollars except where indicated
otherwise.

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND GOING CONCERN

MichiCann is a private investment company incorporated under the laws of Ontario on December 5,
2017. The Company’s head office is located at 8820 Jane Street, Concord, ON, L4K 2M9 Canada.

As at December 31, 2019, the Company’s working capital deficiency was $16,071,433 (2018
— working capital of $34,775,749) and has accumulated losses of $14,667,625 (2018 - $2,163,725)
since inception.

These conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If the going concern assumption were not
appropriate, then adjustments would be necessary to the carrying values of assets and liabilities, the
reported expenses and the statements of financial position classifications used. Such adjustments could
be material.

OVERVIEW

MichiCann, operating as Red White & Bloom is an investment company with a focus on the United
States cannabis industry. MichiCann’s current investments are primarily in the investment in
PharmaCo Inc. (“PharmaCo”) which include the Debenture and its rights under the Put/Call Option
Agreement (both described below) and the acquisition of Mid-American Growers Inc. (“MAG”),
which closed after year end and is further described in our Subsequent Events.

MichiCann holds 8% senior secured convertible debenture (the “Debenture”) and a put/call option
agreement (the “Put/Call Option”) to acquire all the issued and outstanding shares of its Michigan
based investee PharmaCo, a private company incorporated under the laws of the State of Michigan.
The Put/Call Option is subject to MichiCann completing the licensing requirements to operate in the
State of Michigan. The Debenture is secured by all real and personal property and interests in the real
and personal property of PharmaCo, whether now owned or subsequently acquired. The Debenture
has a maturity date of January 4, 2023 unless the Debenture becomes due earlier.

PharmaCo was granted a Step 1 prequalification by the Medical Marihuana Licensing Board of the
State of Michigan in October of 2018, and has been awarded multiple municipal approvals for grower
permits
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(cultivation), manufacturing (including extraction and derivative manufacturing) and provisioning
centers (dispensaries).

Since its prequalification was issued in October 2018, PharmaCo expanded its operations through the
acquisition of multiple assets that cover cultivation, processing/manufacturing and provisioning
centers throughout the state of Michigan.

PharmaCo has purchased three indoor cultivation facilities with a cumulative 110,000 square feet and
10 acres of outdoor cultivation. They control 2 locations for processing and currently operate 10
provisioning centers (dispensaries) as well as control an additional 8 dispensaries that have yet to be
opened.

Plans are underway to roll out unified corporate branding to allow for even greater efficiency and
scaling outside Michigan.

Subsequent to year end, MichiCann closed the acquisition of MAG. MAG owns and operates a 3.6
million square foot facility in Granville, Illinois and holds both a hemp grower and hemp processing
license with the state of Illinois.

Initial hemp crops are in the facility and the company intends to grow, process and sell various hemp
and CBD products through this facility.

Lastly, MichiCann has a strategy of expanding to a limited number of additional states as the
opportunity presents itself with the intent of only entering markets that allow for the operation at scale
to try and maximize operational efficiencies generally only available to those businesses that operate
at scale.

PROPOSED TRANSACTION

Tidal Royalty Corp.

On May &, 2019, the Company executed a business combination agreement (the ‘“Definitive
Agreement”) with Tidal Royalty Corp. (“Tidal”) pursuant to which Tidal will acquire all of the issued
and outstanding shares of the Company (the ‘“Proposed Transaction). Under the terms of the
Definitive Agreement, all of the issued and outstanding common shares of MichiCann will be
exchanged on the basis of 2.08 common shares of Tidal, for each one (1) MichiCann common share,
subject to adjustment in certain circumstances as set out in the Definitive Agreement (the “Exchange
Ratio”). Upon completion of the Proposed Transaction, and assuming no other issuances of securities
by MichiCann, existing MichiCann and Tidal shareholders will own approximately 80% and 20% of
the resulting company (the “Resulting Issuer”), respectively, on a fully diluted basis. All outstanding
options and warrants to purchase MichiCann common shares will be replaced with options and
warrants to purchase common shares of the Resulting Issuer in accordance with the Exchange Ratio.

The Proposed Transaction will be completed by way of a three-cornered amalgamation under the
Business Corporations Act (Ontario), whereby 2690229 Ontario Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of
Tidal will amalgamate with the Company (the “Amalgamation”). The Proposed Transaction will
constitute a “Fundamental Change” of the Company, as such term is defined in the policies of the
Canadian Securities Exchange (the “CSE”) and as a result Tidal will be required to obtain the approval
of the holders of its outstanding common shares, by simple majority, which it intends to obtain by way
of written consent.
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Immediately prior to the completion of the Amalgamation, Tidal will (i) complete a share
consolidation on an 8:1 basis (the “Consolidation”), (ii) the Company will change its name to “Red
White & Bloom Inc.” or such other name (the “Name Change”).

Pursuant to the terms of the Definitive Agreement, the closing of the Proposed Transaction is subject
to a number of conditions, including but not limited to (i) obtaining requisite shareholder approvals,
(ii) the completion of the Consolidation, the Name Change and the board appointments, (iii) obtaining
requisite regulatory approvals including the approval of the CSE for the Proposed Transaction and the
listing of the common share of the Resulting Issuer, (iv) obtaining escrow agreements from the
directors and officers of each of MichiCann and Tidal, and certain shareholders of each of MichiCann,
its Michigan based investee and Tidal pursuant to which the escrowed shares would be subject to
restrictions on transfer and other dealings and released in three equal tranches over a period of 18
months following the closing of the Proposed Transaction, and (vi) other closing conditions customary
for transactions of this nature. Subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company
amended the Definitive Agreement.

SELECTED ANNUAL AND QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Selected Annual Information

The following selected financial information is derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company:

Periods Ended December 31, (audited)

2019 2018 2017

$ - $ - $ -
Total revenues
Interest expense 3,540,353 - -
Professional fees 1,952,329 53,522 -
Consulting fees 919,839 325,000 -
Salaries and wages 568,167 - -
Net loss and comprehensive loss 12,513,900 2,131,039 32,686
I(;Iii:ltltl;);s per share — Basic & fully 0.16 0.06 32,686
Totals assets 107,979,469 34,937,686 624,638
Total liabilities 55,542,045 161,937 586,373
Cash dividends declared per share Nil Nil Nil




MichiCann Medical Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Selected Quarterly Information

Quarters ended

Dec 31, 19 Sep 30, 19 Jun 30, 19 Mar 31, 19

$ -3 -3 -3 -
Total revenues
Interest expense 1,802,780 1,297,420 440,153 -
Professional fees 784,152 195,050 658,149 314,978
Consulting fees 391,632 256,518 271,689 -
Salaries and wages 199,653 158,817 162,843 46,854
Net loss and comprehensive loss 5,043,701 950,351 5,177,575 1,342,273
I(;Iiel:ltltl:;s per share — Basic & fully 0.07 0.03 0.06 0.02
Total assets 108,082,499 101,783,707 92,791,133 60,402,369
Total liabilities 55,312,647 54,478,582 51,900,857 15,301,797
Cash dividends declared per share Nil Nil Nil Nil

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2019 compared to the year ended December 31, 2018.

The Company does not currently generate revenue or operating cash flow and relies on external
financings to generate capital. As a result, the Company has continued to incur losses since the its
inception including for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

The Company’s ability to continue operations is dependent on management’s ability to secure
financing. Management is actively pursuing such additional sources of financing, and there can be no
assurance it will be able to secure additional financing required for its operations. Accordingly, these
factors indicate material uncertainties that may cause significant doubt as to the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The Company is considering various financing options to fund its

operations.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company incurred a net loss and comprehensive loss
of $12,513,900 (2018 - $2,131,039). The increase in net loss and comprehensive loss of $10,382,861

was mainly attributable to the net effect of:

Increase of $2,158,536 in share-based compensation, from $1,637,559 in 2018 to $3,796,095 in
2019. The expense is related to stock options issued to executives, consultants, officers and
employees of the Company.

Increase of $3,540,353 in interest expense, from $Nil in 2018 to $3,540,353 in 2019. The
expense is related to interest on the credit facility.

Increase of $2,361,459 in commissions, from $Nil in 2018 to $2,361,459 in 2019. The expense is
related to the bridge financing transaction which was closed on June 4, 2019.

Increase of $1,898,807 in professional fees, from $53,522 in 2018 to $1,952,329 in 2019. The
increase in professional fees resulting from a significant increase in legal and other professional
work related to the amalgamation agreement, negotiations and the reverse takeover transactions.
Increase of $594,839 in consulting fees, from $325,000 in 2018 to $919,839 in 2019. The
increase was to support management in its effort to build infrastructure necessary for the
Company’s growth.
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Increase of $880,491 in marketing, from $32,921 in 2018 to $913,412 in 2019. The increase was
to support increased marketing and investor relations activities.

Increase of $568,167 in salaries and wages, from $Nil in 2018 to $568,167 in 2019. The increase
was to support management in its effort to build infrastructure necessary for the Company’s
growth.

Increase of $71,370 in general and administration, from $7,865 in 2018 to $79,235 in 2019.
Increase of $1,898 in depreciation, from $Nil in 2018 to $1,898 in 2019.

Increase of $1,411,268 in foreign exchange loss, from foreign exchange gain of $25,465 in 2018
to foreign exchange loss of $1,385,803 in 2019.

Decrease of $139,938 in accretion expense, from $139,938 in 2018 to $Nil in 2019.

Increase of $3,960,708 in interest income, from $Nil in 2018 to $3,960,708 in 2019. The income
is related to accrued interest on the Debenture.

Increase of $1,111,637 in income from management fees, from $Nil in 2018 to $1,111,637 in
2019. The income is related to management fee charged to PharmaCo.

Increase of $2,340,164 in accretion of loans receivable, from $Nil in 2018 to $2,340,164 in 2019.
The income is related to accretion on the Debenture.

Increase of $4,407,819 in loss on revaluation of call option, from $Nil in 2018 to $4,407,819 in
2019. The loss is related to revaluation of Put/Call Option.

Decrease of $40,301 in deferred income tax recovery, from $40,301 in 2018 to $Nil in 2019.

The increase in overall expenses during the year ended December 31, 2019 is in line with management
expectation. To date, the Company has not commenced commercial operations.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company has a history of operating losses and of negative cash flow from operations. The
Company will remain reliant on capital markets for future funding to meet its ongoing obligations.

The Company’s ability to continue operations is dependent on management’s ability to secure
additional financing. Management is actively pursuing such additional sources of financing, and there
can be no assurance it will be able to secure additional financing required for its operations.
Accordingly, these factors indicate material uncertainties that may cause significant doubt as to the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

As at December 31, 2019, the Company had working capital deficiency of $16,071,433 (2018 -
working capital of $34,775,749), consisting of cash in the amount of $1,378,687 (2018 - $24,377,286),
prepaid expenses of $124,140 (2018 - $50,000), accounts receivable of $1,463,388 (2018 - $Nil),
current portion of loans receivable of $36,504,397 (2018 - $10,510,400), net of accounts payable and
accrued liabilities of $1,334,370 (2018 - $161,937), convertible debentures of $17,597,600 (2018 -
$Nil) and bridge financing of $36,610,075 (2018 - $Nil).

The Company believes that the current capital resources are not sufficient to pay overhead expenses
for next twelve months and is currently seeking additional funding to fund its overhead expenses and
its continuous search for other business opportunities. The Company will continue to monitor the
current economic and financial market conditions and evaluate their impact on the Company’s
liquidity and future prospects.
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As at December 31, 2019, the shareholders’ equity of $52,437,424 (2018 - $34,775,749) consisted of
share capital of $61,366,160 (2018 - $35,111,680), contributed surplus of $5,748,889 (2018 -
$1,952,794), subscriptions receivable of $Nil (2018 - $125,000) and deficit of $14,677,625 (2018 -
$2,163,725).

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA
a) Authorized Share Capital: unlimited common shares without par value.

b) Issued and Outstanding as at December 31, 2019: 84,211,752 common shares (2018 —
74,222,182).

Common shares

On January 2, 2018, the Company issued 37,309,999 founder common shares for gross proceeds of
$37.

On November 21, 2018, the Company issued an aggregate of $1,012,000 principal amount of
unsecured convertible debentures (the “Unsecured Debentures”) convertible into one common share of
the Company at a price of $0.50 per common share. All Unsecured Debentures were converted into an
aggregate of 2,024,000 common shares of the Company on November 21, 2018.

On December 19, 2018, the Company issued 30,078,182 common shares pursuant to a non-brokered
financing (first tranche) at a price of $1.00 for aggregate gross proceeds of $30,078,182. The
Company paid share issuance costs of $470,340 as finder fees. Subsequent to the year ended
December 31, 2018, $120,000 in subscriptions receivable was received.

On December 19, 2018, the Company completed the issuance of 4,810,000 common shares to settle
certain debts at a price of $1.00 per common share for a total of $4,810,000. The shares were issued to
settle amounts owned by PharmaCo to a third-party company.

On February 22, 2019, the Company issued 4,500,000 common shares pursuant to a non-brokered
financing (second tranche) at a price of $1.00 per common share for aggregate proceeds of
$4,500,000. The Company paid share issuance costs of $7,286.

On February 22, 2019, the Company issued 2,240,000 common shares pursuant to a non-brokered
financing at a price of $2.50 per common share for aggregate proceeds of $5,600,000. The Company
paid share issuance costs of $9,068.

On September 30, 2019, the Company issued 1,178,100 common shares pursuant to a non-brokered
financing at a price of $5.00 per common share for aggregate proceeds of $5,890,500.

On October 1, 2019, the Company issued 345,000 common shares pursuant to a non-brokered
financing at a price of $5.00 per common share for aggregate proceeds of $1,725,000.

On October 9, 2019, the Company issued 844,470 common shares pursuant to a non-brokered
financing at a price of $5.00 per common share for aggregate proceeds of $4,222,350.

On October 23, 2019, the Company issued 1,200,000 common shares pursuant to a non-brokered
financing at a price of $5.00 per common share for aggregate proceeds of $6,000,000.
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On November 1, 2019, the Company cancelled 345,000 common shares. The original proceeds of
$1,725,000 were returned to the purchasers and reversed from common shares on the statement of
changes in equity.

On December 18, 2019, the Company issued 27,000 common shares pursuant to a non-brokered
financing at a price of $5.00 per common share for aggregate proceeds of $135,000.

The Company paid share issuance costs of $93,370 for non-brokered financing completed in the year
ended December 31, 2019.

Warrants

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company issued 595,430 finders’ warrants with an
exercise price of $1.00 per common share of the Company for a period of two years. No warrants were
issued during the year ended December 31, 2019.

Warrant transactions and the number of warrants outstanding are summarized as follows:

Number of Weighted Average

Warrants Exercise Price

Balance at December 31, 2017 - -
Issued 595,430 $ 1.00
Exercised - -
Cancelled - -
Balance at December 31, 2018 595,430 $ 1.00
Issued - -
Exercised - -
Cancelled - -
Balance at December 31, 2019 595,430 $ 1.00

The following warrants were outstanding at December 31, 2019:

Number of Number of
Exercise Warrants Warrants
Issue Date Expiry Date Price Outstanding Exercisable
December 19, December 19,
2018 2020 $1.00 595,340 595,340
595,340 595,340
Options

On October 1, 2018, the Company granted 2,000,000 stock options to a consultant and an officer of
the Company. These stock options vest 12.5% on January 1, 2019, 12.5% on April 1, 2019, 12.5% on
July 1, 2019, 12.5% on October 1, 2019, 12.5% on January 1, 2020, 12.5% on April 1, 2020, 12.5%
on July 1, 2020 and the remaining 12.5% on October 1, 2020. These stock options have an exercise
price of $0.50 per share and expire on October 1, 2023.
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On October 1, 2018, the Company granted 2,500,000 stock options to consultants of the Company.
These stock options vest 25% on January 1, 2019, 25% on April 1, 2019, 25% on July 1, 2019, 25%
on October 1, 2019. These stock options have an exercise price of $0.50 per share and expire on
October 1, 2023.

On January 15, 2019, the Company granted a total of 1,100,000 stock options to a consultant of the
Company. 500,000 of these stock options vest on April 1, 2019. Theses stock options have an exercise
price of $1.00 per share and expire on January 15, 2024. The remaining 600,000 of these stock options
vest on October 1, 2019. These stock options have an exercise price of $2.50 per share and expire on
January 15, 2024.

On February 1, 2019, the Company granted 400,000 stock options to a consultant of the Company.
These stock options vest 12.5% on October 1, 2019, 12.5% on January 1, 2020, 12.5% on April 1,
2020, 12.5% on July 1, 2020, 12.5% on October 1, 2020, 12.5% on January 1, 2021, 12.5% on April
1, 2021 and the remaining 12.5% on July 1, 2021. These stock options have an exercise price of $1.00
per share and expire on February 1, 2024.

On April 1, 2019, the Company granted 400,000 stock options to a consultant of the Company. These
stock options vest 25% on October 1, 2019, 25% on January 1, 2020, 25% on April 1, 2020, an 25%
on July 1, 2020. These stock options have an exercise price of $1.00 per share and expire on April 1,
2024.

On April 15, 2019, the Company granted 12,500 stock options to an employee of the Company. These
options vest 34% on April 15, 2020, 33% on April 15, 2021, and 33% on April 15, 2022. These stock
options have an exercise price of $1.00 and expire on April 15, 2024.

On April 29, 2019, the Company granted 500,000 stock options to a consultant of the Company. These
options vest 25% on April 29, 2019, 25% on May 30, 2019, 25% on August 30, 2019, and 25% on
December 30, 2019. These stock options have an exercise price of $1.00 and expire on April 29,
2024.

On May 13, 2019, the Company granted 350,000 stock options to an executive of the Company. These
stock options vest 12.5% on May 13, 2019, 12.5% on August 13, 2019, 12.5% on November 13,
2019, 12.5% on February 13, 2020, 12.5% on May 13, 2020, 12.5% on August 13, 2020, 12.5% on
November 13, 2020 and the remaining 12.5% on February 13, 2021. These stock options have an
exercise price of $1.00 per share and expire on May 13, 2024.

On May 21, 2019, the Company granted 30,000 stock options to an employee of the Company. These
stock options vest 12.5% on May 21, 2019, 12.5% on August 21, 2019, 12.5% on November 21,
2019, 12.5% on February 21, 2020, 12.5% on May 21, 2020, 12.5% on August 21, 2020, 12.5% on
November 21, 2020 and the remaining 12.5% on February 21, 2021. These stock options have an
exercise price of $1.00 per share and expire on May 21, 2024.

On August 12, 2019 the Company granted 12,500 stock options to an employee of the Company.
These options vest 34% on August 12, 2020, 33% on August 12, 2021, and 33% on August 12, 2022.
These stock options have an exercise price of $1.00 and expire on August 12, 2024.

On November 13, 2019, the Company granted 100,000 stock options to an employee of the Company.

These options vest 8.3% on February 13, 2020, 8.3% on May 13, 2020, 8.3% on August 13, 2020,
8.3% on November 13, 2020, 8.3% on February 13, 2021, 8.3% on May 13, 2021, 8.3% on August
13, 2021, 8.3% on November 13, 2021, 8.3% on February 13, 2022, 8.3% on May 13, 2022, 8.3% on
August 13, 2022, and 8.3% on November 13, 2022. These stock options have an exercise price of
$1.00 and expire on November 13, 2024.
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On November 22, 2019, the Company granted 25,000 stock options to an employee of the Company.

These options vest 8.3% on February 13, 2020, 8.3% on May 13, 2020, 8.3% on August 13, 2020,
8.3% on November 13, 2020, 8.3% on February 13, 2021, 8.3% on May 13, 2021, 8.3% on August
13, 2021, 8.3% on November 13, 2021, 8.3% on February 13, 2022, 8.3% on May 13, 2022, 8.3% on
August 13, 2022, and 8.3% on November 13, 2022. These stock options have an exercise price of
$1.00 and expire on November 22, 2024.

The options granted during the year ended December 31, 2019 have a fair value of $2,593,834 (2018 -
$3,739,048) estimated using the Black-Scholes options pricing model with the following weighted
average assumptions:

2019 2018
Risk-free interest rate 1.92% 2.42%
Expected term (in years) 5.00 5.00
Estimated dividend yield 0% 0%
Estimated volatility 100.00% 100.00%

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company recognized $3,796,095 (2018 - $1,637,559)
in share-based compensation under graded vesting.

Options transactions and the number of options outstanding are summarized are as follows:
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Number of Weighted Average
Stock Options Exercise Price
Balance at December 31, 2017 - $ -
Granted 4,500,000 0.50
Exercised - -
Cancelled - -
Balance at December 31, 2018 4,500,000 $ 0.50
Granted 2,930,000 1.26
Exercised - -
Cancelled - -
Balance at December 31, 2019 7,430,000 $ 0.80
The following options were outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2019:
Number of Number of
Exercise Options Options
Grant Date Expiry Date Price Outstanding Exercisable
October 1, 2018 October 1, 2023 $0.50 4,500,000 3,500,000
January 15, January 15,
2019 2024 $1.00 500,000 500,000
January 15, January 15,
2019 2024 $2.50 600,000 600,000
February 1,
2019 February 1, 2024 $1.00 400,000 50,000
April 1, 2019 April 1, 2024 $1.00 400,000 100,000
April 15,2019 April 15,2024 $1.00 12,500 -
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April 29,2019 April 29,2024 $1.00 500,000 500,000
May 13,2019 May 13,2024 $1.00 350,000 131,250
May 21, 2019 May 21, 2024 $1.00 30,000 11,250
August 12,2019 August 12, 2024 $1.00 12,500 -
November 13, November 13,

2019 2024 $1.00 100,000 -
November 22, November 22, -
2019 2024 $1.00 25,000

7,430,000 5,392,500

FINANCIAL AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities consist of cash, accounts receivable, loans receivable,
call option, accounts payables and accrued liabilities, convertible debentures, and bridge financing.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were presented on the Company’s
statement of financial position as of December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted prices in  Significant

active markets other Significant
for identical observable  unobservable
instruments inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Balance
$ $ $ $
December 31, 2019
Cash 1,378,687 - - 1,387,687
Accounts receivable 1,463,388 - - 1,463,388
Loans receivable 72,923,991 - - 72,923,991
Refundable deposits 10,605,100 - - 10,605,100
Call option - - 19,547,757 19,547,757
Total 86,371,166 - 19,574,757 105,918,923

Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities 1,334,370 - - 1,334,370
Convertible debentures 17,597,600 - - 17,597,600
Bridge financing 36,610,075 - - 36,610,075
Total 55,542,045 - - 55,542,045
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December 31, 2018
Cash 24,377,286 - - 24,377,286
Loans receivable 10,510,400 - - 10,510,400
Total 34,887,686 - - 34,887,686

Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities 161,937 - - 161,937

Total 161,937 - - 161,937

The fair values of other financial instruments, which include accounts payable and accrued liabilities
and loans receivable, approximate their carrying values due to the relatively short-term maturity of
these instruments.

(a) Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to a concentration of credit risk
consist primarily of cash and loans receivable. The Company limits its exposure to credit loss
by placing its cash with high credit quality financial institutions. Deposits held with these
institutions may exceed the amount of insurance provided on such deposits. The Company is
exposed to significant credit risk on its loans receivable. The carrying amount of financial
assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

(b)  Foreign Exchange Rate

The Company has cash and loans receivable denominated in US dollars and, as a consequence,
the financial results of the Company’s operations as reported in Canadian dollars are subject to
changes in the value of the Canadian dollar relative to the US dollar. Therefore, exchange rate
movements in the US dollar can have a significant impact on the Company’s operating results
due to the translation of monetary assets.

At December 31, 2019, a 5% strengthening (weakening) of the Canadian dollar against the US
dollar would have increased (decreased) the Company’s net loss before taxes by approximately
$2,586,608 (2018 - 10%, $125,000) for the year ended December 31, 2019.

(c) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates. Interest earned on cash and cash equivalents is at nominal interest rates, and
therefore the Company does not consider interest rate risk to be significant.

As at December 31, 2019, the interest rate on loans receivable and convertible debentures is
fixed based on the contracts in place. As such, the Company is exposed to interest rate risk to
the extent of these financial assets and liabilities.

(d)  Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by forecasting cash flows from
operations and anticipated investing and financing activities.

As at December 31, 2019, the Company had a cash balance of $1,378,687 (2018 -
$24,377,286) available to apply against short-term business requirements and current liabilities
of $55,542,045 (2018 - $161,937). All of the liabilities presented as accounts payable and
accrued liabilities are due within 90 days of December 31, 2019

13




MichiCann Medical Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

BRIDGING FINANCE INC. CREDIT FACILITY

On June 4, 2019, Bridging Finance Inc. (the “Lender”) entered into a credit agreement (the “Credit
Agreement”) with the Company and PharmaCo (collectively, the “Borrowers”) pursuant to which the
Lender established a non-revolving credit facility (the “Facility”) for the Borrowers in a maximum
principal amount of $36,374,400 (the “Facility Limit”). The purpose of the Facility is so that the
Borrowers can purchase certain real estate and business assets in the state of Michigan, to make
additional permitted acquisitions and for general corporate and operating purposes.

The obligations under the Facility are due and payable on the earlier of: (a) the termination date (being
January 4, 2020); and (b) the acceleration date (being the earlier of the date of an insolvency event or
that a demand notice is delivered pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement).

In respect of the advance made by the Lender to the Borrowers under the Facility, the Borrowers
agreed to pay the Lender:

a) Interest at the prime rate plus 10.55% per annum calculated and compounded monthly, payable
monthly in arrears on the last day of each month; and

b) A work fee equal to $909,360 (the “Work Fee”) (paid by the Company).

The obligations under the Facility are secured by general security agreements on each Borrower,
mortgages on certain owned real property of PharmaCo among other security obligations.

As the funds under the Facility (net of the Work Fee, commissions and other transaction expenses of
the Lender) were advanced by the Lender directly to MichiCann, MichiCann in turn advanced the
funds (net of MichiCann’s transaction expenses) to PharmaCo pursuant to a Promissory Note (the
“Promissory Note”) issued by PharmaCo to MichiCann in the principal amount of $30,648,516 (the
“Principal”). The Principal is due and payable in full on January 2, 2020 (the “Maturity Date”).
PharmaCo may prepay the Principal in full in whole prior to the Maturity Date. Any amounts payable
by PharmaCo or MichiCann to the Lender under the Facility will reduce the amount of PharmaCo’s
obligations to MichiCann on a dollar for dollar basis under the Promissory Note.

The Company paid financing fees related to the Facility, including the Work Fee, of $2,361,459 which
has been included as commission expenses for the year ended December 31, 2019. The Company also
deducted a debt service reserve of $3,323,524 from the total principal amount which serves to pay the
interest on the Facility as it is incurred. During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company
incurred interest expense of $3,540,353 on the Facility. As such, as of December 31, 2019 the debt
service reserve balance is $nil and the Company has interest payable of $229,399 included in the
bridge financing amount. During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company paid deposit of
$133,000 for additional professional fees. The remaining balance of the deposit as at December 31,
2019 was $72,500.

On January 10, 2020, the Facility was amended (the “Amended Facility”) pursuant to an amended and
restated agreement between the Lender, MichiCann (as guarantor) and PharmaCo, RWB Illinois, Inc.
(“RWB”) and MAG (as borrowers).
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The Amended Facility increased the Facility Limit to US $49,750,000 in the aggregate of which US
$27,000,000 was to refinance the existing Facility and US $22,750,000 was used to complete the
MAG Acquisition and for general corporate and operating purposes.

The obligations under the Facility are due and payable on the earlier of:

(a) the termination date (being July 10, 2021 subject to the right of the Borrowers to extend the
termination date by paying a 1% fee for two additional six-month periods for a total of 30 months);
and

(b) the acceleration date (being the earlier of the date of an insolvency event or that a demand notice
is delivered pursuant to the terms of the Amended Credit Agreement).

In respect of the advance made by Bridging to the Borrowers under the Facility, the Borrowers agreed
to pay Bridging:

(a) Interest at the prime rate plus 12% per annum calculated and compounded monthly,
payable monthly in arrears on the last day of each month; and

(b) A work fee equal to $1,492,500 (the “Amended Work Fee”) (paid by the Company)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the Company to select from possible
alternative accounting principles, and to make estimates and assumptions that determine the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and reported costs and expenditures during
the reporting period. Estimates and assumptions may be revised as new information is obtained, and
are subject to change. The Company’s accounting policies and estimates used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are considered appropriate in the circumstances, but are subject to
judgments and uncertainties inherent in the financial reporting process. In preparing these MD&A,
management has made significant assumptions regarding the circumstances and timing of the
transactions contemplated therein, which could result in a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of certain assets and liabilities if changes to the assumptions are made.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
IFRS 16 Leases

The Company adopted IFRS 16 Leases (“IFRS 16) effective January 1, 2019. This new standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both the
lessee and the lessor. The new standard introduces a single lessee accounting model that requires the
recognition of all assets and liabilities arising from a lease. The main features of the new standard are
as follows:

An entity identifies as a lease a contract that conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period in exchange for consideration.

A lessee recognizes an asset representing the right to use the leased asset, and a liability for its
obligation to make lease payments. Exceptions are permitted for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets.
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A lease asset is initially measured at cost, and is then depreciated similarly to property, plant
and equipment. A lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the unpaid lease
payments.

A lessee presents interest expense on a lease liability separately from depreciation of a lease
asset in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

A lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for
them accordingly.

A lessor provides enhanced disclosures about its risk exposure, particularly exposure to
residual-value risk.

The new standard supersedes the requirements in IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

The Company reviewed its operations and noted no material impact on the adoption of IFRS 16.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following is a summary of related party transactions that occurred during the year ended
December 31, 2019:

(a) Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is $377,157 (2018 - $6,250) payable to a
director of the Company. Amounts due to related parties have no stated terms of interest and/or
repayment.

(b) Key management personnel include the directors and officers of the Company. Key management
compensation consists of the following:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
$ $

Consulting fees paid or accrued to a company
controlled by the director of the Company 108,000 75,000
Salary paid to management of the company 495,632 -
Share-based compensation 655,380 280,829

There were no post-employment benefits, termination benefits or other long-term benefits paid to key
management personnel for the period ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company did not enter into any off-balance sheet arrangements during the period.
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OUTSTANDING SHARES DATA AS OF REPORT DATE
April 29, December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

2020
Issued and outstanding common shares 132,190,811 84,211,752 74,222,182
Series I preferred shares 3,181,250 - -
Series II preferred shares 108,726,349 - -
Warrants outstanding 1,194,402 595,340 595,340
Stock options outstanding 9,200,539 7,430,000 4,500,000

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The information provided in this report, including the consolidated financial statements, is the
responsibility of Management. In the preparation of these statements estimates are sometimes
necessary to make a determination of future values for certain assets or liabilities. Management
believes such estimates have been based on careful judgments and have been properly reflected in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Risks

The Investment in the common shares must be regarded as highly speculative due to the proposed
nature of the Company’s business and its present stage of operations.

There can be no assurance that an active and liquid market for the Company’s common shares will
develop and an investor may find it difficult to resell the common shares.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) are responsible for
designing internal controls over financial reporting in order to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with IFRS. The design of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting was assessed as of the date of this MD&A.

Based on this assessment, it was determined that certain weaknesses existed in internal controls over
financial reporting. As indicative of many small companies, the lack of segregation of duties and
effective risk assessment were identified as areas where weaknesses existed. The existence of these
weaknesses is to be compensated for by senior management monitoring, which exists. The officers
will continue to monitor very closely all financial activities of the Company and increase the level of
supervision in key areas. It is important to note that this issue would also require the Company to hire
additional staff in order to provide greater segregation of duties. Since the increased costs of such
hiring could threaten the Company’s financial viability, management has chosen to disclose the
potential risk in its filings and proceed with increased staffing only when the budgets and workload
will enable the action. The Company has attempted to mitigate these weaknesses, through a
combination of extensive and detailed review by the CEO of the financial reports.
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OUTLOOK

Although current management has demonstrated its ability to raise funds in the past, with the current
financial market conditions and global economic uncertainty, there can be no assurance they will be
able to do so in the future. The financial results and discussion do not include the adjustments that
would be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern. Such adjustments
could be material.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR VENTURE ISSUERS WITHOUT SIGNIFICANT
REVENUE

Operating Expenses

For the three months ended Year ended Year ended
December 31 December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
$ $ $ $
Expenses
Share-based compensation 635,432 1,637,559 3,796,095 1,637,559
Interest expense 1,802,780 - 3,540,353 -
Commissions 74,787 - 2,361,459 -
Professional fees 1,099,131 53,522 1,952,329 53,522
Consulting fees 391,632 213,079 919,839 325,000
Marketing 588,751 1,302 913,412 32,921
Salaries and wages 198,653 - 568,167 -
General and administration (18,712) 7,728 79,235 7,865
Depreciation 1,898 - 1,898 -
Foreign exchange loss (gain) 1,115,129 (25,465) 1,385,803 (25,465)
Loss from operations 5,889,481 1,887,725 15,518,590 2,031,402
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Illinois Facility and Mid-American Growers, Inc.

On October 9, 2019, the Company entered into an agreement and plan of merger (the “MAG Merger
Agreement”) with MAG, RWB Illinois, Inc. and Arthur VanWingerden and Ken VanWingerden
(collectively the “MAG Sellers”) pursuant to which the Company will acquire all of the issued and
outstanding shares of MAG. MAG has a facility for Hemp production, on 124 acres of real property
commonly known as 14240 Greenhouse Avenue, Granville, Illinois (the “MAG owned property”).
The MAG Merger Agreement was amended on November 1, 2019 and January 9, 2020. The merger
was completed on January 10, 2020 (“MAG Acquisition”).

Pursuant to the MAG Merger Agreement, on closing of the MAG Acquisition, the Company paid to
the MAG Sellers USD $7,100,000 in cash and issued to the MAG Sellers a non-transferable, fully paid
right to receive in the aggregate 35,637,800 common shares of Tidal after the completion of the three-
cornered

18




MichiCann Medical Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

amalgamation with the Company and 2690229 Ontario Inc. (“Resulting Issuer Shares”) (assuming
completion of the Proposed Transaction prior to June 1, 2020). If the Proposed Transaction is not
completed prior to June 1, 2020, MichiCann shall deliver to the MAG Sellers an aggregate cash
payment equal to USD $5,000,000 and 17,133,600 MichiCann common shares.

In addition, so long as the MAG Sellers have used commercially reasonable efforts to assist
MichiCann and MAG in achieving regulatory approval of a commercial cultivation center license to
MAG for the Illinois Facility described below (the “Milestone Event”) (i) MichiCann shall issue to the
MAG Sellers an additional 5,491,200 Resulting Issuer Shares (assuming completion of the Proposed
Transaction prior to the Milestone Event) based on a value of USD $10,000,000 and (ii) only if the
Milestone Event is achieved during calendar 2020, MichiCann shall pay to the MAG Sellers in the
aggregate an additional USD $5,000,000 in cash. If the Proposed Transaction is not completed at the
time of the Milestone Event, MichiCann shall issue to the MAG Sellers an aggregate 2,640,000
additional MichiCann common shares.

Concurrent with the closing of the MAG Acquisition, MichiCann’s wholly owned subsidiary, RWB
Illinois, Inc. acquired an additional 142 acres of land located in Illinois, together with the buildings,
plant facilities, structures, building systems fixtures and improvements located thereon and related
personal property and intangibles (together with the MAG owned property, the “Illinois Facility”) for
USD $2,000,000 pursuant to a real estate purchase agreement made and entered into as of January 10,
2020 between RWB, VW Properties LLC, as seller, and each of the MAG Sellers.

Tidal Amendment

On March 12, 2020, the Company entered into an amended and restated business combination
agreement (the “Amended Agreement”) with Tidal pursuant to which Tidal will acquire all of the
issued and outstanding shares of the Company on a 2:1 basis, subject to adjustment in certain
circumstances (the “Amended Exchange Ratio”). The terms of the Amended Agreement provide that
the share consideration will now be comprised of one common share (the “Common Shares”) and one
series 2 convertible preferred share (the “Series 2 Shares”) of the Resulting Issuer. The Series 2 Shares
to be issued to MichiCann shareholders (i) will carry voting rights (entitling a holder to one vote per
Series 2 Share held, voting together with the holders of common shares), (ii) will be entitled to 5%
annual dividends payable in additional Series 2 Shares (the “Dividends”), (iii) will be convertible
(together with accrued Dividends) into Common Shares on a 1:1 basis at the option of the holder on or
after the seven month anniversary of their issuance date, and (iv) will automatically be converted on
the same basis on the two year anniversary of their issuance date. All outstanding options and
warrants to purchase MichiCann common shares will be exchanged with options and warrants to
purchase common shares and Series 2 Shares in accordance with the Amended Exchange Ratio.

The Amended Agreement contemplates the following changes: Immediately prior to the completion of
the Amalgamation, Tidal will (i) complete a share consolidation on a 16:1 basis (the “Amended
Consolidation™), (ii) change its name to “Red White & Bloom Brands Inc.” and (iii) reconstitute its
board of directors such that the board of the Resulting Issuer will consist of five (5) directors, which
will include two (2) members of the current board of Tidal and three (3) nominees of MichiCann (the
“Board Appointments”).

Pursuant to the terms of the Amended Agreement, the closing of the Proposed Transaction is subject to
a number of conditions, including but not limited to (i) obtaining the requisite shareholder approvals,
(i) the completion of the Amended Consolidation, the Name Change and the Board Appointments,
(iii) obtaining requisite regulatory approvals including the approval of the CSE for the Proposed
Transaction
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and the listing of the Common Shares, (iv) obtaining escrow agreements from the directors and
officers of each of MichiCann and Tidal, and certain sharcholders of each of MichiCann and Tidal
pursuant to which the escrowed shares would be subject to restrictions on transfer and other dealings
and released in three equal tranches over a period of 18 months following the closing of the Proposed
Transaction, and (v) other closing conditions customary for transactions of this nature.

Tidal Business Combination

On April 28, 2020, the Company announced the closing of the Amalgamation with Tidal pursuant to
the terms of the Amended Agreement dated March 12, 2020.

The Amalgamation involved the acquisition of 100% of the Company’s issued and outstanding shares
on a 2:1 basis. Due to the terms of the Exchange Ratio the previous shareholders of the Company
acquired a controlling interest in Tidal and as such the Amalgamation has been accounted for as a
reverse takeover transaction with the Company being the resulting issuer for financial reporting
purposes. Upon completion of the Amalgamation, Tidal changed its name to Red, White & Bloom
Brands Inc.

The assets and liabilities of Tidal cannot be disclosed at this time because the Company is still in the
process of completing the closing balance sheet and the valuation of assets and liabilities acquired.

COVID-19

Since December 31, 2019, the outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus, specifically identified as
“COVID-19”, has resulted in governments worldwide enacting emergency measures to combat the
spread of the virus. These measures, which include the implementation of travel bans, self-imposed
quarantine periods and physical distancing, have caused material disruption to business globally
resulting in an economic slowdown. Global equity markets have experienced significant volatility and
weakness. The duration and impact of the COVID-19 outbreak is unknown at this time, as is the
efficacy of the government and central bank interventions. It is not possible to reliably estimate the
length and severity of these developments and the impact on the financial results and condition of the
Company in future periods.

OTHER INFORMATION

Additional information about the Company is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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Tidal Rovalty ichicann Medical Inc. Proforma  Pro-forma
Corp.
As at January 31, 2020 December 31,2019 Notes Adjustments Consolidated
$ $ $ $
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 154 627 1,378,687 3a 3,542,950 24,398,264
3¢ 30,257,500
= (1,492,500)
= - 3d (9,443,000) =
Amounts receivable 98,649 1,463,388 - 1,562,037
Prepaid expenses and deposits 30,808 124,140 - 154,948
Convertible debenture receivable 17,712,200 - 3d (17,712,200) -
Loan receivable - 36,504,397 &= 36,504,397
17,996,284 39,470,612 5,152,750 62,619,646
Equpment - 10,847 - 10,847
Deposis 330,825 12 530,659 = 12,861,484
Promissory note receivable 4,119,938 - - 4,119,938
Right-of-use assets 178,912 - - 178,912
Loan receivable - 36,419,594 - 36,419,594
Call option - 19,547,757 - 19,547,757
Acquis ition of MAG 3c 95,110,985 95,110,985
Investm ents in equity securites 1,778,376 - - 1,778,376
TOTAL ASSETS 24,404,335 107,979,469 100,263,735 232,647,539
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 348224 1,334,370 - 1,682,594
Convertible debtenture payable B 17,597,600 3d (17,597,600) &
Lease liabilities 185,548 & = 185,548
Loan payable 50,164 50,164
Due to related parties 17,566 - - 17,566
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 601,502 18,931,970 (17,597,600) 1,935,872
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bridge financing - 36,610,075 3c 30,257,500 66,867 575
TOTAL LIABILITIES 801,502 55542,045 12,659,900 68,803,447
EQUITY
Convertible preferred shares 2,388,941 - 3b (2,388,941) -
Common shares 49,124,043 61,368,160 3a 3,542,950 203,309,257
= - 3b (49,124,043) =
= & 3b 58,661,155 -
= - 3b 36,905,000 -
- - 3¢ 42,833,993 -
Series Il Preferred Shares - - 3c 42,833,993 42,833,993
Accumulated other com prehensive loss 16,949 - 3b (16,949) -
Reserves 11,958,030 5748,889 3b (11,958,030) 5,748,889
Accumulated deficit (39.685,130) (14 677,625) 3b 39,685,130 (88,048,047)
3b (34,858,322) 2
3b (36,905,000)
3¢ (1,492 500)
3b (114,600)
23,802,833 52,437 424 87,603,835 163,844,092
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 24,404,335 107,979,469 70,006,235 232,647,639
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NOTES TO THE PRO-FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at January 31, 2020

(Unaudited — Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

1.

DEFINITIVE AGREEMENT

On February 12, 2019, Tidal Royalty Corp. (the “Company”) entered into a binding letter of intent (the “LOI”)
with MichiCann Medical Inc. (operating as Red White & Bloom) (“RWB” or “MichiCann”) with respect to the
acquisition of all of the issued outstanding shares of MichiCann (the “Proposed Transaction”). After completion
of the Proposed Transaction, the shareholders of Tidal will hold approximately 20% of the issued common
shares of the resulting issuer, and the former shareholders of MichiCann will hold approximately 80% of the
resulting issuer shares, on a fully-diluted basis (the “Resulting Issuer”).

On March 12, 2020, the Company and MichiCann entered into an amended and restated business combination
agreement (the “Amended Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company will acquire all of the issued and
outstanding shares of MichiCann (the “Proposed Transaction”) on a 2:1 basis, subject to adjustment in certain
circumstances (the “Exchange Ratio”). The terms of the Amended Agreement provide that the share
consideration will now be comprised of one (1) common share (the “Common Shares”) and one (1) series 2
convertible preferred share (the “Series 2 Shares”) of the resulting company (the “Resulting Issuer”). The Series
2 Shares to be issued to MichiCann shareholders (i) will carry voting rights (entitling a holder to one vote per
Series 2 Share held, voting together with the holders of Common Shares), (ii) will be entitled to 5% annual
dividends payable in additional Series 2 Shares (the “Dividends”), (iii) will be convertible (together with accrued
Dividends) into Common Shares on a 1:1 basis at the option of the holder on or after the seven (7) month
anniversary of their issuance date, and (iv) will automatically be converted on the same basis on the two (2)
year anniversary of their issuance date. All outstanding options and warrants to purchase MichiCann common
shares will be exchanged with options and warrants to purchase Common Shares and Series 2 Shares in
accordance with the Exchange Ratio.

The Amended Agreement contemplates the following changes: Immediately prior to the completion of the
Amalgamation, the Company will (i) complete a share consolidation on a 16:1 basis (the “Consolidation”), (ii)
change its name to “Red White & Bloom Brands Inc.” (the “Name Change”) and (iii) reconstitute its board of
directors such that the board of the Resulting Issuer will consist of five (5) directors, which will include two (2)
members of the current board of the Company and three (3) nominees of MichiCann (the “Board
Appointments”).

The Proposed Transaction will be completed by way of a three-cornered amalgamation under the Business
Corporations Act (Ontario), whereby 2690229 Ontario Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Subco”)
will amalgamate with MichiCann (the “Amalgamation”). The Proposed Transaction will constitute a
“Fundamental Change” of the Company, as such term is defined in the policies of the Canadian Securities
Exchange (the “CSE”) and as a result the Company will be required to obtain the approval of the holders of its
outstanding common shares, by simple majority, which it intends to obtain by way of written consent.

Immediately prior to the completion of the Amalgamation, the Company will (i) complete a share consolidation
on a 16:1 basis (the “Consolidation”), (ii) change its name to “Red White & Bloom Inc.” or such other name as
may be approved by the board of directors of the Company and accepted by the relevant regulatory authorities
(the “Name Change”) and (iii) reconstitute its board of directors (the “Board”) such that the board of the
Resulting Issuer will consist of six (6) directors, which will include two (2) members of the current board of the
Company and four (4) nominees of MichiCann (the “Board Appointments”). On completion of the Proposed
Transaction, the board of the Resulting Issuer will also appoint a nominee of Tidal to act in the capacity as a
board observer, and such board observer will be nominated and recommended for election as a director at the
next annual shareholders meeting of the Resulting Issuer.

On April 24, 2020, the Company closed the Amended and Restated Business Combination Agreement with
Tidal Subco and Michicann, consolidated its common shares of a 16:1 basis and changed its name to Red
White & Bloom Brands Inc.
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1.

DEFINITIVE AGREEMENT (continued)

Pursuant to the terms of the Amended Agreement, the closing of the Proposed Transaction is subject to a
number of conditions, including but not limited to (i) obtaining the requisite shareholder approvals, (ii) the
completion of the Consolidation, the Name Change and the Board Appointments, (iii) obtaining requisite
regulatory approvals including the approval of the CSE for the Proposed Transaction and the listing of the
Common Shares, (iv) obtaining escrow agreements from the directors and officers of each of MichiCann and
Tidal, and certain shareholders of each of MichiCann, its Michigan based investee and Tidal pursuant to which
the escrowed shares would be subject to restrictions on transfer and other dealings and released in three equal
tranches over a period of 18 months following the closing of the Proposed Transaction, and (v) other closing
conditions customary for transactions of this nature.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The unaudited pro-forma consolidated statement of financial position of the Company gives effect to the
Transaction as described above. In substance, the Transaction involves MichiCann shareholders obtaining
control of the Company and accordingly the Transaction will be considered a reverse takeover transaction
(“RTO”) with MichiCann acquiring the Company. As the Company does not meet the definition of a business
under International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS”), the consolidated financial statements of the
combined entity will represent the continuation of MichiCann. The Transaction has been accounted for as a
share-based payment, in accordance with IFRS 2, by which MichiCann acquired the net assets and the
Company’s status as a Reporting Issuer. Accordingly, the accompanying unaudited pro-forma consolidated
statement of financial position of the Company has been prepared by management using the same accounting
policies. There are no differing accounting policies between the Company and MichiCann.

The unaudited pro-forma consolidated statement of financial position is not necessarily indicative of the
Company’s consolidated financial position on closing of the Transaction had the Transaction closed on the
dates assumed herein.

The unaudited pro-forma consolidated statement of financial position has been compiled from information

derived from and should be read in conjunction with the following information, prepared in accordance with

IFRS:
- the Company’s interim financial statements as at and for the period ended January 31, 2020;

MichiCann’s audited financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2019; and

the additional information set out in Note 3 of this unaudited pro-forma consolidated statement of

financial position that are directly attributable to the Transaction or factually supportable.
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3.  UNAUDITED PRO-FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS

a.)

b.)

The unaudited pro-forma consolidated statement of financial position gives effect to the completion of the
Transaction incorporating the assumptions within Note 1, as if it had occurred on the date presented,
January 31, 2020.

Subsequent to January 31, 2020, the Company issued 70,858,999 common shares pursuant to the
exercise of warrants at $0.05 per warrant.

As consideration for 100% of the outstanding common shares of MichiCann. the Company will issue
84,211,770 common shares in exchange for all outstanding common shares of MichiCann. As a result of
the share exchange, the former shareholders of MichiCann will acquire control of the Company and the
Transaction will be treated as an RTO. The Transaction will be accounted for as an acquisition of the net
assets and the Company'’s status as a Reporting Issuer by MichiCann via a share-based payment.

The excess of the estimated fair value of the equity instruments that MichiCann is deemed to have issued to
acquire the Company, plus the transaction costs (both the “Consideration) and the estimated fair value of
the Company’s net assets, will be recorded as a charge to the accumulated deficit as a cost of obtaining the
Company’s status as a Reporting Issuer.

For the purposes of the pro-forma consolidated statement of financial position, management has estimated
the fair value of the equity instruments deemed to be issued in regard to the Company. The fair value of
the 23,464,462 common shares amounted to $46,928,958, based on a deemed price of $2.50. The price
was calculated based on MichiCann’s most recent financing of $5.00 adjusted for the 2 to 1 share spilit.

The Finder’s fee of 14,762,000 Resulting Issuer shares is calculated on the deemed price of $2.50.
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3.

UNAUDITED PRO-FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS (continued)

The allocation of the Consideration for the purposes of the pro-forma consolidated statement of financial
position is as follows:

Net assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents 154,627
Amounts receivable 98,649
Convertible debenture receivable 17,712,200
Prepaid expenses and deposits 30,808
Promissory note receivable 4,119,938
Deposits 330,825
Right-of-use Assets 178,912
Investments 1,778,376
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (348,224)
Lease liabilities (185,548)
Loan payable (50,164)
Due to related parties (17,566)
Net assets acquired 23,802,833
Consideration $ 58,661,155
Cost of the Company's status as a Reporting Issuer charged to deficit $34,858,322

c.) On June 4, 2019, Bridging entered into a credit agreement (the ‘Credit Agreement”) with MichiCann and PharmaCo
(collectively, the “Borrowers”) pursuant to which Bridging established a non-revolving credit facility (the “Facility”)
for the Borrowers in a maximum principal amount of CAD $36,374,400 (the “Facility Limit”). The purpose of the
Facility is so that the PharmaCo can purchase certain real estate and business assets in the state of Michigan, to make
additional permitted acquisitions and for general corporate and operating purposes.

On January 10, 2020, the Facility was amended (the “Amended Facility”) pursuant to an amended and restated credit
agreement between Bridging, MichiCann (as guarantor) and PharmaCo, RWB Illinois and MAG (as borrowers) (the
“Amended Credit Agreement”).

The Amended Facility increased the Facility Limit to US $49,750,000 in the aggregate of which US $27,000,000 was
to refinance the existing Facility and US $22,750,000 (830,257,500 CAD) was used to complete the MAG Acquisition
and for general corporate and operating purposes.
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3.

UNAUDITED PRO-FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS (continued)

d.)

e.)

On October 9, 2019, MichiCann entered into an agreement and plan of merger (the MAG Merger Agreement”) with
Mid-American Growers, Inc., RWB Acquisition Sub, Inc. and Arthur VanWingerden and Ken VanWingerden
(collectively, the “MAG Sellers”) pursuant to which MichiCann will acquire all the issued and outstanding shares of
Mid-American Growers, Inc. This Merger Agreement was amended on November 1, 2019 and January 9, 2020. MAG
owned 124 acres of real property commonly known as 14240 Greenhouse Avenue, Granville Illinois (the “MAG
Owned Property”).

Concurrent with the closing of the MAG Acquisition, MichiCann’s wholly owned subsidiary, RWB Illinois acquired
additional 106 acres of land located at 14240 Greenhouse Avenue, Granville, Illinois for US$2,000,000 pursuant to a
real estate purchase agreement made and entered into as of January 10, 2020 between RWB Illinois, VW Properties
LLC, as seller, and each of the MAG Sellers (the “Real Estate Purchase Agreement”).

Pursuant to the MAG Merger Agreement, on closing of the MAG Acquisition, MichiCann paid to the MAG Sellers
US $7,100,000 (89,443,000 CAD) in cash and issued to the Sellers a non-transferable, fully paid right to receive in the
aggregate 17,133,597 Resulting Issuer Shares and 17,133,579 Resulting Issuer Series 2 Preferred Shares (assuming
completion of the Transaction prior to June 1, 2020).

On February 25, 2019, pursuant to the terms of the Proposed Transaction, the Company advanced
$15,000,000 to Michicann pursuant to a senior secured convertible debenture (the “MichiCann Debenture”).
The MichiCann Debenture is non-interest bearing, other than in the event of default by MichiCann and
matures on August 25, 2019 (the “Maturity Date”). The MichiCann Debenture is secured by way of first
ranking security against the personal property of MichiCann. If the Proposed Transaction is not completed
by the Maturity Date or MichiCann’s fails to comply with the terms of the MichiCann Debenture and
MichiCann pursues an alternative go public transaction or a change of control transaction (an “Alternate
Liquidity Transaction”), the Company may elect to convert, in whole or in part, the outstanding amount of
the MichiCann Debenture into common shares of MichiCann at a price per MichiCann share that is the
lesser if i) $2.50 per MichiCann Share and (ii) a 20% discount to the issue or effective price per Michicann
Share under the Alternate Liquidity Transaction. If the Proposed Transaction is not complete by October 25,
2019, MichiCann may elect to prepay the outstanding amount under the MichiCann Debenture, with a
prepayment penalty of 10%.

On August 28, 2019, the Issuer advanced MichiCann an additional US $2,000,000 to fund MichiCann
working capital pursuant to the First Amending Agreement.

For the purposes of these pro-forma consolidated financial statements, the amounts due to and from have
been eliminated on consolidation.



RED WHITE & BLOOM BRANDS INC.

NOTES TO THE PRO-FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at January 31, 2020

(Unaudited — Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

4. UNAUDITED PRO-FORMA SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

As a result of the Transaction and the pro-forma assumptions and adjustments, the Shareholders’ Equity of
the combined entity as at January 31, 2020 is comprised of the following:

Number of post split

Amount
common shares
$
Existing MichiCann Shareholders 84,211,770 64,909,110
Advisory fee on the Transaction 7,381,000 36,905,000
Common shares deemed to be
issued to Tidal shareholders 23,464,462 58,661,155
Shargs_ _reserved for MAG asset 17,133,579 42,833,993
acquisition
Pro forma balance at January 31, 132,190,811 203,309,257
2020
5. EFFECTIVE INCOME TAX RATE

The effective income tax rate for the resulting issuer is 27%.



RED WHITE & BLOOM BRANDS INC.

(the “Company”)
INVESTMENT POLICY

Summary

The Company is a publicly traded investment company whose primary objective is to invest its funds
for purposes of generating returns from capital appreciation and investment income. It intends to
accomplish these goals through the identification of and investment in securities of private and
publicly listed entities that are involved in a variety of industries, with a focus on medical or
recreational cannabis and legal hemp CBD products.

Investments will be acquired and held for short-term gains, income generation, or long-term capital
appreciation, dependent upon the specific investment. The paramount goal of the Company will be to
generate maximum returns from its investments.

The Company expects to establish an investment committee to oversee the identification, review and
implementation of investments. The Company may also engage an investment manager to assist with
identifying and executing upon investments, as well as monitoring investments over time.

While the Company’s focus will be on making investments in businesses that are involved in the
above mentioned sectors, the actual composition of the Company’s investment portfolio will vary over
time depending on its assessment of a number of factors, including the performance of its investments,
developments in existing and potential markets, and risk assessment. The Company’s investment
objectives, investment strategy and investment restrictions may be amended from time to time on the
recommendation of the investment committee or senior management and approval by the Board. The
Company’s board of directors reserves the right and authority to change the general or specific focus
of the Company’s investments over time; and reserves the right to diversify the Company’s portfolio
of investments by industry, geography, and investment type without prior announcement or notice
being given.

The Company anticipates re-investing the profits realized from its investments to further the growth
and development of the Company’s investment portfolio. The declaration and payment of dividends
to shareholders will become a priority once Company has achieved steady or continuous cash flow
from its investments.

Investment Objectives

The principal investment objectives of the Company are as follows:

to seek high return investment opportunities by investing directly in a variety of
securities or interests of public and private companies and assisting in early stage projects by
providing financial support;

to identify early stage opportunities with attractive risk/reward ratios;
to preserve its capital and limit the downside risk of its capital;
to achieve a reasonable rate of capital appreciation;

to minimize the risk associated with each form of investment; and
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to seek liquidity in its investments.
Investment Strategy

To achieve the investment objectives as stated above, while mitigating risk, the Company, when
appropriate, shall employ the following disciplines:

The Company will obtain detailed knowledge of the relevant business in which the
investment will be made, as well as the target company (“Investee”).

The Company will seek to retain management or consultants having specific industry
expertise within the industry or sector in which an investment is contemplated or has been made.

The Company will work closely with the Investee’s management and board, and in
some cases, assist in sourcing experienced and qualified persons to add to the board and/or
management of the Investee. In certain circumstances, a representative of the Company may be
appointed to an Investee’s board of directors.

Investments may include:

[ equity, bridge loans, secured loans, unsecured loans, convertible debentures, warrants and
options, royalties, streaming investments, net profit interests and other hybrid instruments;

o acquisitions, partnership interests, or joint venture interests with Investees;

o acquisition of a business or its assets, directly or via a wholly owned subsidiary, and
subsequent managing or assisting in developing the underlying business;

o capital investment in private companies, and assistance in moving them to an acquisition or
merger transaction with a larger company or to the public stage through initial public
offering, reverse takeover or other liquidity event;

o early stage equity investments in public companies believed to have favourable
management and business; and

o where appropriate, acting as a third party advisor for opportunities in target or other
companies, in exchange for a fee.

The Company will have flexibility on the return sought, while seeking to recapture its
capital within a reasonable period following the initial investment(s).

The Company will seek to maintain the ability to actively review and monitor all of its
investments on an ongoing basis. Investees will be required to provide continuous disclosure of
operations and financial status. From time to time, the Company may insist on board or
management representation on Investees.

The Company will continually seek liquidity opportunities for its investments, with a
view to optimizing the return on its investment; recognizing that no two investments will be alike
in terms of the duration held or the best means of exiting an investment.

The Company may acquire interests in Investees within the framework of the above
guidelines, which from time to time may result in the Company holding a control or complete
ownership position in an Investee.

The Company may utilize the services of both independent organizations and securities
dealers to gain additional information on target investments where appropriate.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, from time to time, the Board may authorize such investments outside
of these disciplines as it sees fit for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders.

Pending investment of available funds, monies will be held in bank or trust accounts with Schedule A
financial institutions.

Investments

Principal Targets: All aspects of the medical and recreational cannabis sectors, including entities
involved in providing goods or services to the industry.

Composition: The actual composition of the Company’s investment portfolio will vary over time
depending on its assessment of a number of factors, including the global development of the cannabis
industry. Management will not be bound or restricted as to the geographic, percentage diversity,
number of investments, or other restrictive parameters; but may exercise flexibility in its approach to
and investment of available funds.

Types: The Company will maintain a flexible position with respect to the form of investments taken,
and may employ a wide range of investment instruments, including equity, bridge loans, secured
loans, unsecured loans, convertible debentures, warrants and options, joint ventures, partnerships, net
profit interests and other hybrid instruments.

Jurisdictions: While the Company initially intends to focus on investments primarily located within
the United States, it acknowledges that the industries and sectors in which it intends to invest may
become global in nature, and as such anticipates that a material percentage of its investments may be
in entities formed in jurisdictions outside of the United States. All jurisdictions where cannabis is
legal will be permissible for investment consideration depending on the risk assessment of the Board
and management at the time the investment is made and the risk-reward relationship associated with
each investment in a particular jurisdiction, including the purchase of securities listed on foreign stock
exchanges.

Timing: The timing of the Company’s investments will depend, in part, on available capital at any
particular time, and the investment opportunities identified and available to the Company. Subject to
the availability of capital, the Company intends to create a suitably diversified portfolio of investments
and not retain available cash. Management will not be bound or restricted as to the timing to invest
available capital; but will seek to fully deploy available capital in as expeditious a manner as possible.

Notwithstanding the above, the Company must invest at least 60% of its available capital resources in
Investees, in accordance with the investment objectives and strategy outline herein, at all times
(subject to a reasonable period of time following each raising of additional capital). In the event it
fails to meet this requirement for a period of 180 days or more, it will forthwith call a meeting of its
shareholders for the purpose of seeking majority of the minority approval (excluding management and
insiders) to one of (i) continue to seek investment opportunities in accordance with the investment
policies and strategies outlined herein, or (ii) discontinue its operations as an investment company and
seek alternative opportunities, or (iii) liquidate and discontinue all operations and return the proceeds
therefrom to the minority shareholders as a return of capital or cash dividend.

Size: The Company will not be bound or restricted as to the overall size of its investment portfolio.

The Company may raise additional funds continuously for purposes of expanding its investment
portfolio; or may choose to limit its size based on available management time or investment
opportunities. Nor will the Company be limited as to the size of any particular investment it may make
or the percentage interest any one investment may be of the Company’s overall portfolio. As such, the
Company may hold a
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material or majority of its investments in one Investee or a relatively few number of Investees.
Further, the Company will not be limited as to the percentage interest it may hold in any Investee,
which may result in the Company holding a control position or even complete ownership of an
Investee.

Investee Structures: The Company will not be bound or restricted as to the nature or structure of
Investees. Investees may be public or private corporations, partnerships, joint ventures or other legal
entities.

Compliance: The Company will be use its reasonable commercial efforts to ensure that with respect to
every investment made by the Company that the Investee is in full compliance with all applicable
regulatory requirements enacted by the applicable regulatory authorities in the jurisdiction in which it
operates.

Management Participation

The Company may, from time to time, seek a more active role in Investees, and provide such entities
with financial and personnel resources, as well as strategic counsel. The Company may also ask for
board representation in cases where it makes a significant investment in the Investee. The Company’s
nominee(s) shall be determined by the Board as appropriate in such circumstances.

Registration Status

The Company will aim to structure its investments in such a way that the Company is not deemed to be
either an investment fund or mutual fund, as defined by applicable securities laws, thereby avoiding
the requirement to register as an investment fund manager or investment advisor.

Confflicts of Interest

The Company recognizes that its directors, officers are or may be involved in other financial,
investment and professional activities which may on occasion cause a conflict of interest with their
duties to the Company. These include serving as directors, officers, promoters, advisers or agents of
other public and private companies, including Investees. These persons may also engage in
transactions with the Company where any one or more of them is acting in a capacity as financial
advisor, broker, intermediary, principal, or counterparty, provided that such transactions are carried
out on terms similar to those which would apply in a like transaction between parties not connected
with any one of them and such transactions are carried out on normal commercial terms as if
negotiated at arm’s length.

The Company has no restrictions with respect to investing in Investees in which a director or member
of management may already have an interest. However, directors and senior officers will be required
to disclose any conflicts of interest, including holding any interest in a potential investment. Further,
where a conflict is determined to exist, the person having a disclosable interest shall abstain from
making further decisions or recommendations concerning such matter, and any potential investments
where there is a material conflict of interest involving an employee, officer or director of the Company
may only proceed after receiving approval from the disinterested directors of the Board.

The Company will also be subject to “related party” transaction policies of the securities exchange(s)
on which its shares are listed for trading. Such policies may require disinterested shareholder approval
and valuations for certain investment transactions.

Prior to making any investment commitment, the Company shall adopt procedures for checking for
potential conflicts of interest, which shall include but not be limited to a circulation of the names of a




-5-
potential target corporation and its affiliates to the Board and management.
Procedures and Implementation

The Board may appoint an Investment Committee (the “ Committee™) to be responsible for assisting
the Board in discharging the Board’s oversight responsibilities relating to investment opportunities.
These individuals would be expected to have a broad range of business experience and their own
networks of business partners, financiers, venture capitalists and finders through whom potential
investments may be identified.

If appointed, prospective investments will be channeled through the Committee. The Committee will
make an assessment of whether each proposal fits with the investment and corporate strategy of the
Company in accordance with the investment objectives and strategy set out herein, and then proceed
with preliminary due diligence, leading to a decision to reject or move the proposal to the next stage of
detailed due diligence. This process may involve the participation of outside professional consultants.

The Company will seek to obtain detailed knowledge of the Investee and its business including its
management team, quality of asset(s), and associated risks, as applicable.

Once a decision has been reached to recommend investing in a particular situation, a summary of the
rationale behind the investment decision will be prepared by the Committee and submitted to the
Board. This summary is expected to include, among other things, the estimated return on investment,
timeline of investment, guidelines against which future progress can be measured, and risks associated
with the investment.

All investments will be submitted to the Board for final approval. The Committee will monitor the
Company’s investment portfolio on an ongoing basis, and will be subject to the direction of the Board.

The Committee will present an overview of the state of the investment portfolio to the Board on a
quarterly basis.

The representative(s) of the Company involved in negotiating the structure of the Company’s
investment will be determined in each case by the circumstances of the investment opportunity.

Amendment

The Company’s investment objectives, investment strategy and investment restrictions may be
amended from time to time on the recommendation of the investment committee or senior
management and approval by the Board.

Dividends

The Company does not anticipate the declaration of dividends to shareholders during its initial stages
and plans to reinvest the profits of its investments to further the growth and development of the
Company’s investment portfolio. As part of the Company’s overall objective of maximizing returns
on its investments, it will seek to maximize value to its shareholders. As such the declaration and
payment of dividends to shareholders may become a priority once Company has achieved steady or
continuous cash flow from its investments.
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RED WHITE & BLOOM BRANDS INC.
(Formerly Tidal Royalty Corp.)

RED WHITE & BLOOM ANNOUNCES DATE FOR RESUMPTION OF
TRADING ON THE CSE

Toronto, Ontario, June 3, 2020 — Red White & Bloom Brands Inc. (CSE: RLTY.U) (OTC Pink:
TDRYF) (“RWB” or the “Company”, formerly, Tidal Royalty Corp.) is pleased to announce that
further to our news release dated April 28, 2020, the common shares of the Company will resume
trading on the Canadian Securites Exchange (“CSE”) at the open of trading on June 5, 2020. Trading
will resume under the new symbol “CSE: RWB” in Canada and under the symbol “OTC Pink:
RWBYF”in the United States. The Company has applied to trade on the OTCQX Best Market, a
market designed for establied, investor-focused U.S. and international companies. The Company will
provide updates on the up-listing in the coming weeks.

The Company has also recently launched a new investor relations website and invites all interested
parties to review our newly updated investor resources at: www.RedWhiteBloom.com/IR

About Red White & Bloom Brands Inc.

The Company is an investment company that is positioning itself to be one of the top three multi-state
cannabis operators active in the U.S. legal cannabis and hemp sector. It is anticipated that RWB will
predominately focus its investments on major markets in the United States, including Michigan,
California, Massachusetts and Florida in respect to cannabis and the entire US for legal hemp CBD
based products.

For more information about Red White & Bloom Brands Inc., please contact:
Tyler Troup, Managing Director

Circadian Group IR
IR@RedWhiteBloom.com

Visit us on the web: www.RedWhiteBloom.com

Follow us on social media:
Twitter: @rwbbrands
Facebook: @redwhitebloombrands

Instagram: @redwhitebloombrands
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Neither the CSE nor its Regulation Services Provider (as that term is defined in the policies of the
CSE) accepts responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of this release.

FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION

This press release contains forward-looking statements and information that are based on the beliefs of management
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and reflect the Company’s current expectations. When used in this press release, the words “estimate”, “project”,
“belief”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “expect”, “plan”, “predict”, “may” or “should” and the negative of these words or
such variations thereon or comparable terminology are intended to identify forward-looking statements and
information. The forward-looking statements and information in this press release includes information relating to the
implementation of Red White & Bloom’s business plan. Such statements and information reflect the current view of
the Company with respect to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially from those

contemplated in those forward-looking statements and information.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which
may cause our actual results, performance or achievements, or other future events, to be materially different from any
future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors
include, among others, the following risks: risks associated with the implementation of Red White & Bloom’s
business plan and matters relating thereto, risks associated with the cannabis industry, competition, regulatory change,
the need for additional financing, reliance on key personnel, the potential for conflicts of interest among certain
officers or directors, and the volatility of the Company’s common share price and volume. Forward-looking
statements are made based on management’s beliefs, estimates and opinions on the date that statements are made and
the Company undertakes no obligation to update forward-looking statements if these beliefs, estimates and opinions
or other circumstances should change. Investors are cautioned against attributing undue certainty to forward-looking
statements.

There are a number of important factors that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from those
indicated or implied by forward-looking statements and information. Such factors include, among others, risks related
to Red White & Bloom’s proposed business, such as failure of the business strategy and government regulation; risks
related to Red White & Bloom’s operations, such as additional financing requirements and access to capital, reliance
on key and qualified personnel, insurance, competition, intellectual property and reliable supply chains; risks related
to Red White & Bloom and its business generally. The Company cautions that the foregoing list of material factors is
not exhaustive. When relying on the Company’s forward-looking statements and information to make decisions,
investors and others should carefully consider the foregoing factors and other uncertainties and potential events. The
Company has assumed a certain progression, which may not be realized. It has also assumed that the material factors
referred to in the previous paragraph will not cause such forward-looking statements and information to differ
materially from actual results or events. However, the list of these factors is not exhaustive and is subject to change
and there can be no assurance that such assumptions will reflect the actual outcome of such items or factors. While the
Company may elect to, it does not undertake to update this information at any particular time.

THE FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS PRESS RELEASE REPRESENTS THE
EXPECTATIONS OF THE COMPANY AS OF THE DATE OF THIS PRESS RELEASE AND, ACCORDINGLY,

IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AFTER SUCH DATE. READERS SHOULD NOT PLACE UNDUE IMPORTANCE
ON FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION AND SHOULD NOT RELY UPON THIS INFORMATION AS OF
ANY OTHER DATE. WHILE THE COMPANY MAY ELECT TO, IT DOES NOT UNDERTAKE TO UPDATE
THIS INFORMATION AT ANY PARTICULAR TIME EXCEPT AS REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

APPLICABLE LAWS.
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RED WHITE & BLOOM BRANDS INC. SIGNS AGREEMENT WITH HIGH TIMES,
SECURING EXCLUSIVE LICENSING RIGHTS FOR HIGH TIMES BRANDED
LOCATIONS AND PRODUCT BRANDS FOR MICHIGAN, ILLINOIS AND FLORIDA

Deal combines the largest Midwest cannabis operation boasting 350,000 transactions per year with
one of the world’s most iconic cannabis brand for over 46 years

Toronto, Ontario, June 5, 2020 — Red White & Bloom Brands Inc. (CSE: RWB and OTC: TDRYD)
(“RWB” or the “Company”) is pleased to announce that it has entered into a Definitive Agreement
(as herein defined) to acquire the licensing rights for the branding of High Times® dispensaries and
High Times cannabis-based CBD and THC products in the States of Michigan, Illinois and Florida and
Branding of High Times hemp derived CBD products nationally in the United States carrying the
Culture® brand.

Under the terms of the Definitive Agreement, RWB will acquire the rights to exclusively brand both
medical and recreational dispensaries and cannabis products within the States of Michigan, Illinois and
Florida. RWB plans to sub-license to its investee in Michigan for its 18 planned and operational
dispensaries, to be rebranded as High Times stores and allow the investee to create and sell cannabis
derived products both within their own locations as well as to third parties in Michigan.

GH TIMES

®

Brad Rogers, Chairman and CEO stated, “Throughout my career in the highly competitive media
space, prior to cannabis, I have seen tremendous success licensing-in brands, strategically leveraging
them for the demographics that recognize the best in class and quality, and then listing them in big box
& specialty retailers. This agreement paves a path that will allow RWB and High Times to grow
together well into the future beyond our news today.”
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“Completing this deal represented by the only iconic brand in cannabis which has been around for over
45 years is a real honor. And to usher out prohibition of cannabis with this type of brand power has
RWB in the best position we could be. We will look to leverage this and other licensing partnerships
to support our existing retail and cultivation dominance as well as further foundationalize our
positioning for future plans.”

“When you combine the incredibly valuable data that High Times can supply through their world
renowned Cannabis Cups®, millions of monthly unique visitors to their websites
(https://www .hightimes.com/) and massive social media presence with our experience in growing
standardized, award winning premium flower and extracts, we have a winning formula to deliver the
best and most consistent quality products in the market under a trusted brand that will be the hallmark
of the industry.”

The Definitive Agreement includes RWB securing the rights from HT Retail Licensing, LLP (“ HT”)
to Culture® for the branding of CBD and whole hemp flower products nationally in the United States.
Initial plans are to grow and manufacture these best-in-class products from its massive 3.6 million
square foot facility in Illinois.

In addition to dispensaries becoming High Times branded destinations, RWB plans to introduce High
Times branded products including flower, vapes, tinctures, topicals, and edibles through both owned
and other third party outlets, subject to the licensing agreements for each respective state.

RWB’s US footprint currently spans Michigan, Illinois and Massachusetts. With a combined
cultivation footprint of over 4,000,000 square feet, 600 employees and 22 individual facilities, RWB’s
mandate is to operate at scale in select states that provide the greatest return for our partners and
shareholders.

Details of the Transaction

Immediately prior to entering into the Definitive Agreement, Newco entered into: (i) a retail license
agreement with HT whereby Newco was granted the right to use certain intellectual property in
associated with retail dispensary and local delivery services for cannabis products, cannabis
accessories and merchandise in Michigan, Illinois and Florida; and (ii) a product licensing agreement
with HT whereby Newco was granted an exclusive license to use certain intellectual property related
to the commercialization of cannabis products in Michigan, Illinois and Florida and CBD products
nationally carrying HT brands.

RWB entered into an acquisition agreement (the “Definitive Agreement”) with HT, as licensor to
Newco, and 1252240 B.C. Ltd. (the “Seller”), to acquire 1251881 B.C. Ltd. (“ Newco”) a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Seller (the “Proposed Transaction”).

The Proposed Transaction will be completed by way of a three-cornered amalgamation under the
Business Corporations Act (British Columbia), whereby 1252034 B.C. Ltd. (“ Subco”), a newly
formed wholly-owned British Columbia subsidiary of RWB (the “Consideration Shares”) at a
deemed price of CDNS$1.50 per share. Closing is subject to a number of corporate, regulatory and
other approvals and conditions and is expected to occur on or before June 9, 2020. A finder’s fee will
be payable on this transaction.




About Red White & Bloom Brands Inc.

The Company is positioning itself to be one of the top three multi-state cannabis operators active in the
U.S. legal cannabis and hemp sector. RWB is predominately focusing its investments on major
markets in the United States, including Michigan, Illinois, Massachusetts, California, and Florida in
respect to cannabis and the entire US for legal hemp CBD based products.

About High Times:

For more than 45 years, High Times has been one of the world’s most well-known cannabis brands -
championing the lifestyle and educating the masses on the benefits of this natural flower. From humble
beginnings as a counterculture lifestyle publication, High Times has evolved into hosting industry-
leading events like the Cannabis Cup and the High Times Business Summit, while providing digital
TV and social networks, globally distributed merchandise, international licensing deals and providing
content for its millions of fans and supporters across the globe. In the world of Cannabis, High Times
is the arbiter of quality. For more information on High Times visit http://www.hightimes.com.

For more information about Red White & Bloom Brands Inc., please contact:

Tyler Troup, Managing Director
Circadian Group IR
IR@RedWhiteBloom.com

Visit us on the web: www.RedWhiteBloom.com

Follow us on social media:
Twitter: @rwbbrands
Facebook: @redwhitebloombrands

Instagram: @redwhitebloombrands

Neither the CSE nor its Regulation Services Provider (as that term is defined in the policies of the
CSE) accepts responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of this release.

FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION

This press release contains forward-looking statements and information that are based on the beliefs of management
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and reflect the Company’s current expectations. When used in this press release, the words “estimate”, “project”,
“belief”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “expect”, “plan”, “predict”, “may” or “should” and the negative of these words or
such variations thereon or comparable terminology are intended to identify forward-looking statements and
information. The forward-looking statements and information in this press release includes information relating to the

Proposed Transaction.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which
may cause our actual results, performance or achievements, or other future events, to be materially different from any
future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.
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Such factors include, among others, the following risks: risks associated with the expected timing and terms of the
Proposed Transaction, the number of common shares of the Company that may be issued in connection with the
Proposed Transaction, the required approvals in connection with the Proposed Transaction and the ability to obtain
such approvals and the parties’ ability to satisfy closing conditions. Forward-looking statements are made based on
management’s beliefs, estimates and opinions on the date that statements are made and the Company undertakes no
obligation to update forward-looking statements if these beliefs, estimates and opinions or other circumstances should
change. Investors are cautioned against attributing undue certainty to forward-looking statements.

The Company cautions that the foregoing list of material factors is not exhaustive. When relying on the Company’s
forward-looking statements and information to make decisions, investors and others should carefully consider the
foregoing factors and other uncertainties and potential events. The Company has assumed a certain progression,
which may not be realized. It has also assumed that the material factors referred to in the previous paragraph will not
cause such forward-looking statements and information to differ materially from actual results or events. However,
the list of these factors is not exhaustive and is subject to change and there can be no assurance that such assumptions
will reflect the actual outcome of such items or factors. While the Company may elect to, it does not undertake to
update this information at any particular time.

THE FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS PRESS RELEASE REPRESENTS THE
EXPECTATIONS OF THE COMPANY AS OF THE DATE OF THIS PRESS RELEASE AND, ACCORDINGLY,

IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AFTER SUCH DATE. READERS SHOULD NOT PLACE UNDUE IMPORTANCE
ON FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION AND SHOULD NOT RELY UPON THIS INFORMATION AS OF
ANY OTHER DATE. WHILE THE COMPANY MAY ELECT TO, IT DOES NOT UNDERTAKE TO UPDATE
THIS INFORMATION AT ANY PARTICULAR TIME EXCEPT AS REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
APPLICABLE LAWS.
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RED WHITE & BLOOM BRANDS INC.
(Formerly Tidal Royalty Corp.)

RED WHITE & BLOOM ANNOUNCES DATE FOR RESUMPTION OF
TRADING ON THE CSE, CONFIRMS SHARE CONSOLIDATION

Toronto, Ontario, June 5, 2020 — Red White & Bloom Brands Inc. (CSE: RWB) (OTC: TDRYD)
(“RWB” or the “Company”, formerly, Tidal Royalty Corp.) announces that further to our news
release dated June 3, 2020, the common shares of the Company will resume trading on the Canadian
Securities Exchange (“CSE”) at the open of trading on June 5, 2020 on a post consolidated basis of
16:1.

About Red White & Bloom Brands Inc.

The Company is an investment company that is positioning itself to be one of the top three multi-state
cannabis operators active in the U.S. legal cannabis and hemp sector. It is anticipated that RWB will
predominately focus its investments on major markets in the United States, including Michigan,
California, Illinois, Massachusetts and Florida in respect to cannabis and the entire US for legal hemp
CBD based products.

For more information about Red White & Bloom Brands Inc., please contact:

Tyler Troup, Managing Director Circadian Group IR
IR@RedWhiteBloom.com

Visit us on the web: www.RedWhiteBloom.com

Follow us on social media:
Twitter: @rwbbrands
Facebook: @redwhitebloombrands

Instagram: @redwhitebloombrands

Neither the CSE nor its Regulation Services Provider (as that term is defined in the policies of the
CSE) accepts responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of this release.
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FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION

This press release contains forward-looking statements and information that are based on the beliefs of management

»

and reflect the Company’s current expectations. When used in this press release, the words “estimate”, “project”,
“belief”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “expect”, “plan”, “predict”, “may” or “should” and the negative of these words or
such variations thereon or comparable terminology are intended to identify forward-looking statements and
information. The forward-looking statements and information in this press release includes information relating to the
implementation of Red White & Bloom’s business plan. Such statements and information reflect the current view of
the Company with respect to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially from those

contemplated in those forward-looking statements and information.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which
may cause our actual results, performance or achievements, or other future events, to be materially different from any
future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors
include, among others, the following risks: risks associated with the implementation of Red White & Bloom’s
business plan and matters relating thereto, risks associated with the cannabis industry, competition, regulatory change,
the need for additional financing, reliance on key personnel, the potential for conflicts of interest among certain
officers or directors, and the volatility of the Company’s common share price and volume. Forward-looking
statements are made based on management’s beliefs, estimates and opinions on the date that statements are made and
the Company undertakes no obligation to update forward-looking statements if these beliefs, estimates and opinions
or other circumstances should change. Investors are cautioned against attributing undue certainty to forward-looking
statements.

There are a number of important factors that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from those
indicated or implied by forward-looking statements and information. Such factors include, among others, risks related
to Red White & Bloom’s proposed business, such as failure of the business strategy and government regulation; risks
related to Red White & Bloom’s operations, such as additional financing requirements and access to capital, reliance
on key and qualified personnel, insurance, competition, intellectual property and reliable supply chains; risks related
to Red White & Bloom and its business generally. The Company cautions that the foregoing list of material factors is
not exhaustive. When relying on the Company’s forward-looking statements and information to make decisions,
investors and others should carefully consider the foregoing factors and other uncertainties and potential events. The
Company has assumed a certain progression, which may not be realized. It has also assumed that the material factors
referred to in the previous paragraph will not cause such forward-looking statements and information to differ
materially from actual results or events. However, the list of these factors is not exhaustive and is subject to change
and there can be no assurance that such assumptions will reflect the actual outcome of such items or factors. While the
Company may elect to, it does not undertake to update this information at any particular time.

THE FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS PRESS RELEASE REPRESENTS THE
EXPECTATIONS OF THE COMPANY AS OF THE DATE OF THIS PRESS RELEASE AND, ACCORDINGLY,

IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AFTER SUCH DATE. READERS SHOULD NOT PLACE UNDUE IMPORTANCE
ON FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION AND SHOULD NOT RELY UPON THIS INFORMATION AS OF
ANY OTHER DATE. WHILE THE COMPANY MAY ELECT TO, IT DOES NOT UNDERTAKE TO UPDATE
THIS INFORMATION AT ANY PARTICULAR TIME EXCEPT AS REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

APPLICABLE LAWS.
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RED WHITE & BLOOM BRANDS PROVIDES CORPORATE UPDATE

Toronto, Ontario, June 8, 2020 — Red White & Bloom Brands Inc. (CSE: RWB and OTC: TDRYD)
(“RWB” or the “Company”) is pleased to advise on April 28, 2020, it completed its go public
transaction by way of a reverse takeover of Tidal Royalty Corp. (“Tidal”), and on June 5, 2020 it
commenced trading on the Canadian Securities Exchange (the “CSE”) under the symbol RWB and on
the OTC under the symbol TDRYD (the “Transaction™).

In connection with the Transaction, certain shareholders, including management and founders of the
Company, entered into voluntary escrow and/or escrow and leak out agreements totaling 36,844,823
Common shares and 3,200,000 Options to purchase Common shares. Additionally, 108,726,349 Series
II Preferred shares and Options to acquire 7,401,429 Series II Preferred shares are restricted for 7
months. Lastly, RWB’s Michigan investee shareholders have agreed to participate in a voluntary share
escrow agreement for the shares to be issued in connection with the closing of the acquisition.
Collectively these agreements mean that over 70% of the fully diluted shares of the Company are in
some form of escrow, lockup or subject to a trading restriction. Additional details of the Transaction
can be found in the press release issued on April 28, 2020 and in the Listing Statement posted on the
Company’s disclosure hall with the CSE .

RWB’s U.S. footprint currently spans Illinois and Massachusetts through its investee, Michigan (see
below). With a combined cultivation footprint of over 4,000,000 sf, 600 employees and 22 individual
facilities, RWB’s mandate is to operate at scale in select states that provide the greatest return for our
partners and shareholders.

Michigan:

RWB has advanced in excess of US$75 million to its investee in Michigan. The Company does not
report the financial performance of the investee in its financials, as it has not yet exercised its
irrevocable option to acquire 100% ownership of the investee. The Company intends to exercise this
option, subject to the successful completion of RWB’s licensing to operate within the state of
Michigan; which application is in process now.

The Michigan investee currently holds numerous licenses within Michigan covering the entire
cannabis value chain; they are strategically located throughout the state to service the majority of its
10 million residents. The investee currently owns the assets of 18 dispensaries (referred to as

provisioning centers in Michigan), 10 of these operating dispensaries have achieved approximately

US$70 million in trailing revenues! over the last 12 months. The remaining 8 dispensaries are at

various stages of development, are expected to open in calendar 2020 and be accretive to the current
revenue run-rate. With the COVID-19 pandemic and state shelter in place orders taking effect, the
investee was able to quickly pivot the business to include delivery and curb-side pick-up and within
days saw an actual increase in revenue from the stores while providing a safe environment with
appropriate social distancing and health and safety procedures in place for its employees and
customers.

+ Revenues are based on management prepared statements and have not been audited.
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RWB’s Michigan Investee is vertically integrated with two operational indoor cultivation facilities, an
outdoor cultivation facility, and various additional cultivation and manufacturing locations coming on
stream to increase their margins and meet their demands for 2020 and beyond.

In addition, RWB entered into a definitive agreement as announced on June 5, 2020, with High
Times® to acquire the rights to exclusively brand both medical and recreational dispensaries and
cannabis products within the States of Michigan, Illinois and Florida. RWB plans to sub-license its
rights to its investee in Michigan, subject to regulatory approval and closing of the High Times®
transaction.

Illinois:

RWB’s Illinois subsidiaries own and operate America’s largest indoor CBD cultivation facility which
is 3,600,000 sf and sits on 236 prime agricultural acres in Putnam County, IL.

The facility is focused on producing high grade cannabinoids, complete with Certificate of Origin
documentation, on a year-round, consistent basis. The facility was formerly a premier producer in the
floricultural market for America’s big box national chains and has maintained the relationships and
certifications to continue those business relationships for consideration of our national CBD product
strategy. The facility has also secured various distributors, purchase orders and supply/off-take
agreements for premium whole flower within the United States and CBD distillate internationally with
an estimated value of over US$20 million.

Massachusetts:

RWB’s Massachusetts assets were developed initially by Tidal and now form part of the assets of the
Company as a result of closing the Transaction. These assets consist of 3 cannabis licenses; 2 of which
are for cultivation and 1 is for processing, and 2.8 acres of development land. RWB is looking at a
number of strategic options for these assets for 2020.

About Red White & Bloom Brands Inc.

The Company is positioning itself to be one of the top three multi-state cannabis operators active in the
U.S. legal cannabis and hemp sector. RWB is predominately focusing its investments on major
markets in the United States, including Michigan, Illinois, Massachusetts, California, and Florida in
respect to cannabis and the entire US for legal hemp CBD based products.
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For more information about Red White & Bloom Brands Inc., please contact:
Tyler Troup, Managing Director

Circadian Group IR
IR@RedWhiteBloom.com

Visit us on the web: www.RedWhiteBloom.com

Follow us on social media:
Twitter: @rwbbrands
Facebook: @redwhitebloombrands

Instagram: @redwhitebloombrands

Neither the CSE nor its Regulation Services Provider (as that term is defined in the policies of the
CSE) accepts responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of this release.

FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION

This press release contains forward-looking statements and information that are based on the beliefs of management

and reflect the Company’s current expectations. When used in this press release, the words “estimate”, “project”,
“belief”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “expect”, “plan”, “predict”, “may” or “should” and the negative of these words or
such variations thereon or comparable terminology are intended to identify forward-looking statements and
information. The forward-looking statements and information in this press release includes information relating to the
implementation of Red White & Bloom’s business plan. Such statements and information reflect the current view of
the Company with respect to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially from those

contemplated in those forward-looking statements and information.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which
may cause our actual results, performance or achievements, or other future events, to be materially different from any
future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors
include, among others, the following risks: risks associated with the implementation of Red White & Bloom’s
business plan and matters relating thereto, risks associated with the cannabis industry, competition, regulatory change,
the need for additional financing, reliance on key personnel, the potential for conflicts of interest among certain
officers or directors, and the volatility of the Company’s common share price and volume. Forward-looking
statements are made based on management’s beliefs, estimates and opinions on the date that statements are made and
the Company undertakes no obligation to update forward-looking statements if these beliefs, estimates and opinions
or other circumstances should change. Investors are cautioned against attributing undue certainty to forward-looking
statements.

There are a number of important factors that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from those
indicated or implied by forward-looking statements and information. Such factors include, among others, risks related
to Red White & Bloom’s proposed business, such as failure of the business strategy and government regulation; risks
related to Red White & Bloom’s operations, such as additional financing requirements and access to capital, reliance
on key and qualified personnel, insurance, competition, intellectual property and reliable supply chains; risks related
to Red White & Bloom and its business generally. The Company cautions that the foregoing list of material factors is
not exhaustive. When relying on the Company’s forward-looking statements and information to make decisions,
investors and others should carefully consider the foregoing factors and other uncertainties and potential events. The
Company has assumed a certain progression, which may not be realized. It has also assumed
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that the material factors referred to in the previous paragraph will not cause such forward-looking statements and
information to differ materially from actual results or events. However, the list of these factors is not exhaustive and is
subject to change and there can be no assurance that such assumptions will reflect the actual outcome of such items or
factors. While the Company may elect to, it does not undertake to update this information at any particular time.

THE FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS PRESS RELEASE REPRESENTS THE
EXPECTATIONS OF THE COMPANY AS OF THE DATE OF THIS PRESS RELEASE AND, ACCORDINGLY,

IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AFTER SUCH DATE. READERS SHOULD NOT PLACE UNDUE IMPORTANCE
ON FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION AND SHOULD NOT RELY UPON THIS INFORMATION AS OF
ANY OTHER DATE. WHILE THE COMPANY MAY ELECT TO, IT DOES NOT UNDERTAKE TO UPDATE
THIS INFORMATION AT ANY PARTICULAR TIME EXCEPT AS REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
APPLICABLE LAWS.
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Material Change Report

Item 1 Name and Address of Company
Red White & Bloom Brands Inc. (formerly, Tidal Royalty Corp.) (the “Company” or “RWB”)

810-789 West Pender Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6C 1H2

Item 2 Date of Material Change
June 5, 2020
Item 3 News Release

The new release was filed on SEDAR, disseminated through the facilities of GlobeNewsWire and
posted to the Issuer’s disclosure hall with the CSE on June 5, 2020.

Item 4 Summary of Material Change

The Company announced that it entered into a Definitive Agreement to acquire the licensing

rights for the branding of High Times® dispensaries and High Times cannabis-based CBD and
THC products in the States of Michigan, lllinois and Florida and branding of High Times hemp
derived CBD products nationally in the United States carrying the Culture® brand. The
Definitive Agreement includes RWB securing the rights from HT Retail Licensing, LLC (“HT”) to
Culture® for the branding of CBD and whole hemp flower products nationally in the United

States. Initial plans are to grow and manufacture these best-in-class products from its massive

3.6 million square foot facility in lllinois.

The transaction will be completed by way of a three-cornered amalgamation under the Business

Corporations Act (British Columbia), whereby 1252034 B.C. Ltd. (“Subco”), a newly formed wholly-
owned British Columbia subsidiary of RWB, will amalgamate with 1251881 B.C. Ltd. in exchange for
US$15,000,000 worth of common shares of RWB (the “Consideration Shares”) at a deemed price of
CDNS$1.50 per share. Closing is subject to a number of corporate, regulatory and other approvals and
conditions and is expected to occur on or about June 9, 2020. A finder’s fee will be payable on this

transaction.

Item 5 Full Description of Material Change

5.1 Full Description of Material Change

See the attached news release.

5.2 Disclosure for Restructuring Transactions

Not applicable.

Item 6 Reliance on subsection 7.1(2) of National Instrument 51-102

Not applicable.



Item 7 Omitted Information

Not applicable.

Item 8 Executive Officer

Theo van der Linde, Chief Financial Officer
Phone: 604-687-2038

Item 9 Date of Report

June 8, 2020
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Material Change Report

Item 1 Name and Address of Company
Red White & Bloom Brands Inc. (formerly, Tidal Royalty Corp.) (the “Company” or “RWB”)

810-789 West Pender Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6C 1H2

Item 2 Date of Material Change
June 5, 2020
Item 3 News Release

The new release was filed on SEDAR, disseminated through the facilities of GlobeNewsWire and
posted to the Issuer’s disclosure hall with the CSE on June 3, 2020.

Item 4 Summary of Material Change

The Company announced that the common shares of the Company would resume trading on
the Canadian Securities Exchange at the open of trading on June 5, 2020.

Item 5 Full Description of Material Change

5.1 Full Description of Material Change

See the attached news release.

5.2 Disclosure for Restructuring Transactions

Not applicable.

Item 6 Reliance on subsection 7.1(2) of National Instrument 51-102
Not applicable.

Item 7 Omitted Information

Not applicable.

Item 8 Executive Officer

Theo van der Linde, Chief Financial Officer
Phone: 604-687-2038

Item 9 Date of Report

June 8, 2020
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RED WHITE & BLOOM PROVIDES UPDATE ON
US TRADING SYMBOL

Toronto, Ontario, June 10, 2020 — Red White & Bloom Brands Inc. (CSE: RWB) (OTC: TDRYD)
(“RWB” or the “Company”) announces that further to our news release dated June 3, 2020, the
Company is pleased to report that it is in the final stages of the application process to trade on the
OTCQX Best Market and will make a formal announcement in the coming weeks. The OTCQX Best
Market is a market designed for established, investor-focused U.S. and international companies.

The Company also reports that the current symbol “TDRYD” will remain in effect until or about
July1, 2020 at which point the new US trading symbol will be “RWBYF”.

All interested parties are encouraged to review our newly updated investor resources at
https://ir.redwhitebloom.com/ for regular updates.

About Red White & Bloom Brands Inc.

The Company is an investment company that is positioning itself to be one of the top three multi-state
cannabis operators active in the U.S. legal cannabis and hemp sector. It is anticipated that RWB will
predominately focus its investments on major markets in the United States, including Michigan,
California, Illinois, Massachusetts and Florida in respect to cannabis and the entire US for legal hemp
CBD based products.

For more information about Red White & Bloom Brands Inc., please contact:

Tyler Troup, Managing Director

Circadian Group IR

IR@RedWhiteBloom.com
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Visit us on the web: www.RedWhiteBloom.com

Follow us on social media:
Twitter: @rwbbrands
Facebook: @redwhitebloombrands

Instagram: @redwhitebloombrands

Neither the CSE nor its Regulation Services Provider (as that term is defined in the policies of the
CSE) accepts responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of this release.

FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION

This press release contains forward-looking statements and information that are based on the beliefs of management

» G

and reflect the Company’s current expectations. When used in this press release, the words “estimate”, “project”,
“belief”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “expect”, “plan”, “predict”, “may” or “should” and the negative of these words or
such variations thereon or comparable terminology are intended to identify forward-looking statements and
information. The forward-looking statements and information in this press release includes information relating to the
implementation of Red White & Bloom’s business plan. Such statements and information reflect the current view of
the Company with respect to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially from those

contemplated in those forward-looking statements and information.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which
may cause our actual results, performance or achievements, or other future events, to be materially different from any
future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors
include, among others, the following risks: risks associated with the implementation of Red White & Bloom’s
business plan and matters relating thereto, risks associated with the cannabis industry, competition, regulatory change,
the need for additional financing, reliance on key personnel, the potential for conflicts of interest among certain
officers or directors, and the volatility of the Company’s common share price and volume. Forward-looking
statements are made based on management’s beliefs, estimates and opinions on the date that statements are made and
the Company undertakes no obligation to update forward-looking statements if these beliefs, estimates and opinions
or other circumstances should change. Investors are cautioned against attributing undue certainty to forward-looking
statements.

There are a number of important factors that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from those
indicated or implied by forward-looking statements and information. Such factors include, among others, risks related
to Red White & Bloom’s proposed business, such as failure of the business strategy and government regulation; risks
related to Red White & Bloom’s operations, such as additional financing requirements and access to capital, reliance
on key and qualified personnel, insurance, competition, intellectual property and reliable supply chains; risks related
to Red White & Bloom and its business generally. The Company cautions that the foregoing list of material factors is
not exhaustive. When relying on the Company’s forward-looking statements and information to make decisions,
investors and others should carefully consider the foregoing factors and other uncertainties and potential events. The
Company has assumed a certain progression, which may not be realized. It has also assumed that the material factors
referred to in the previous paragraph will not cause such forward-looking statements and information to differ
materially from actual results or events. However, the list of these factors is not exhaustive and is subject to change
and there can be no assurance that such assumptions will reflect the actual outcome of such items or factors. While the
Company may elect to, it does not undertake to update this information at any particular time.

THE FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS PRESS RELEASE REPRESENTS THE
EXPECTATIONS OF THE COMPANY AS OF THE DATE OF THIS PRESS RELEASE AND, ACCORDINGLY,
IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AFTER SUCH DATE. READERS SHOULD NOT PLACE
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UNDUE IMPORTANCE ON FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION AND SHOULD NOT RELY UPON THIS
INFORMATION AS OF ANY OTHER DATE. WHILE THE COMPANY MAY ELECT TO, IT DOES NOT
UNDERTAKE TO UPDATE THIS INFORMATION AT ANY PARTICULAR TIME EXCEPT AS REQUIRED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS.
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RED WHITE & BLOOM BRANDS CLOSES AGREEMENT WITH HIGH TIMES

RWRB secures exclusive licensing rights for High Times branded locations and product brands for
Michigan, Illinois and Florida and Culture for CBD nationally in the U.S.

Toronto, Ontario, June 11, 2020 — Red White & Bloom Brands Inc. (CSE: RWB and OTC: TDRYD)
(“RWB” or the “Company”) is pleased to announce that it has closed the previously announced
Definitive Agreement (as herein defined) to acquire the licensing rights for the branding of High
Times® dispensaries and High Times cannabis-based CBD and THC products in the States of
Michigan, Illinois and Florida and branding of High Times hemp derived CBD products nationally in
the United States carrying the Culture® brand.

Under the terms of the Definitive Agreement, RWB has acquired the rights to exclusively brand both
medical and recreational dispensaries and cannabis products within the States of Michigan, Illinois and
Florida. RWB plans to sub-license to its investee in Michigan for its 18 planned and operational
dispensaries, to be rebranded as High Times stores and allow the investee to create and sell cannabis
derived products both within their own locations as well as to third parties in Michigan.

HIGH TIMES

The Definitive Agreement includes RWB securing the rights from HT Retail Licensing, LLC (“ HT”)
to Culture® for the branding of CBD and whole hemp flower products nationally in the United States.
Initial plans are to grow and manufacture these best-in-class products from its massive 3.6 million
square foot facility in Illinois.

In addition to dispensaries becoming High Times branded destinations, RWB plans to introduce High
Times branded products including flower, vapes, tinctures, topicals, and edibles through both owned
and other third party outlets, subject to the licensing agreements for each respective state.

Brad Rogers, Chairman and CEO stated, “Closing this deal with the only real iconic brand in cannabis
and working alongside the first-class people that come with it, is just the beginning of another 45 year
journey that will define RWB and High Times in this chapter of history as the best-in-class for
generations to come.”




“Let’s make America dope again.”

Details of the Transaction

Immediately prior to the entering into of the Definitive Agreement, Newco entered into: (i) a retail
license agreement with HT whereby Newco was granted the right to use certain intellectual property
associated with retail dispensary and local delivery services for cannabis products, cannabis
accessories and merchandise in Michigan, Illinois and Florida; and (ii) a product licensing agreement
with HT whereby Newco was granted an exclusive license to use certain intellectual property related
to the commercialization of cannabis products in Michigan, Illinois and Florida and CBD products
nationally carrying HT brands.

RWB entered into an acquisition agreement (the “Definitive Agreement”) with HT, as licensor to
Newco, and 1252240 B.C. Ltd. (the “Seller”), to acquire 1251881 B.C. Ltd. (“ Newco”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Seller (the “Transaction”).

The Transaction was completed by way of a three-cornered amalgamation under the Business
Corporations Act (British Columbia), whereby 1252034 B.C. Ltd. (“ Subco”), a newly formed wholly-
owned British Columbia subsidiary of RWB, amalgamated with Newco in exchange for 13,500,000
common shares of RWB (the “Consideration Shares”) issued at a deemed price of CDN$1.50 per
share. The Company also issued one special warrant to Subco that is exercisable into 4,500,000
additional common shares of RWB in certain circumstances. The Company also paid a finder’s to an
arm’s length finder in connection with the closing of the Transaction.

About Red White & Bloom Brands Inc.

The Company is positioning itself to be one of the top three multi-state cannabis operators active in the
U.S. legal cannabis and hemp sector. RWB is predominately focusing its investments on major
markets in the United States, including Michigan, Illinois, Massachusetts, California, and Florida in
respect to cannabis and the entire US for legal hemp CBD based products.

About High Times:

For more than 45 years, High Times has been one of the world’s most well-known cannabis brands -
championing the lifestyle and educating the masses on the benefits of this natural flower. From humble
beginnings as a counterculture lifestyle publication, High Times has evolved into hosting industry-
leading events like the Cannabis Cup and the High Times Business Summit, while providing digital
TV and social networks, globally distributed merchandise, international licensing deals and providing
content for its millions of fans and supporters across the globe. In the world of Cannabis, High Times
is the arbiter of quality. For more information on High Times visit http://www.hightimes.com.

For more information about Red White & Bloom Brands Inc., please contact:

Tyler Troup, Managing Director
Circadian Group IR
IR@RedWhiteBloom.com
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Visit us on the web: www.RedWhiteBloom.com
Follow us on social media:

Twitter: @rwbbrands
Facebook: @redwhitebloombrands

Instagram: @redwhitebloombrands

Neither the CSE nor its Regulation Services Provider (as that term is defined in the policies of the
CSE) accepts responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of this release.

FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION

This press release contains forward-looking statements and information that are based on the beliefs of management
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and reflect the Company’s current expectations. When used in this press release, the words “estimate”, “project”,
“belief”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “expect”, “plan”, “predict”, “may” or “should” and the negative of these words or
such variations thereon or comparable terminology are intended to identify forward-looking statements and
information. The forward-looking statements and information in this press release includes information relating to the

Proposed Transaction.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which
may cause our actual results, performance or achievements, or other future events, to be materially different from any
future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors
include, among others, the following risks: risks associated with the expected timing and terms of the Proposed
Transaction, the number of common shares of the Company that may be issued in connection with the Proposed
Transaction, the required approvals in connection with the Proposed Transaction and the ability to obtain such
approvals and the parties’ ability to satisfy closing conditions. Forward-looking statements are made based on
management’s beliefs, estimates and opinions on the date that statements are made and the Company undertakes no
obligation to update forward-looking statements if these beliefs, estimates and opinions or other circumstances should
change. Investors are cautioned against attributing undue certainty to forward-looking statements.

The Company cautions that the foregoing list of material factors is not exhaustive. When relying on the Company’s
forward-looking statements and information to make decisions, investors and others should carefully consider the
foregoing factors and other uncertainties and potential events. The Company has assumed a certain progression,
which may not be realized. It has also assumed that the material factors referred to in the previous paragraph will not
cause such forward-looking statements and information to differ materially from actual results or events. However,
the list of these factors is not exhaustive and is subject to change and there can be no assurance that such assumptions
will reflect the actual outcome of such items or factors. While the Company may elect to, it does not undertake to
update this information at any particular time.

THE FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS PRESS RELEASE REPRESENTS THE
EXPECTATIONS OF THE COMPANY AS OF THE DATE OF THIS PRESS RELEASE AND, ACCORDINGLY,

IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AFTER SUCH DATE. READERS SHOULD NOT PLACE UNDUE IMPORTANCE
ON FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION AND SHOULD NOT RELY UPON THIS INFORMATION AS OF
ANY OTHER DATE. WHILE THE COMPANY MAY ELECT TO, IT DOES NOT UNDERTAKE TO UPDATE
THIS INFORMATION AT ANY PARTICULAR TIME EXCEPT AS REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

APPLICABLE LAWS.
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Material Change Report

Item 1 Name and Address of Company

Red White & Bloom Brands Inc. (formerly, Tidal Royalty Corp.) (the “Company” or “RWB”)
810-789 West Pender Street

Vancouver, B.C. V6C 1H2

Item 2 Date of Material Change

June 10, 2020

Item 3 News Release

The new release was filed on SEDAR, disseminated through the facilities of GlobeNewsWire and
posted to the Issuer’s disclosure hall with the CSE on June 11, 2020.

Item 4 Summary of Material Change

The Company announced that it has closed the previously announced definitive agreement to
acquire the licensing rights for the branding of High Times® dispensaries and High Times
cannabis-based CBD and THC products in the States of Michigan, lllinois and Florida and
branding of High Times hemp derived CBD products nationally in the United States carrying
the Culture® brand.

The transaction was completed by way of a three-cornered amalgamation under the Business
Corporations Act (British Columbia), whereby 1252034 B.C. Ltd. (“Subco”), a newly formed
wholly-owned British Columbia subsidiary of RWB, amalgamated with 1251881 B.C. Ltd. in
exchange for 13,500,000 common shares of RWB issued at a deemed price of CDN$1.50 per
share. The Company also issued one special warrant to Subco that is exercisable into 4,500,000

additional common shares of RWB in certain circumstances.

The Company paid a finder’s to an arm’s length finder in connection with the closing of the
Transaction.

Item 5 Full Description of Material Change

5.1 Full Description of Material Change

See the attached news release.

5.2 Disclosure for Restructuring Transactions

Not applicable.

Item 6 Reliance on subsection 7.1(2) of National Instrument 51-102

Not applicable.



Item 7 Omitted Information

Not applicable.

Item 8 Executive Officer

Theo van der Linde, Chief Financial Officer
Phone: 604-687-2038

Item 9 Date of Report

June 11, 2020
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RED WHITE & BLOOM INVESTEE PHARMACO EXPANDS CULTIVATION
CAPACITY IN MICHIGAN AND BEGINS FIRST INDOOR HARVEST IN DETROIT

Harvest marks important milestone by supplying Michigan top-shelf, lab-approved cannabis
amidst a Statewide product shortage

Toronto, Ontario, June 24, 2020 — Red White & Bloom Brands Inc. (CSE: RWB and OTC: TDRYD)
(“RWB” or the “Company”) is pleased to announce that it’s investee PharmaCo Inc., continues to
execute on their expansion having been awarded nine (9) new Municipal Marijuana cultivation
licenses in June and commencing their first harvest at their Detroit indoor cultivation facility.

PharmaCo was awarded five (5) Municipal Class C grow licenses in Spaulding Township and four (4)
Municipal Class C grow licenses in Au Gres Township; collectively this represents the right to grow
13,500 plants, subject to final State approvals.

In Detroit, planting at the newly commissioned 22,000 square foot indoor facility began earlier this
year, and the first plants are now being harvested, while remaining on time and on budget. PharmaCo
continues to ramp-up production using perpetual harvest methodologies which at full capacity can
produce over 4,5001bs of the most sought after top-shelf cannabis strains in the State.

“We are very excited for the opportunity to continue moving forward and make a positive impact on
the communities we serve as an essential service in the State of Michigan.” said a PharmaCo
spokesperson. Adding “we are committed to the communities of Au Gres and Spaulding Township in
the greater Saginaw area, with the same commitment to excellence that PharmaCo meets with every
one of its current grow facilities with a dedicated grow philosophy to ensure the highest state
compliancy.”

Brad Rogers, Chairman & CEO stated: “Our investee has made some great progress building the
dispensary footprint they have over the past 12 months and their team has made fantastic progress in
growing their patient and recreational customers in the face of very challenging times. Their ability to
execute and deliver on time and budget this additional cultivation capacity in the midst of the COVID-
19 outbreak is truly remarkable. Completing the first harvest in the new Detroit facility is a pivotal
moment for them and we are very proud of what they are accomplishing in Michigan.”

About Red White & Bloom Brands Inc.

The Company is positioning itself to be one of the top three multi-state cannabis operators active in the
U.S. legal cannabis and hemp sector. RWB is predominately focusing its investments on major
markets in the United States, including Michigan, Illinois, Massachusetts, California, and Florida in
respect to cannabis and the entire US for legal hemp CBD based products.
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For more information about Red White & Bloom Brands Inc., please contact:
Tyler Troup, Managing Director

Circadian Group IR
IR@RedWhiteBloom.com

Visit us on the web: www.RedWhiteBloom.com

Follow us on social media:
Twitter: @rwbbrands
Facebook: @redwhitebloombrands

Instagram: @redwhitebloombrands

Neither the CSE nor its Regulation Services Provider (as that term is defined in the policies of the
CSE) accepts responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of this release.

FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION

This press release contains forward-looking statements and information that are based on the beliefs of management

»

and reflect the Company’s current expectations. When used in this press release, the words “estimate”, “project”,
“belief”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “expect”, “plan”, “predict”, “may” or “should” and the negative of these words or
such variations thereon or comparable terminology are intended to identify forward-looking statements and
information. The forward-looking statements and information in this press release includes information relating to the

Proposed Transaction.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which
may cause our actual results, performance or achievements, or other future events, to be materially different from any
future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors
include, among others, the following risks: risks associated with the expected timing and terms of the Proposed
Transaction, the number of common shares of the Company that may be issued in connection with the Proposed
Transaction, the required approvals in connection with the Proposed Transaction and the ability to obtain such
approvals and the parties’ ability to satisfy closing conditions. Forward-looking statements are made based on
management’s beliefs, estimates and opinions on the date that statements are made and the Company undertakes no
obligation to update forward-looking statements if these beliefs, estimates and opinions or other circumstances should
change. Investors are cautioned against attributing undue certainty to forward-looking statements.

The Company cautions that the foregoing list of material factors is not exhaustive. When relying on the Company’s
forward-looking statements and information to make decisions, investors and others should carefully consider the
foregoing factors and other uncertainties and potential events. The Company has assumed a certain progression,
which may not be realized. It has also assumed that the material factors referred to in the previous paragraph will not
cause such forward-looking statements and information to differ materially from actual results or events. However,
the list of these factors is not exhaustive and is subject to change and there can be no assurance that such assumptions
will reflect the actual outcome of such items or factors. While the Company may elect to, it does not undertake to
update this information at any particular time.

THE FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS PRESS RELEASE REPRESENTS THE
EXPECTATIONS OF THE COMPANY AS OF THE DATE OF THIS PRESS RELEASE AND, ACCORDINGLY,
IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AFTER SUCH DATE. READERS SHOULD NOT PLACE
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UNDUE IMPORTANCE ON FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION AND SHOULD NOT RELY UPON THIS
INFORMATION AS OF ANY OTHER DATE. WHILE THE COMPANY MAY ELECT TO, IT DOES NOT
UNDERTAKE TO UPDATE THIS INFORMATION AT ANY PARTICULAR TIME EXCEPT AS REQUIRED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS.



% RedWhite&Bloom

RED WHITE & BLOOM BRANDS CLOSES DEBT SETTLEMENT

Toronto, Ontario, June 30, 2020 — Red White & Bloom Brands Inc. (CSE: RWB and OTC: TDRYD)
(“RWB?” or the “Company”) reports that it has entered into a debt settlement subscription agreement
(the “Debt Settlement Agreement”) with an arm-length investor (the “Investor”) to settle
outstanding advances made in the amount of CDN $5,848,000 incurred pursuant to advances made by
the Investor to Pharmaco, in consideration for the issuance of 2,339,200 units (“Units”) issued at a
deemed price of $2.50 per Unit (the “Debt Settlement”).

Each Unit shall consist of one common share (each, a “ Common Share”) and one series 2 convertible
preferred shares (each, a “Series 2 Preferred Share” and collectively, the “ Series 2 Preferred
Shares”) in the capital of the Company. Each Series 2 Preferred Share shall be convertible, in
accordance with the formula as set out in the terms in the Company’s articles, at any time or times on
or after November 24, 2020 and before April 24, 2022. Any Series 2 Preferred Shares outstanding on
April 24, 2022 shall automatically convert into fully paid and non-assessable Common Shares without
requiring any further action.

All securities issued in connection with the Debt Settlement will be subject to a four-month-and-one-
day statutory hold period in accordance with applicable securities laws.

About Red White & Bloom Brands Inc.

The Company is positioning itself to be one of the top three multi-state cannabis operators active in the
U.S. legal cannabis and hemp sector. RWB is predominately focusing its investments on major
markets in the United States, including Michigan, Illinois, Massachusetts, California, and Florida in
respect to cannabis and the entire US for legal hemp CBD based products.

For more information about Red White & Bloom Brands Inc., please contact:

Tyler Troup, Managing Director
Circadian Group IR
IR@RedWhiteBloom.com

Visit us on the web: www.RedWhiteBloom.com

Follow us on social media:
Twitter: @rwbbrands

Facebook: @redwhitebloombrands
Instagram: @redwhitebloombrands

Neither the CSE nor its Regulation Services Provider (as that term is defined in the policies of the
CSE) accepts responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of this release.
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FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION

This press release contains forward-looking statements and information that are based on the beliefs of management

and reflect the Company’s current expectations. When used in this press release, the words “estimate”, “project”,
“belief”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “expect”, “plan”, “predict”, “may” or “should” and the negative of these words or
such variations thereon or comparable terminology are intended to identify forward-looking statements and
information. The forward-looking statements and information in this press release includes information relating to the
implementation of Red White & Bloom’s business plan. Such statements and information reflect the current view of
the Company with respect to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially from those

contemplated in those forward-looking statements and information.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which
may cause our actual results, performance or achievements, or other future events, to be materially different from any
future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors
include, among others, the following risks: risks associated with the implementation of Red White & Bloom’s
business plan and matters relating thereto, risks associated with the cannabis industry, competition, regulatory change,
the need for additional financing, reliance on key personnel, the potential for conflicts of interest among certain
officers or directors, and the volatility of the Company’s common share price and volume. Forward-looking
statements are made based on management’s beliefs, estimates and opinions on the date that statements are made and
the Company undertakes no obligation to update forward-looking statements if these beliefs, estimates and opinions
or other circumstances should change. Investors are cautioned against attributing undue certainty to forward-looking
statements.

The Company cautions that the foregoing list of material factors is not exhaustive. When relying on the Company’s
forward-looking statements and information to make decisions, investors and others should carefully consider the
foregoing factors and other uncertainties and potential events. The Company has assumed a certain progression,
which may not be realized. It has also assumed that the material factors referred to in the previous paragraph will not
cause such forward-looking statements and information to differ materially from actual results or events. However,
the list of these factors is not exhaustive and is subject to change and there can be no assurance that such assumptions
will reflect the actual outcome of such items or factors. While the Company may elect to, it does not undertake to
update this information at any particular time.

THE FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS PRESS RELEASE REPRESENTS THE
EXPECTATIONS OF THE COMPANY AS OF THE DATE OF THIS PRESS RELEASE AND, ACCORDINGLY,

IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AFTER SUCH DATE. READERS SHOULD NOT PLACE UNDUE IMPORTANCE
ON FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION AND SHOULD NOT RELY UPON THIS INFORMATION AS OF
ANY OTHER DATE. WHILE THE COMPANY MAY ELECT TO, IT DOES NOT UNDERTAKE TO UPDATE
THIS INFORMATION AT ANY PARTICULAR TIME EXCEPT AS REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
APPLICABLE LAWS.



